June 22, 2021

To

The General Manager
Corporate Relations Department
BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street,

Mumbai — 400 001

Sub: Intimation under Regulation 51 read with Part B of Schedule III of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Ref.: Scrip Code: 959070/ 959246/ 959269/ 960213/ 960358 / 973090/ 973249

Dear Sir/Madam,

In reference to captioned subject, we enclose herewith the notice of the Hon'ble National
Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"), Mumbai Bench for convening the Meeting of the Creditors
of the Company (“Tribunal Convened Meeting”) to be held on Monday, 26" July, 2021 at 12:00
Noon through Video Conferencing or Other Audio-Visual Means which has been duly
dispatched to the Debenture Holders and Creditors whose e-mail addresses are registered
with the Company or Depository Participant(s), for approval of proposed Scheme of
Amalgamation between MIA Infrastructure Private Limited and Wellkept Facility Management
Services Private Limited and Acme Living Solutions Private Limited and TRIF Gurgaon Housing
Projects Private Limited (“Transferor Companies”) with Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
("Transferee Company”) and their respective equity shareholders and creditors.

Request to kindly take the same on your record.
Thanking you.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Sudhakar
Hiriyanna Shetty

Sudhakar Shetty
Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.: A13200)

Encl.: As above

TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300
E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai — 400 033 India.
Tel. 91 22 6661 4444 Fax: 91 22 6661 4452 Website: www.tatarealty.in



NOTICE OF THE UNSECURED CREDITORS (INCLUDING UNSECURED NON-
CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURE HOLDERS) OF TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE
LIMITED (CONVENED PURSUANT TO THE DIRECTIONS OF THE HON'BLE
NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH)

Day

Monday

Date

July 26, 2021

Time

12.00 Noon (IST)

Mode
Meeting

of | In view of the prevailing Covid-19 pandemic and related social distancing

visual means.

norms, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench has
directed that the meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of Tata Realty and
Infrastructure Limited be held through video conferencing or other audio-
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TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH
CA (CAA) No. 702/MB/2019
FORM NO. CAA. 2
[Pursuant to Section 230(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016]

In the matter of Companies Act, 2013;
And
In the matter of Application under Sections 230 to 232 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016 (as amended);

AND
In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation of

1.  MIA Infrastructure Private Limited
And

2. Wellkept Facility Management Services Private
Limited
And

3. Acme Living Solutions Private Limited
And

4.  TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited,
...... the Transferor Companies

With

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
...... the Transferee Company

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited ]

A Company incorporated under the ]

Companies Act, 1956 and a public limited company

within the meaning of the Companies Act, 2013 and having its ]

Registered Office at E Block, Voltas |
Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, ]
Mumbai — 400033. 1 Third Applicant Company



TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTICE OF THE UNSECURED CREDITORS (INCLUDING UNSECURED NON-
CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURE HOLDERS) OF TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE
LIMITED (CONVENED PURSUANT TO THE DIRECTIONS OF THE HON'BLE
NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH)

To,

The Unsecured Creditors (including Unsecured Non-Convertible Debenture holders) of Tata
Realty and Infrastructure Limited (“Third Applicant Company” or “the Company” or
“Transferee Company”)

Notice is hereby given that by order dated the 12% March, 2020 and 2" November, 2020
("Said Orders”), the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench has directed a
meeting, inter alia, of the Unsecured Creditors (including Unsecured Non-Convertible
Debenture holders) of Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited (“Tribunal Convened
Meeting”), the Applicant Company, to be held for the purpose of considering, and if thought
fit, approving, with or without modification, the proposed amended Scheme of Amalgamation
proposed to be made between the Transferor Company and Transferee Company and their
respective shareholders and creditors, Under Sections 230 to 232 read with other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) (‘the Act’) and the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (as amended) (* the Rules’).

In pursuance of the said orders and as directed therein, further notice is hereby given that a
Tribunal Convened Meeting of the Unsecured Creditors (including Unsecured Non-Convertible
Debenture holders) of the Transferee Company will be held through Video Conferencing or
Other Audio-Visual Means ('VC or OAVM’) on Monday, July 26, 2021 at 12.00 Noon, to
consider, and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution for approval of the Scheme by
requisite majority as prescribed under Section 230(1) read with Section 232(1) of the Act.

Copies of the said amended Scheme of Amalgamation, Explanatory Statement pursuant to
Sections 102, 230(3) and 232(2) of the Act and Rule 6 of the Rules (as amended) in respect
of business as set out below are annexed to this notice. A copy of this Notice together with
the relevant documents will be made available on the website of the Company at
www.tril.co.in under Investor Info and also on the website of the stock exchange, i.e., BSE
Limited at www.bseindia.com, where Non-Convertible Debt Instruments of the Company are
listed and also can be obtained free of charge at the registered office of the company or at
the office of its advocates, Mr. Shankarlal Raheja, at D-87-88, Mulund Darshan CHS. Ltd.,
Near Jai Bharat High School, Mulund Colony, Mulund West, Mumbai — 400082.

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench has appointed Mr. Sanjay Dutt
(DIN: 05251670), Managing Director & CEO of the Company, and failing him, Mr. Farokh
Subedar (DIN: 00028428), Director, as Chairperson and Mr. D. A. Kamat, Proprietor of M/s.
D. A. Kamat & Co. Practicing Company Secretary (ICSI Membership No: 3843, COP: 4965) as
the Scrutinizer for the Tribunal Convened Meeting. The above-mentioned scheme of
Amalgamation, if approved by the meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval of the
tribunal. The Authorised Representatives of the Company shall also attend the Tribunal
Convened Meeting.

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 19™ day of November, 2018,
approved the Scheme of Amalgamation in the nature of Merger and subsequently at its
meeting held on 13" January, 2021, approved the amended Scheme of Amalgamation, subject
to the approval of the Equity Shareholders and Creditors of the company, as may be required,
and subject to approval of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench.



TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

TAKE NOTICE that the following Resolutions are proposed under Section 230(3) and other
applicable provisions of the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force), and the provisions of the Memorandum of Association
and Articles of Association of the Company, for the purpose of considering, and, if thought ft,
approving, the amended Scheme:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’) read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, read with
National Company Law Tribunal Rules, 2016, Circulars, Notifications, Clarifications, issued
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being
in force) as may be applicable and subject to the enabling provisions in the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the approval of the Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT”), Mumbai Bench and New Delhi Bench and such other
approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory or Governmental and other authorities or
Tribunal, as may be necessary, and subject to such conditions and modification(s) as may be
prescribed or imposed by the Mumbai Bench and New Delhi Bench of the NCLT, or by any
regulatory or other authorities or tribunal, while granting such consents, approvals and
permissions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company, the proposed
amended Scheme of Amalgamation of MIA Infrastructure Private Limited and Wellkept Facility
Management Services Private Limited and Acme Living Solutions Private Limited and TRIF
Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited with Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited and
their respective shareholders and creditors, placed before this meeting and initialed by the
Chairperson of the meeting for the purpose of identification, be and is hereby approved with
or without maodification and for conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed
and/or permitted by the Mumbai Bench and New Delhi Bench of the National Company Law
Tribunal while sanctioning the Scheme and/or by any Governmental authority.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolutions and
for removal of any difficulties or doubts, the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter
referred to as “the Board”, which term shall deem to include any committee or any person(s)
which the Board may nominate or constitute or delegate) to exercise its powers, including the
powers conferred under above resolutions, be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, expedient,
usual or proper and to settle any questions or difficulties that may arise with regard to the
implementation of the above resolution, including passing of such accounting entries and/or
making such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary to give effect to
the above resolutions or to carry out such modifications / directions as may be ordered by the
Mumbai Bench and New Delhi Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal to implement
the aforesaid resolution.”

SANJAY
DUTT

Sanjay Dutt
DIN: 05251670
Chairman appointed for the aforesaid Tribunal Convened Meeting

Date: June 21, 2021
Place: Mumbai



TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes:

1.

In view of the global outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic and related social distancing norms,
to be followed and pursuant to the orders dated March 12, 2020 and November 2, 2020, in
Company Application No. CA (CAA) No. 702/MB/2019 passed by the Hon'ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench ("NCLT"), the meeting of the Unsecured Creditors
(including unsecured debenture holders) of Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited (“Tribunal
Convened Meeting”) is being convened on Monday, July 26, 2021 at 12:00 Noon (IST)
through Video Conferencing ("VC") or Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM") without the
physical presence of the Unsecured Creditors (including unsecured debenture holders) at a
common venue, as per applicable procedure mentioned in the General Circular No. 14/ 2020
dated April 8, 2020, General Circular No. 17/ 2020 dated April 13, 2020, General Circular
No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”), for the purpose
of considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the Scheme of
Amalgamation between MIA Infrastructure Private Limited, Wellkept Facility Management
Services Private Limited, Acme Living Solutions Private Limited and TRIF Gurgaon Housing
Projects Private Limited (“Transferors Company”) and Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
("Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors on a going concern
basis, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
and other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder ("Scheme”).

The Explanatory Statement, in terms of requirement of provisions of under Sections 230,
232 and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (as amended) to the Tribunal Convened
Meeting, is annexed with the Notice.

The voting rights of Unsecured Creditors (including unsecured debenture holders) shall be
in proportion to their outstanding amount as per the books of accounts of the Transferee
Company as on February 28, 2021, being the cut-off date (“Cut-off Date”).

Since this Tribunal Convened Meeting is being held in compliance with the MCA Circulars
through VC or OAVM, therefore the requirement of physical attendance of the Unsecured
Creditors (including unsecured debenture holders) has been dispensed with. Accordingly, in
terms of MCA Circulars, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Unsecured Creditors
(including unsecured debenture holder) under Sections 113 and 230 and any other applicable
sections of the Act, will not be available for this Tribunal Convened Meeting and hence the
Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map are not annexed to this Notice.

However, the authorised representatives of the Unsecured Creditors (including unsecured
debenture holders) may be appointed to attend the Tribunal Convened Meeting and may
cast their votes during the Tribunal Convened Meeting, are required to send a scanned copy
(PDF / JPG format) of the certified copy of Board or governing body Resolution /
Authorization Letter / Power of Attorney issued by the Board of Directors along with a
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the
Company at trilsec@tatarealty.in, authorising them to attend and vote through VC or OAVM
on their behalf at the Tribunal Convened Meeting.

The Tribunal has appointed Mr. Sanjay Dutt (DIN: 05251670), Managing Director & CEO of
the Transferee Company and failing him, Mr. Farokh Subedar (DIN: 00028428), Director to
act as the Chairman of the Tribunal Convened Meeting including any adjournment(s) thereof.
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TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

The Unsecured Creditors (including unsecured debenture holders) can join this Tribunal
Convened Meeting through VC or OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned hereinbelow.

Necessary link to attend the Tribunal Convened Meeting of the Company shall be provided
through e-mail at the registered e-mail address of the Unsecured Creditors (including
unsecured debenture holders) / at the e-mail address of the Authorized Representative
updated with the Company, as the case may be. The said link would facilitate them to attend
the Tribunal Convened Meeting through VC or OAVM. The Unsecured Creditors (including
unsecured debenture holders) will be required to use Internet with a good speed to avoid
any disturbance during the Tribunal Convened Meeting.

In terms of the directions contained in the Order dated March 12, 2020, the quorum for the
Tribunal Convened Meeting shall be in terms of Section 103 of the Act. Accordingly, the
attendance of the Unsecured Creditors (including unsecured debenture holders) attending
the Tribunal Convened Meeting through VC or OAVM will be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

The Chairman may decide to conduct vote on proposed Resolution by show of hands, unless
demand for a poll is made by any Unsecured Creditors (including unsecured debenture
holders) in accordance with Section 109 of the Act.

In terms of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, the Scheme shall be considered approved by the
unsecured creditors of the Company, if the resolution mentioned above in the Notice has
been approved at the Meeting by a majority of unsecured creditors with three fourth of the
value in rupees.

In line with the MCA Circulars, the Notice of the Tribunal Convened Meeting together with
relevant documents are being sent only through electronic mode to those Unsecured
Creditors (including unsecured debenture holders), whose name is appearing in the list of
Creditors of the Company as on February 28, 2021 and whose e-mail addresses are also
registered with the Company or Depository Participants (DPs).

Any person / entity who is not an Unsecured Creditors (including unsecured debenture
holders) as on the date referred above, should treat this notice for information purposes only
and will not be entitled to attend and/or vote at the Tribunal Convened Meeting.

The Unsecured Creditors (including unsecured debenture holders) may note that this Notice
together with the relevant documents will be made available on the website of the Company
at www.tril.co.in under Investor Info and also on the website of the stock exchange, i.e.,
BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com, where Non-Convertible Debt Instruments of the
Company are listed.

The Unsecured Creditors (including unsecured debenture holder), who need assistance in
connection with using the technology before or during the Tribunal Convened Meeting, may
reach out to the Company officials at e-mail id: trilsec@tatarealty.in or Mobile: +91
8898778859.

The Unsecured Creditors (including unsecured debenture holder), who would like to express
their views or ask questions with regard to the resolution to be placed at the Tribunal
Convened Meeting, may raise the same at the meeting or send an e-mail to
trilsec@tatarealty.in in advance (mentioning their name, type of creditor, demat account
number, PAN, vendor code and other credentials, if any), at least 3 days prior to the date of
the Tribunal Convened Meeting. Such questions by the Unsecured Creditors (including
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TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

unsecured debenture holder) shall be taken up during the Tribunal Convened Meeting and
replied by the Company suitably.

All documents referred to in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be made
available for inspection by the Unsecured Creditors (including unsecured debenture holders)
of the Company, without payment of fees upto and including the date of Tribunal Convened
Meeting. The Unsecured Creditors (including unsecured debenture holder), who wish to
inspect the relevant documents referred to in the Notice can send an e-mail to
trilsec@tatarealty.in from their registered e-mail addresses (mentioning their name, type of
creditor, demat account number, PAN, vendor code and other credentials, if any) up to the
conclusion of this Tribunal Convened Meeting.

The Tribunal has appointed M/s. D. A. Kamat & Co, Practicing Company Secretary, as the
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting process undertaken by the Chairman at the Tribunal
Convened Meeting. The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman of the Tribunal
Convened Meeting after completion of the scrutiny of the votes cast by the Unsecured
Creditors (including unsecured debenture holders) of the Company, in a fair and transparent
manner. The Scrutinizers decision on the validity of the vote(s) shall be final and binding.

The Results shall be declared by the Chairman of the Tribunal Convened Meeting or a person
authorized by him not later than 48 (forty-eight) hours of the conclusion of the Meeting,
upon receipt of Scrutinizer's Report. The declared Results along with the report of the
Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company at www.tril.co.in under Investor
Info and on the notice board of the Company and also on the website of the stock exchange,
i.e., BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com, where Non-Convertible Debt Instruments of the
Company are listed.

The Scheme of Amalgamation, if approved at the Tribunal Convened Meeting, will be subject
to the approval of the NCLT and any such other approvals as may be required, if any.



TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Explanatory Statement to the Notice of the Meeting of Unsecured Creditors of Tata
Realty and Infrastructure Limited under 102 read with Sections 230 to 232 of Rule
6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules,
2016 as per the directions of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench

1. Pursuant to the Order dated 12 March, 2020 and 2"¢ November, 2020 passed by the
Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), in the Company Application
Number 702 of 2019 (CA(CAA) No. 702/MB/2019 ) (Order), a meeting of the Unsecured
Creditors of the Company (‘Tribunal Convened Meeting’), is being convened on Monday,
July 26, 2021 at 12.00 Noon for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving
with or without modification(s), the proposed amended Scheme of Amalgamation of MIA
Infrastructure Private Limited and Wellkept Facility Management Services Private Limited
and Acme Living Solutions Private Limited and TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private
Limited with Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited and their respective shareholders and
creditors under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) (including any
statutory modification or re-enactment or amendment thereof) read with the rules issued
thereunder.

Subsequent to the filing of Scheme with NCLT, the Board of Directors vide its meeting
dated 14™ August, 2018 has changed the registered office of the Company Elphinstone
Building, 2" Floor, 10, Veer Nariman Road, Fort, Mumbai — 400001 to E Block, Voltas
Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400033, with effect from 16 January,
2019. Further, the Board of Directors of the Company vide its meeting dated 23"
September, 2019 and 9™ April, 2020 has increased the Authorised and Paid-up Share
Capital respectively. Therefore, the amended Scheme is attached herewith.

The other definition mentioned in the scheme shall also applicable to the explanatory
statement.

2. The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of MIA Infrastructure Private
Limited First Transferor Company as on date is as under:

Particulars Amount in Rs.
Authorised Capital

28,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 2,80,00,000
Total 2,80,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

27,70,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 2,77,00,000
Total 2,77,00,000

3. The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of Wellkept Facility
Management Services Private Limited, Second Transferor Company as on date is as

under:
Particulars Amount in Rs.
Authorised Capital
10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 1,00,00,000
Total 1,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
4,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 40,00,000
Total 40,00,000
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4. The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of Acme Living Solutions
Private Limited, Third Transferor Company as on date is as under:

Particulars Amount in Rs.
Authorised Capital

50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 5,00,000
Total 5,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 5,00,000
Total 5,00,000

5. The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of TRIF Gurgaon Housing
Projects Private Limited, Fourth Transferor Company as on date is as under:

Particulars Amount in Rs.
Authorised Capital

50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 5,00,000
Total 5,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 5,00,000
Total 5,00,000

6. The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of TATA Realty and
Infrastructure Limited the Transferee Company as on date is as under:

Particulars

Amount in Rs.

Authorised Capital

8,00,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

80,00,00,00,000

Total

80,00,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

1,61,73,07,692 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

16,17,30,76,920

Total

16,17,30,76,920

7. Names of the directors of the Transferor Companies along with their addresses:

MIA INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U74900MH2014PTC252385 (First Transferor Company)

Sr. DIN Name Address

No.

1 00047995 Ritesh Narendrabhai | 704, Gaurav Jhankar CHSL, Gaurav

Kamdar Zankar Bundurpakhadi Road,

Gaurav Garden, Kandi vali (West
Mumbai - 400 067

2 08049549 Santosh Sitaram Mhadgut | Near Western Express Highway,
Room No. 40, Building No 1,
Teachers Colony, Bandra ( East)
Mumbai - 400 051
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WELLKEPT FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U93000MH2008PTC177346 (Second Transferor Company)

Sr. DIN Name Address
No.
1 00047995 Ritesh Narendrabhai | 704, Gaurav Jhankar CHSL, Gaurav
Kamdar Zankar  Bundurpakhadi Road,
Gaurav Garden, Kandi vali (West
Mumbai - 400 067
2 03081163 Sunil Bharat Dhagat B-1002, Iraisaa Chs Ltd, 10th Floor,
Sector 19 Plot No. 1, Sanpada, Navi
Mumbai — 400 705
3 07997663 Amit Bhupendrakumar | B/7, Adinath Apt, Sai Baba Nagar,
Sheth Near J.B. Khot School, Borivali West,
Mumbai 400 092.
ACME LIVING SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U45209DL2008PTC178023 (Third Transferor Company)
Sr. DIN Name Address
No.
1 03081163 Sunil Bharat Dhagat B-1002, Iraisaa Chs Ltd, 10th Floor,
Sector 19 Plot No. 1, Sanpada, Navi
Mumbai — 400 705
2 06967259 Vaidehi Saiprasad Modi Flat Np. 501, Western Palace Chs
Ltd, Near Yogi Nagar, Link Road,
Borilvi West , Mumbai 400 091.
3 00047995 Ritesh Narendrabhai | 704, Gaurav Jhankar CHSL, Gaurav
Kamdar Zankar  Bundurpakhadi Road,
Gaurav Garden, Kandi vali (West)
Mumbai 400067
TRIF GURGAON HOUSING PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U74900DL2009PTC188404 (Fourth Transferor Company)
Sr. DIN Name Address
No.
1 07997663 Amit Bhupendrakumar | B/7, Adinath Apt, Sai Baba Nagar,
Sheth Near J.B. Khot School, Borivali West,
Mumbai — 400 092.
2 08049549 Santosh Sitaram Mhadgut Near Western Express Highway,
Room No. 40, Building No 1,
Teachers Colony, Bandra (East)
Mumbai — 400 051.
3 00047995 Ritesh Narendrabhai | 704, Gaurav Jhankar CHSL, Gaurav
Kamdar Zankar Bundurpakhadi Road,

Gaurav Garden, Kandi vali (West)
Mumbai 400067
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8. Names of the directors and Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP”) of the Transferee

Company along with their addresses:

TATA Realty and Infrastructure Limited
CIN U70102MH2007PLC168300
(the Transferee Company

Sr. No. DIN/PAN Name Designation Address
05251670 Sanjay Managing Vivarea Residencies, B-
1 Bhupender Dutt | Director and | 1102, 11th Floor, Sane
CEO(KMP) Guruji Marg, Mahalaxmi,
Mumbai -400 011
00057333 Rajiv Sabharwal | Director C / 183, Kalpataru
Sparkle, N.
2 Dharmadhikari Road,
Gandhinagar, Ban dra
East, Mumbai 400051
00120029 Banmali Director Ashford Apartment, Flat
3 Agrawala No.03, 3rd Floor, 1/26A
Ridge Road, Malabar Hill
Mumbai 400006
4 00028428 Farokh Nariman | Director 1, Wadia Building, 6
Subedar Babulnath Road, Mumbai
400007
AAIPS2689D | Sanjay Sharma | CFO(KMP) B 1501, Ashok Towers,
5 Dr. B. A. Road, Parel,
Mumbai 400012
6 AALPS9504Q | Sudhakar Company 1203, Rustomjee Ozone
Hiriyanna Secretary Tower 1, off S V Road,
Shetty Goregaon West, Mumbai-
400062

9. The details of MIA Infrastructure Private Limited (First Transferor Company):

Particulars

First Transferor Company

Corporate Identification
Number (CIN)

U74900MH2014PTC252385

Permanent Account

Number (PAN)

AAICM4215B

Name of the company

MIA Infrastructure Private Limited

Date of Incorporation

22/01/2014

Type of the company

Private Company

Registered office address

E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli,
Mumbai 400 033.

e-mail address

trilsec@tatarealty.in

Summary of main object
as per the memorandum
of association and main
business carried on by
the company

Engaged in the business of development of infrastructure
facilities including allied/incidental services related to
infrastructure business.
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Details of change of
name, registered office
and objects of the
company during the last
five years

There is no change of name and objects of the Company
during last five years. However, the registered office of the
Company has been shifted from Elphinstone Building, 2"
Floor, 10, Veer Nariman Road, Fort, Mumbai — 400001 to E
Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli,
Mumbai 400033, with effect from January 16, 2019.

Details of the capital
structure of the company
including authorised,
issued, subscribed and
paid up Share Capital

As per para 2 of the Explanatory Statement

Names of the promoters
and directors along with
their addresses

Promoter- Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Registered office: E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
Chinchpokli, Mumbai- 400033

Director- As per para 7 of the Explanatory Statement

The date of the board
meeting at which the
scheme was approved by
the board of directors
including the name of
the directors who voted
in favour of the
resolution, who voted
against the resolution
and who did not vote or
participate

on such resolution

2" January, 2019 and 20 January, 2021

The meeting was attended by all the Directors (list of
directors is as mentioned Above in para 7 of Explanatory
Statement and the resolution was passed unanimously.

Explanatory Statement disclosing details of the scheme of compromise or arrangement

including:-

Parties involved in such
compromise or
arrangement

“Transferor Companies”

1. MIA Infrastructure Private Limited,

2. Wellkept Facility Management Services Private Limited,
3. Acme Living Solutions Private Limited; and

4. TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited
“Transferee Company”

TATA Realty and Infrastructure Limited

The Transferor Companies are Wholly Owned Subsidiaries of
Transferee Company.

Appointed Date

15t April, 2019
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Effective Date

means the last of the dates on which the certified copies or
the authenticated copies of the order of National Company
Law Tribunal sanctioning of the Scheme, are filed with the
Respective Registrar of Companies by the Transferor
Companies and the Transferee Company. Any reference to
this scheme to the date of “coming into effect of this
scheme” or “effective date of this scheme” or scheme taking
effect, shall means the effective date;

Share Exchange Ratio
and other
considerations, if any

the entire issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of
the Transferor Companies is held by the Transferee
Company along with its nominee. Hence, there is no share
exchange ratio involved in the scheme. Upon the Scheme
becoming effective, no shares of the Transferee Company
shall be allotted in lieu or exchange of its holding in the
Transferor Companies and the share capital of the
Transferor Companies shall stand cancelled.

Summary of Valuation
report (if applicable)
including basis of
valuation and fairness
opinion of the registered
valuer, if any, and the
declaration that the
valuation report is
available for inspection
at registered office of
the Company.

As mentioned above, Transferor companies are the
wholly owned subsidiaries of Transferee company and no
shares being issued by transferee company to the
members of the transferor company, Therefore, no
valuation is required to be done.

Details of capital or debt

The Scheme does not involve any capital or debt

restructuring restructuring.

Rationale for the | Refer Point 3 of the Scheme.
compromise or

arrangement

Benefits of the | Refer Point 3 of the Scheme.
compromise or

arrangement as

perceived by the Board

of directors to the

company, members,

creditors and others.

Amount due to | Rs. 40,16,290/-

unsecured creditors as
on 30" November, 2018

Amount due to
unsecured creditors as
on 28" February, 2021

Rs. 0/-

Disclosure about effect of the compromise or arrangement on.

Key Managerial | No Effect

personnel (KMP)

KMP (other than | No Effect as there is no KMP.
Directors)
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Directors As the Transferor Companies are ceased to exist, the
question of any change in the director does not arise.

Promoters TATA Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Non-promoter members | Nil

Depositors Not applicable

Creditors Creditors, if any, shall become the creditors of the Transferee

Company and paid off in the ordinary course of business. No
Effect

Debenture holders

- Not applicable

Deposit  trustee & | - Not applicable
Debenture Trustee

Employees  of  the | No Effect
company

Disclosure about effect of
Key Managerial Personnel

compromise or arrangement on material interest of Directors,
(KMP)and debenture trustee:

Directors

Nil

Key Managerial
personnel (KMP)

-Not applicable

Debenture Trustee

Not applicable

Investigation or
proceedings, if

any, pending against the

company under the Act

- Nil

IL.
I1I.
Iv.

In addition to the documents annexed hereto, the copies of the following documents
will be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company between 11:00 a.m.
to 01:00 p.m. on all working days, except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays, up
to 1 (one) day prior to the date of the Tribunal Convened Meeting'.

I. Copies of the latest audited financial statements of Applicant Company.

Copy of the order of Tribunal dated 12th March, 2020 and 2nd November, 2020.
Copy of Scheme of Compromise or Arrangement.

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Applicant Company.

VI.

VIL.

V. The certificate issued by Auditor of the company to the effect that the accounting

treatment, if any, proposed in the scheme of compromise or arrangement is in
conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Form No. GNL-1 filed by the Applicant Company with the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, evidencing filing of the scheme.

Register of Directors and key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding.

A statement to the effect
that the persons to
whom the notice issued

The person to whom this notice is sent may vote in the
meeting either in person or through Authorised

may vote in the meeting
either

through
Representative.

Representative.

in person or

Authorised
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10. The details of Wellkept Facility Management Services Private Limited (Second
Transferor Company):

Particulars

Second Transferor Company

Corporate Identification

Number (CIN)

U93000MH2008PTC177346

Permanent Account Number
(PAN)

AACCT8259R

Name of the company

Wellkept Facility Management Services Private Limited

Date of Incorporation

04/01/2008

Type of the company

Private Company

Registered office address

E Block, Voltas Premises,
Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400 033.

T B Kadam Marg,

e-mail address

trilsec@tatarealty.in

Summary of main object as
per the memorandum of
association and main
business carried on by the
company

Engaged in the business of real estate including
allied/incidental services related to infrastructure
business.

Details of change of name,
registered office and objects
of the company during the
last five years

There is no change of name and objects of the
Company during last five years. However, the
registered office of the Company has been shifted
from Elphinstone Building, 2nd Floor, 10, Veer
Nariman Road, Fort, Mumbai — 400001 to E Block,
Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli,
Mumbai 400033, with effect from January 16, 2019.

Details of the capital
structure of the company
including authorised, issued,
subscribed and paid up Share
Capital

As per para 3 of the Explanatory Statement

Names of the promoters and
directors along with their
addresses

Promoter- Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Registered office: E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam
Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai- 400033

Director- As per para 7 of the Explanatory Statement

The date of the board
meeting at which the scheme
was approved by the board
of directors including the
name of

the directors who voted in
favour of the resolution, who
voted against the resolution
and who did not vote or
participate

on such resolution

2" January, 2019 and 20™ January, 2021

The meeting was attended by all the Directors (list of
directors is as mentioned Above in para 7 of
Explanatory Statement and the resolution was passed
unanimously.

Explanatory Statement disclosing details of the scheme of compromise or

arrangement including:-

Parties involved in such
compromise or arrangement

“Transferor Companies”

1. MIA Infrastructure Private Limited,
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2. Wellkept Facility Management Services Private
Limited,

3. Acme Living Solutions Private Limited And

4. TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited
“Transferee Company”

TATA Realty and Infrastructure Limited

The Transferor Companies are Wholly Owned
Subsidiaries of Transferee Company

Appointed Date

1%t April, 2019

Effective Date

means the last of the dates on which the certified
copies or the authenticated copies of the order of
National Company Law Tribunal sectioning of the
Scheme, are filed with the Respective Registrar of
Companies by the Transferor Companies and the
Transferee Company. Any reference to this scheme to
the date of “coming into effect of this scheme” or
“effective date of this scheme” or scheme taking
effect, shall means the effective date;

Share Exchange Ratio and
other considerations, if any

The entire issued, subscribed and paid-up share
capital of the Transferor Companies is held by the
Transferee Company along with its nominee. So there
is no share exchange ratio involved in the scheme.
Upon the Scheme becoming effective, no shares of the
Transferee Company shall be allotted in lieu or
exchange of its holding in the Transferor Companies
and the share capital of the Transferor Companies
shall stand cancelled.

Summary of Valuation report
(if applicable) including basis
of valuation and fairness
opinion of the registered
valuer, if any, and the
declaration that the valuation
report is available for
inspection at  registered
office of

the Company.

As mentioned above, Transferor companies are the
wholly owned subsidiaries of Transferee company and
no shares being issued by transferee company to the
members of the transferor company, Therefore, no
valuation is required to be done.

Details of capital or debt
restructuring

The Scheme does not involve any capital or debt
restructuring.

Rationale for the
compromise or arrangement

Refer Point 3 of the Scheme.

Benefits of the compromise
or arrangement as perceived
by the Board of directors to
the company, members,
creditors and others.

Refer Point 3 of the Scheme.
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Amount due to unsecured
creditors as on 30t
November, 2018

Amount due to unsecured
creditors as on 28" February,
2021

Rs. 1,212/-

Rs. 0/-

Disclosure about effect of the

compromise or arrangement on.

Key Managerial personnel

No Effect

(KMP) (other than Directors)

No Effect as there is no KMP.

Directors

As the Transferor Companies are ceased to exist, the
question of any change in the director does not arise.

Promoters TATA Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Non-promoter members Nil

Depositors Not applicable

Creditors Creditors, if any, shall become the creditors of the

Transferee Company and paid off in the ordinary
course of business. No Effect

Debenture holders

- Not applicable

Deposit trustee & Debenture
Trustee

- Not applicable

Employees of the company

No Effect

Disclosure about effect of compromise or arrangement on material interest of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)and debenture trustee:

Directors Nil
Key Managerial personnel | -Not applicable
(KMP)

Debenture Trustee

Not applicable

Investigation or proceedings,
if

any, pending against the
company under the Act

- Nil

In addition to the documents annexed hereto, the copies of the following documents

will be open for inspection at

the Registered Office of the Company between 11:00

a.m. to 01:00 p.m. on all working days, except Saturdays, Sundays and Public
Holidays, up to 1 (one) day prior to the date of the Tribunal Convened Meeting’.

I.  Copies of the latest audited financial statements of Applicant Company.

Copy of the order of Tribunal dated 12th March, 2020 and 2nd November, 2020.

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Applicant Company.

The certificate issued by Auditor of the company to the effect that the
accounting treatment, if any, proposed in the scheme of compromise or
arrangement is in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under

Form No. GNL-1 filed by the Applicant Company with the Ministry of Corporate

II.
III.  Copy of Scheme of Compromise or Arrangement.
Iv.
V.
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.
VL.
Affairs, evidencing filing of the scheme.
VI,

Register of Directors and key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding.

A statement to the effect that
the persons to whom the
notice issued may vote in the
meeting either in person or
through Authorised
Representative.

The person to whom this notice is sent may vote in
the meeting either in person or through Authorised
Representative.
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11. The details of Acme Living Solutions Private Limited (Third Transferor Company):

Particulars

Third Transferor Company

Corporate Identification

Number (CIN)

U45209DL2008PTC178023

Permanent Account Number
(PAN)

AACCT8259R

Name of the company

Acme Living Solutions Private Limited

Date of Incorporation

13/05/2008

Type of the company

Private Company

Registered office address

C/O Tata Services Ltd., Jeevan Bharti, Tower - 1, 10th
Floor, 124, Connaught Circus, New Delhi - 110001.

e-mail address

trilsec@tatarealty.in

Summary of main object as
per the memorandum of
association and main
business carried on by the
company

Engaged in the business of real estate and
infrastructure facilities including allied/incidental
services related to real estate and infrastructure
business.

Details of change of name,
registered office and objects
of the company during the
last five years

There is no change of name, registered office and
objects of the Company during last five years.

Details of the capital
structure of the company
including authorised, issued,
subscribed and paid up Share
Capital

As per para 4 of the Explanatory Statement

Names of the promoters and
directors along with their
addresses

Promoter- Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Registered office: E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam
Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai- 400033

Director- As per para 7 of the Explanatory Statement

The date of the board
meeting at which the scheme
was approved by the board
of directors including the
name of

the directors who voted in
favour of the resolution, who
voted against the resolution
and who did not vote or
participate

on such resolution

2" January, 2019 and 20™ January, 2021

The meeting was attended by all the Directors (list of
directors is as mentioned Above in para 7 of
Explanatory Statement and the resolution was passed
unanimously.

Explanatory Statement disclosing details of the scheme of compromise or

arrangement including:-

Parties involved in such
compromise or arrangement

“Transferor Companies”
1. MIA Infrastructure Private Limited,

2. Wellkept Facility Management Services Private
Limited,
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3. Acme Living Solutions Private Limited And

4. TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited
“Transferee Company”

TATA Realty and Infrastructure Limited

The Transferor Companies are Wholly Owned
Subsidiaries of Transferee Company

Appointed Date

1%t April, 2019

Effective Date

means the last of the dates on which the certified
copies or the authenticated copies of the order of
National Company Law Tribunal sectioning of the
Scheme, are filed with the Respective Registrar of
Companies by the Transferor Companies and the
Transferee Company. Any reference to this scheme to
the date of “coming into effect of this scheme” or
“effective date of this scheme” or scheme taking
effect, shall means the effective date;

Share Exchange Ratio and
other considerations, if any

The entire issued, subscribed and paid-up share
capital of the Transferor Companies is held by the
Transferee Company along with its nominee. So there
is no share exchange ratio involved in the scheme.
Upon the Scheme becoming effective, no shares of the
Transferee Company shall be allotted in lieu or
exchange of its holding in the Transferor Companies
and the share capital of the Transferor Companies
shall stand cancelled.

Summary of Valuation report
(if applicable) including basis
of valuation and fairness
opinion of the registered
valuer, if any, and the
declaration that the valuation
report is available for
inspection at  registered
office of

the Company.

As mentioned above, Transferor companies are the
wholly owned subsidiaries of Transferee company and
no shares being issued by transferee company to the
members of the transferor company, Therefore, no
valuation is required to be done.

Details of capital or debt
restructuring

The Scheme does not involve any capital or debt
restructuring.

Rationale for the
compromise or arrangement

Refer Point 3 of the Scheme.

Benefits of the compromise
or arrangement as perceived
by the Board of directors to
the company, members,
creditors and others.

Refer Point 3 of the Scheme.

Amount due to unsecured
creditors as on 30t
November, 2018

Rs. 54,000/~
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Amount due to unsecured
creditors as on 28" February,
2021

Rs. 0/-

Disclosure about effect of the

compromise or arrangement on:

Key Managerial personnel

No Effect

(KMP) (other than Directors)

No Effect as there is no KMP.

Directors

As the Transferor Companies are ceased to exist, the
question of any change in the director does not arise.

Promoters TATA Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Non-promoter members Nil

Depositors Nil

Creditors Creditors, if any, shall become the creditors of the

Transferee Company and paid off in the ordinary
course of business. No Effect

Debenture holders -Nil
Deposit trustee & Debenture | -Nil
Trustee

Employees of the company | No Effect

Disclosure about effect of compromise or arrangement on material interest of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)and debenture trustee:

Directors Nil
Key Managerial personnel | -Not applicable
(KMP)

Debenture Trustee

Not applicable

Investigation or proceedings,
if

any, pending against the
company under the Act

- Nil

In addition to the documents annexed hereto, the copies of the following documents

will be open for inspection at

the Registered Office of the Company between 11:00

a.m. to 01:00 p.m. on all working days, except Saturdays, Sundays and Public
Holidays, up to 1 (one) day prior to the date of the Tribunal Convened Meeting’.

I.  Copies of the latest audited financial statements of Applicant Company.

II.  Copy of the order of Tribunal dated 12th March, 2020 and 2nd November, 2020.
III.  Copy of Scheme of Compromise or Arrangement.
IV.  Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Applicant Company.

V. The certificate issued by Auditor of the company to the effect that the
accounting treatment, if any, proposed in the scheme of compromise or
arrangement is in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

VI.  Form No. GNL-1 filed by the Applicant Company with the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, evidencing filing of the scheme.
VII.  Register of Directors and key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding.

Details of approvals, | The Company had filed a joint application before the

sanctions or no-objection(s),
if any, from regulatory or any

other governmental
authorities
required, received or

pending for the proposed
scheme of compromise or
arrangement

National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi on March
29, 2019. The National Company Law Tribunal, New
Delhi had granted dispensation from holding meetings
of the shareholders and creditors vide order dated
December 17, 20109.

The Company is not registered with any sectoral
regulators and as such no specific approval is
required to be obtained from any sectoral regulator.
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In compliance with the Directions of the National
Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi. The Company
has served notice of the application with the
Registrar of Companies, Regional Director, Income
Tax Authority and Official Liquidator. The
observation, received or to be received is being/ will
be addressed by the Company in due time.

Form GNL 1 filed by Company with Registrar of
Companies evidencing filing of scheme

A statement to the effect that
the persons to whom the
notice issued may vote in the
meeting either in person or
through Authorised
Representative.

The person to whom this notice is sent may vote in
the meeting either in person or through Authorised
Representative.

12. The details of TRIF Gurgaon

Housing Projects Private Limited (Fourth Transferor

Company):
Particulars Fourth Transferor Company
Corporate Identification | U74900DL2009PTC188404

Number (CIN)

Permanent Account Number
(PAN)

AADCT1808K

Name of the company

TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited

Date of Incorporation

13/03/2009

Type of the company

Private Company

Registered office address

C/O Tata Services Ltd., Jeevan Bharti, Tower - 1, 10th
Floor, 124, Connaught Circus, New Delhi - 110001.

e-mail address

trilsec@tatarealty.in

Summary of main object as
per the memorandum of
association and main
business carried on by the
company

Engaged in the Business of real estate and
infrastructure facilities including allied/incidental
services related to real estate and infrastructure
business

Details of change of name,
registered office and objects
of the company during the
last five years

There is no change of name, registered office and
objects of the Company during last five years.

Details of the capital
structure of the company
including authorised, issued,
subscribed and paid up Share
Capital

As per para 5 of the Explanatory Statement

Names of the promoters and
directors along with their
addresses

Promoter- Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Registered office: E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam
Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai- 400033

Director- As per para 7 of the Explanatory Statement
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The date of the board
meeting at which the scheme
was approved by the board
of directors including the
name of

the directors who voted in
favour of the resolution, who
voted against the resolution
and who did not vote or
participate

on such resolution

2" January, 2019 and 20™ January, 2021

The meeting was attended by all the Directors (list of
directors is as mentioned Above in para 7 of
Explanatory Statement and the resolution was passed
unanimously.

Explanatory Statement disclosing details of the scheme of compromise or

arrangement including:-

Parties involved in such
compromise or arrangement

“Transferor Companies”
1. MIA Infrastructure Private Limited,

2. Wellkept Facility Management Services Private
Limited,

3. Acme Living Solutions Private Limited And

4. TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited
“Transferee Company”

TATA Realty and Infrastructure Limited

The Transferor Companies are Wholly Owned
Subsidiaries of Transferee Company

Appointed Date

1% April, 2019

Effective Date

means the last of the dates on which the certified
copies or the authenticated copies of the order of
National Company Law Tribunal sectioning of the
Scheme, are filed with the Respective Registrar of
Companies by the Transferor Companies and the
Transferee Company. Any reference to this scheme to
the date of “coming into effect of this scheme” or
“effective date of this scheme” or scheme taking
effect, shall means the effective date;

Share Exchange Ratio and
other considerations, if any

The entire issued, subscribed and paid-up share
capital of the Transferor Companies is held by the
Transferee Company along with its nominee. So there
is no share exchange ratio involved in the scheme.
Upon the Scheme becoming effective, no shares of the
Transferee Company shall be allotted in lieu or
exchange of its holding in the Transferor Companies
and the share capital of the Transferor Companies
shall stand cancelled.

Summary of Valuation report
(if applicable) including basis
of valuation and fairness
opinion of the registered

As mentioned above, Transferor companies are the
wholly owned subsidiaries of Transferee company and
no shares being issued by transferee company to the
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valuer, if any, and the
declaration that the valuation
report is available for
inspection at  registered
office of the Company.

members of the transferor company, Therefore, no
valuation is required to be done.

Details of capital or debt
restructuring

The Scheme does not involve any capital or debt
restructuring.

Rationale for the
compromise or arrangement

Refer Point 3 of the Scheme.

Benefits of the compromise
or arrangement as perceived
by the Board of directors to
the company, members,
creditors and others.

Refer Point 3 of the Scheme.

Amount due to unsecured
creditors as on 30t
November, 2018

Amount due to unsecured
creditors as on 28" February,
2021

Rs. 54,000/-

Rs. 0/-

Disclosure about effect of the

compromise or arrangement on.

Key Managerial personnel

No Effect

(KMP) (other than Directors)

No Effect as there is no KMP.

Directors

As the Transferor Companies are ceased to exist, the
guestion of any change in the director does not arise.

Promoters TATA Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Non-promoter members Nil

Depositors Nil

Creditors Creditors, if any, shall become the creditors of the

Transferee Company and paid off in the ordinary
course of business. No Effect

Debenture holders -Nil
Deposit trustee & Debenture | -Nil
Trustee

Employees of the company | No Effect

Disclosure about effect of compromise or arrangement on material interest of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)and debenture trustee:

Directors Nil
Key Managerial personnel | -Not applicable
(KMP)

Debenture Trustee

Not applicable

Investigation or proceedings,
if

any, pending against the
company under the Act

- Nil

In addition to the documents annexed hereto, the copies of the following documents
will be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company between 11:00
a.m. to 01:00 p.m. on all working days, except Saturdays, Sundays and Public
Holidays, up to 1 (one) day prior to the date of the Tribunal Convened Meeting’.

L
II.
III.

Copies of the latest audited financial statements of Applicant Company.
Copy of the order of Tribunal dated 12% March, 2020 and 2" November, 2020.
Copy of Scheme of Compromise or Arrangement.
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Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Applicant Company.

V. The certificate issued by Auditor of the company to the effect that the
accounting treatment, if any, proposed in the scheme of compromise or
arrangement is in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

VI.  Form No. GNL-1 filed by the Applicant Company with the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, evidencing filing of the scheme.

VII.  Register of Directors and key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding.

Details of approvals, | The Company had filed a joint application before the

sanctions or no-objection(s),
if any, from regulatory or any
other governmental
authorities required, received
or pending for the proposed
scheme of compromise or
arrangement

National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi on March
29, 2019. The National Company Law Tribunal, New
Delhi had granted dispensation from holding meetings
of the shareholders and creditors vide order dated
December 17, 2019.

The Company is not registered with any sectoral
regulators and as such no specific approval is required
to be obtained from any sectoral regulator. In
compliance with the Directions of the National
Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi The Company has
served notice of the application with the Registrar of
Companies, Regional Director, Income Tax Authority
and Official Liquidator, observation, if any,received or
to be received is being / will be addressed by the
Company in compliance.

Form GNL 1 filed by Company with Registrar of
Companies evidencing filing of scheme

A statement to the effect that
the persons to whom the
notice issued may vote in the
meeting either in person or
through Authorised
Representative.

The person to whom this notice is sent may vote in
the meeting either in person or through Authorised
Representative.

13. The details of Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited (Transferee Company):

Particulars

Transferee Company

Corporate Identification

Number (CIN)

U70102MH2007PLC168300

Permanent Account Number
(PAN)

AACCT6242L

Name of the company

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Date of Incorporation

02/03/2007

Type of the company

Public Company

Registered office address

E Block, Voltas Premises,
Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400 033.

T B Kadam Marg,

e-mail address

trilsec@tatarealty.in

Website

www.tril.co.in

Summary of main object as
per the memorandum of
association and main

Engaged in the Business of real estate and
infrastructure facilities including allied/incidental
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business carried on by the
company

services related to real estate and infrastructure
business

Details of change of name,
registered office and objects
of the company during the
last five years

There is no change of name and objects of the
Company during last five years. However, the
registered office of the Transferee Company has been
shifted from Elphinstone Building, 2nd Floor, 10 Veer
Nariman Road, Fort, Mumbai — 400001 to E Block,
Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli,
Mumbai 400 033, with effect from January 16, 2019.

Details of the capital
structure of the company
including authorised, issued,
subscribed and paid up Share
Capital

As per para 6 of the Explanatory Statement

Names of the promoters and
directors along with their
addresses

Promoters- Tata Sons Private Limited

Registered office: Bombay House, 24 Homi Mody
Street, Mumbai 400001

Director- As per para 7 of the Explanatory Statement

The date of the board
meeting at which the scheme
was approved by the board
of directors including the
name of

the directors who voted in
favour of the resolution, who
voted against the resolution
and who did not vote or
participate

on such resolution

18" November, 2018 and 13" January, 2021

The meeting was attended by all the Directors (list of
directors is as mentioned Above in para 7 of
Explanatory Statement and the resolution was passed
unanimously.

Explanatory Statement disclosing details of the scheme of compromise or

arrangement including:-

Parties involved in such
compromise or arrangement

“Transferor Companies”
1. MIA Infrastructure Private Limited,

2. Wellkept Facility Management Services Private
Limited,

3. Acme Living Solutions Private Limited And

4. TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited
“Transferee Company”

TATA Realty and Infrastructure Limited

The Transferor Companies are Wholly Owned
Subsidiaries of Transferee Company

Appointed Date

15t April, 2019

Effective Date

means the last of the dates on which the certified
copies or the authenticated copies of the order of
National Company Law Tribunal sectioning of the
Scheme, are filed with the Respective Registrar of
Companies by the Transferor Companies and the
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TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Transferee Company. Any reference to this scheme to
the date of “coming into effect of this scheme” or
“effective date of this scheme” or scheme taking
effect, shall means the effective date;

Share Exchange Ratio and
other considerations, if any

Not Applicable being a Transferee Company.

Summary of Valuation report
(if applicable) including basis
of valuation and fairness
opinion of the registered
valuer, if any, and the
declaration that the valuation
report is available for
inspection at  registered
office of the Company.

Transferor companies are the wholly owned
subsidiaries of Transferee company and no shares
being issued by transferee company to the members
of the transferor company, Therefore, no valuation is
required to be done.

Details of capital or debt
restructuring

The Scheme does not involve any capital or debt
restructuring.

Rationale for the
compromise or arrangement

Refer Point 3 of the Scheme.

Benefits of the compromise
or arrangement as perceived
by the Board of directors to
the company, members,
creditors and others.

Also provided in the rational for amalgamation in Point
3 of the scheme.

Amount due to unsecured
creditors as on 30t
November, 2018

Amount due to unsecured
creditors as on 28" February,
2021

The aggregate amount of the dues to unsecured
creditors  (including unsecured Non-convertible
Debenture Holders) is Rs. 1,834,87,28,391/-

The aggregate amount of the dues to unsecured
creditors  (including unsecured Non-convertible
Debenture Holders) is Rs. 2622,92,29,266/-

Disclosure about effect of the

compromise or arrangement on:

Key Managerial personnel No Effect
(KMP) (other than Directors) | No Effect
Directors No Effect
Promoters No Effect
Non-promoter members No Effect
Depositors Not Applicable
Creditors No Effect
Debenture holders No Effect
Deposit trustee & Debenture | No Effect
Trustee

Employees of the company | No Effect

Disclosure about effect of compromise or arrangement on material interest of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)and debenture trustee:

Directors No Effect
Key Managerial personnel | No Effect
(KMP)

Debenture Trustee No Effect
Investigation or proceedings, | Nil

if any, pending against the
company under the Act
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TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

L
II.
III.
Iv.
V.

VI.

In addition to the documents annexed hereto, the copies of the following documents
will be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company between 11:00
a.m. to 01:00 p.m. on all working days, except Saturdays, Sundays and Public
Holidays, up to 1 (one) day prior to the date of the Tribunal Convened meeting.

These documents are also available on website of the Company, i.e., www.tril.co.in.

Copies of the latest audited financial statements of Applicant Company.

Copy of the order of Tribunal dated 12th March, 2020 and 2nd November, 2020.
Copy of Scheme of Compromise or Arrangement.

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Applicant Company.

The certificate issued by Auditor of the company to the effect that the
accounting treatment, if any, proposed in the scheme of compromise or
arrangement is in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Form No. GNL-1 filed by the Applicant Company with the Ministry of Corporate

Affairs, evidencing filing of the scheme.
VII.  Register of Directors and key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding.

Copy of Scheme  of
Compromise or Arrangement

Enclosed to this Notice.

Contracts or Agreements
material to the compromise
or arrangement

Nil

A statement to the effect that
the persons to whom the
notice issued may vote in the
meeting either in person or
through Authorised
Representative.

The person to whom this notice is sent may vote in
the meeting either in person or through Authorised
Representative.

SANJAY
DUTT

Sanjay Dutt
DIN: 05251670

Chairman appointed for the aforesaid Tribunal Convened Meeting

Date: June 21, 2021
Place: Mumbai
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THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

UNDER SECTION 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

OF

MIA INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

AND

WELLKEPT FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

AND

ACME LIVING SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

AND

TRIF GURGAON HOUSING PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

WITH

TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS, CREDITORS

1. PREAMBLE

This Scheme of Amalgamation is presented pursuant to the provisions of
Section 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
for Amalgamation of MIA Infrastructure Private Limited and Wellkept

Facilty Management Services Private Limited and Acme Living Solutions
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Private Limited and TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited with

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited.

2. Background and Description of Companies

L

a.

b.

TRANSFEROR COMPANIES: The following Transferor

Company hereinafter collectively called as “Transferor

Companies”.

MIA INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED, The First Transferor
Company (CIN: U74900MH2014PTC252385) was incorporated on
22nd January, 2014, under the Companies Act, 1956. The Registered
Office of the Company is situated at E Block, Voltas Premises, T B
Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033.

The First Transferor Company is engaged in the business of
development of infrastructure facilities including allied/incidental
services related to infrastructure business.

The First Transferor Company is wholly owned subsidiary of the

Transferee Company.

E-Mail ID: trilsec@tatarealty.in
Website: Not Applicable

WELLKEPT FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE
LIMITED, The  Second Transferor Company (CIN:
U93000MH2008PTC177346) was incorporated on 04th January, 2008
under the Companies Act, 1956. The Registered Office of the Company
is situated at E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli,
Mumbai - 400033.

The Second Transferor Company is engaged in the business of real
estate including allied/incidental services related to infrastructure

business.

E-Malil ID: trilsec@tatarealty.in
Website: Not Applicable

The Second Transferor Company is wholly owned subsidiary of the

Transferee Company.
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C.

1L

ACME LIVING SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED, The Third
Transferor ~Company (CIN: U45209DL2008PTC178023) was
incorporated on 13t May, 2008, under the Companies Act, 1956. The
Registered Office of the Company is situated at C/O Tata Services Ltd.,
Jeevan Bharti, Tower - 1, 10th Floor,124, Connaught Circus, New Delhi
-110001.

E-Mail ID: trilsec@tatarealty.in
Website: Not Applicable

The Third Transferor Company is engaged in the business of real estate
and infrastructure facilities including allied /incidental services related

to real estate and infrastructure business.

The Third Transferor Company is wholly owned subsidiary of the

Transferee Company.

. TRIF GURGAON HOUSING PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED, The

Fourth Transferor Company (CIN: U74900DL2009PTC188404) was
incorporated on 13th March, 2009 under the Companies Act, 1956. The
Registered Office of the Company is situated at C/O Tata Services Ltd.,
Jeevan Bharti, Tower - 1, 10th Floor,124, Connaught Circus, New Delhi
-110001.

The Fourth Transferor Company is engaged in the Business of real
estate and infrastructure facilities including allied/incidental services

related to real estate and infrastructure business.
E-Mail ID: trilsec@tatarealty.in
Website: Not Applicable

The Fourth Transferor Company is wholly owned subsidiary of the

Transferee Company.

TRANSFEREE COMPANY:

TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED, the Transferee
Company (CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300) was incorporated on 2nd
March, 2007, under the Companies Act, 1956. The Registered Office of the
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Company is situated at E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033.

The Transferee Company is engaged in the Business of real estate and
infrastructure facilities including allied /incidental services related to real

estate and infrastructure business.

E-Malil ID: trilsec@tatarealty.in

Website: www .tril.co.in

III.  This Scheme of Amalgamation provides for the Amalgamation of
the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company pursuant
to section 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013.

. Rational of the Company

The Transferee Company is holding the entire share capital of the
Transferor Companies. Both the Transferor and Transferee Companies
are engaged in the business of real estate and infrastructure facilities
including allied/incidental services related to real estate and
infrastructure business. The Amalgamation of Transferor Companies with

the Transferee Company would inter alia have following benefits:

a. Toreduce overlaps which are necessarily involved in running multiple
entities, to reduce administrative cost and multiple layer inefficiencies

so0 as to achieve operational and management efficiency.

b. Cost savings are expected to flow from more focused operational
efforts, rationalization, standardization and simplification of business
processes, and the elimination of duplication, and rationalization of

administrative expenses.

c. Simplifying corporate governance procedures, resulting in structural
efficiency, better utilization of capital and a simplified business

structure.

In view of the aforesaid, The Board of Directors of the Transferor
Companies and the Transferee Company have considered and

proposed the amalgamation of the entire undertaking, operations and
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businesses of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company
in order to benefit the stakeholders of all the Companies. Accordingly,
the Board of Directors of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee
Company have formulated this scheme of Amalgamation for the
transfer and vesting of entire undertaking and business of the
Transferor Companies with and into the Transferee Company
pursuant to the provisions of section 230 to section 232 and other

relevant provisions of the Act.

4. Parts of the Scheme:

This scheme of Amalgamation is divided into the following parts

ii.

ii.

iv.

Part I deals with definition of the terms used in the scheme of
Amalgamation and sets out the share capital of the Transferor

Companies and the Transferee Company;

Part II deals with the Transfer and vesting of Undertaking (as
hereinafter defined) of the Transferor Companies to and in the

Transferee Company;

Part III deals with the cancellation of entire issued, subscribed and
paid-up share capital of the respective Transferor Company, which

is held by the Transferee Company along with itsjoint shareholders

Part IV deals with the accounting treatment of the amalgamation

in the books of the Transferee Company.

Part V deals with the dissolution of the Transferor Companies and
the general terms and conditions applicable to this scheme of
amalgamation and other matters consequential and integrally

connected thereto.

The amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee

Company, pursuant to and in accordance with this Scheme, shall take

place with effect from the Appointed Date and shall be in accordance with

the relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 including but not

limited to Section 2(1B) and Section 47 thereof.
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5.

51

52

53

54

55

5.6

PARTI

DEFINITIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL
DEFINITIONS

In this scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the

following expressions shall have the following meaning:

“ACT” means the Companies Act, 2013 the rules and regulations
made thereunder and will include any statutory re-enactment or

amendment(s) thereto, from time to time;

“Appointed Date” means 015t April, 2019 or such other date as the
NCLT may direct.

“Board of Directors” or “Board” in relation to each of the Transferor
Company and Transferee Company as the case may be, means the
Board of Directors of such Company(s) and shall include a Committee
duly constituted and authorized for the purposes of matters pertaining

to the amalgamation, the Scheme and/or any other matter relating

thereto.

“Companies” means the Transferor Companies and the Transferee

Company referred collectively.

“Effective Date” means the last of the dates on which the certified
copies or the authenticated copies of the order of National Company
Law Tribunal sectioning of the Scheme, are filed with the Respective
Registrar of Companies by the Transferor Companies and the
Transferee Company. Any reference to this scheme to the date of

“coming into effect of this scheme” or “effective date of this scheme”

or scheme taking effect, shall means the effective date;

“Governmental Authority" means any applicable central, state or local
government, legislative body, regulatory or administrative authority,
agency or commission or any court, tribunal, board, bureau or
instrumentality thereof or arbitration or arbitral body having

jurisdiction over the territory of India including but not limited to
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5.7

5.8

59

5.10

511

512

5.13

Securities and Exchange of India, Stock Exchanges, Registrar of
Companies, competition Commission of India, National Company

Law Tribunal (to be constituted under Company Act, 2013)

“Employees” means the staff, workman and employees on the pay

roles of the Transferor Companies.

“NCLT” means the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench
having jurisdiction in relation to the First Transferor Company and
Second Transferor Company and The Transferee Company and
National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench having
jurisdiction in relation to Third Transferor Company and Fourth

Transferor Company and as the context may admit;

“Registrar of Companies” means the Registrar of Companies, Delhi

and /or Registrar of Companies, Mumbeai.

“SCHEME"” means this scheme of amalgamation, as amended or

modified in accordance with the provisions thereof.

“The First Transferor Company” means MIA INFRASTRUCTURE
PRIVATE LIMITED” (CIN: U74900MH2014PTC252385) a company
incorporated under the Provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and
having its Registered Office at E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam
Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033.

“The Second Transferor Company” means “WELLKEPT FACILITY
MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED” (CIN:
U93000MH2008PTC177346), a company incorporated under the
Provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and having its Registered Office
at E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
400033.

“The Third Transferor Company” means ACME LIVING
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED” (CIN:
U45209DL2008PTC178023), a company incorporated under the

Provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and having its Registered Office

34



5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

at Tata Services Ltd., Jeevan Bharti, Tower - 1, 10th Floor,124,
Connaught Circus, New Delhi - 110001.

“The Fourth Transferor Company” means “TRIF GURGAON
HOUSING PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED” (CIN:
U74900DL2009PTC188404), a company incorporated under the
Provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and having its Registered Office
at C/O Tata Services Ltd., Jeevan Bharti, Tower - 1, 10th Floor,124,
Connaught Circus, New Delhi - 110001.”

“The Transferor Company” means each of the First Transferor
Company, Second Transferor Company, Third Transferor Company

and Fourth Transferor Company, referred individually.

“The Transferor Companies” means the First and Second and Third

and Fourth Transferor Company, referred collectively.

“The Transferee Company” Means TATA REALTY AND
INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED” (CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300), a
company incorporated under the Provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 and having its Registered Office at E Block, Voltas Premises, T B
Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033.

“Undertaking” means the whole undertaking and the entire business
of the Transferor Company as going Concern, including (without

limitation):

All assets and properties of the Transferor Company as on the
Appointed Date i.e. all the undertakings, the entire business, all the
properties (tangible or intangible), offices, residential and other
premises, capital work in progress, furniture, fixture, office equipment,
investments of all kinds and in all forms, cash balances with banks,
loans, advances, contingent rights or benefits, receivables, benefit of
any deposits, financial assets, benefit of any security arrangements,
reversions, powers, authorities, allotments, approvals, permissions,
permits, rights, entitlements, guarantees, authorizations, approvals,
agreements, contracts, licenses, registrations, tenancies, benefits of all

taxes right to carry forward and set off unabsorbed losses and
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depreciation, privileges and rights under State tariff regulations and
under various laws, avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile, email,
interest, electricity and other services, reserves, provisions, funds,
benefits of all agreements, all records, files, papers, computer
programs, manuals, data, and other records, and all other interests of
whatsoever nature belonging to or in the ownership, power,
possession or control of or vested in or granted in favour of or held for
the benefit of or enjoyed by the Transferor Companies or which have
accrued to the Transferor Companies as on the Appointed Date,
whether in India or abroad, of whatsoever nature and wherever

situated (hereinafter referred to as the "Assets");

All liabilities including, without being limited to, secured and
unsecured debts (whether in Indian rupees or foreign currency),
sundry creditors, liabilities, bank loans, (including contingent
liabilities), duties and obligations of the Transferor Company, of every
kind, nature and description whatsoever and howsoever arising,

raised or incurred or utilized;

All agreements, rights, contracts, entitlements, permits, licenses,
approvals, authorizations, concessions, consents, quota rights,
engagements, arrangements, authorities, allotments, security
arrangements (to the extent provided herein), benefits of any
guarantees, reversions, powers and all other approvals of every kind,
nature and description whatsoever relating to the business activities

and operations of the Transferor Companies;

All earnest monies and/or security or other deposits paid by the

Transferor Company.

All permanent employees engaged by the Transferor Company as on

the Effective Date.

All quotas, rights, entitlements, export/import incentives and benefits
including advance licenses, bids, tenders (at any stage as it may be),
letters of intent, expressions of interest, development rights (whatever
vested or potential and whether under agreements or otherwise),

subsidies, tenancies in relation to office, benefit of any deposits
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privileges, all other rights, receivables, powers and facilities of every
kind, nature and description whatsoever, rights to use and avail of
telephones, telexes, facsimile connections and installations, utilities,
electricity and other services, provisions and benefits of all agreements,
contracts and arrangements, including technological licensing
agreements, and all other interests in connection with or relating

thereto;

g.  All intellectual property rights, trade marks created, developed or
invented by employees concentrated on the research, development or
marketing of products (including process development or

enhancement) in connection with the Transferor Company;

h.  All benefits and privileges under letters of permission and letters, of
approvals in respect all tax credits, including CENVAT credits,
refunds; reimbursements, claims, exemptions, benefits under service
tax laws, value added tax, purchase tax, sales tax, input credit under
GST or any other duty or tax or cess or imposts under central or state
law including sales tax deferrals, advance taxes, tax deducted at
source, tax credits, right to carry forward and set-off unabsorbed
losses, if any and depreciation, deductions and benefits under the
Income-tax Act, 1961, as well as any recognition of the In-house
Research and Development unit with the Department of Scientific &

Industrial Research or any Government Authority;

i. All terms and words not defined in this Scheme shall, unless
repugnant or contrary to the context or meaning thereof, have the same
meaning as ascribed to them under the Act and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations and byelaws, as the case may be, or any statutory

amendment(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force.

6. DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE

The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any
modification(s) approved or imposed or directed by the NCLT or
made as per Clause 20 of the Scheme, shall be effective from the

Appointed Date but shall be operative from the Effective Date.
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7. SHARE CAPITAL

A. The Authorised, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of MIA
INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED as on 31st March,

2018 was as under:

Particulars Amount in Rupees

Authorised Share Capital
28,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. | 2,80,00,000/-
10/- each
Total 2,80,00,000/-
Issued, Subscribed and

Paid-up Share Capital
27,70,000 Equity Shares of Rs. | 2,77,00,000/ -

10/ - each fully paid-up

Total 2,77,00,000/-

B. The Authorised, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of
WELLKEPT FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES
PRIVATE LIMITED as on 31st March, 2018 was as under:

Particulars Amount in Rupees

Authorised Share Capital
10,00,000/- Equity Shares of | 1,00,00,000/-
Rs. 10/- each.
Total 1,00,00,000/-
Issued, Subscribed and

Paid-up Share Capital
4,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. | 40,00,000/-

10/- each fully paid-up
Total 40,00,000/-

C. The Authorised, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of ACME
LIVING SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED as on 31st March,

2018 was as under:

Particulars Amount in Rupees
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Authorised Share Capital
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. | 5,00,000
10/- each
Total 5,00,000/-

Issued, Subscribed and
Paid-up Share Capital
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. | 5,00,000

10/- each fully paid-up

Total 5,00,000/-

D. The Authorised, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of TRIF
GURGAON HOUSING PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED as

on 31st March, 2018 was as under:

Particulars Amount in Rupees

Authorised Share Capital

50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. | 5,00,000/-
10/- each
Total 5,00,000/-
Issued, Subscribed and

Paid-up Share Capital
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. | 5,00,000/-

10/- each fully paid-up
Total 5,00,000/-

Subsequent to the above balance sheet date, there is no change
in the Capital Structure of Transferor Companies. Transferor
Companies are Wholly owned subsidiary of Transferee
Company. Entire Paid up share capital of the Transferor
Companies are held by the Transferee Company and itsjoint

shareholders.

The Authorised, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of
TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED as on
31st March, 2018 was as under:

Particulars Amount in Rupees
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Authorised Share Capital
2,00,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. | 20,00,00,00,000/-
10/- each.; and

1,00,00,00,000 5% Non-Cumulative
Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. | 10,00,00,00,000/ -
10/- each.
Total 30,00,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
Share Capital

10,17,30,76,920/ -
1,01,73,07,692 Equity Shares of Rs.

10/- each fully paid-up

Total 10,17,30,76,920/-

Subsequent to the above balance sheet date, there is change in the Capital
Structure of Transferee Company. The Revised Capital Structure of

Transferee Company as on 30th November, 2018 is as follows

Particulars Amount in

Rupees

Authorised Share Capital

3,00,00,00,000 Equity Shares 30,00,00,00,000/ -

of Rs. 10/- each.

Total 30,00,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and

Paid-up Share Capital
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1,01,73,07,692 Equity Shares 10,17,30,76,920/ -

of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-

up

Total 10,17,30,76,920/ -

Subsequent to the above, there is again change in the Capital Structure of
Transferee Company. The Revised Capital Structure of Transferee

Company as on 31st March, 2020 is as follows:

Particulars Amount in

Rupees

Authorised Share Capital

8,00,00,00,000 Equity Shares 80,00,00,00,000/ -

of Rs. 10/- each.

Total 80,00,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and

Paid-up Share Capital

1,61,73,07,692 Equity Shares 16,17,30,76,920/ -

of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-

up

Total 16,17,30,76,920/ -

PART II
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TRANSFER AND VESTING OF UNDERTAKING

8. TRANSFER OF UNDERTAKING

8.1

8.2

Upon coming into effect off this scheme and with the effect of the
appointed date, the Undertaking, pursuant to the section of this
scheme by NCLT under and accordance with the section of 230 to
232 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, shall stand
transferred and vested in and/or be deemed to have been
transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company as a going
concern without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing
from the Appointed Date; so as to become estates, assets, rights,
title, interests and authorities of the Transferee Company, by virtue

of and in the manner provided in this scheme.

Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 8.1 above, upon
coming into effect of this scheme and with effect from Appointed
Date, all its properties and assets, (Whether movable or immovable,
tangible or intangible), land and building, plant and machinery,
equipment, furniture, fixtures, vehicles, leasehold assets and other
properties, real, in possession or reversion, present and contingent
assets (whether tangible or intangible) of whatsoever nature, all the
debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor
Companies of every description and also including, without
limitation, all the movables and immovable properties and assets of
the Transferor Companies comprising amongst other investments,
vehicles, furniture and fixtures, computers, office equipment,
electrical installations, water connections, telephones, telex,
facsimile and other communication facilities and business licenses,
permits, authorizations, if any, rights and benetfits of all agreements
(including all such contracts, scheme, deeds, bonds and other
instruments of whatsoever nature to which the Transferor
Companies are party) and all other interests, rights and powers of
every kind, nature and description whatsoever, privileges, liberties,
easements, advantages, benefits and approvals, advance and other
taxes paid to the authorities, brand names, trademarks, copy rights,
lease, tenancy rights, statutory permissions, consents and
registrations, and all other Intellectual Property Rights and other

intangible assets of whatsoever nature, pursuant to the Order of the
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8.3

8.4

8.5

NCLT and pursuant to provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and without
further act, instrument or deed, but subject to the charges affecting
the same be transferred and/or deemed to be transferred to and
vested in Transferee Company on a going concern basis so as to

become the assets and liabilities of the Transferee Company.

Inrespect of all the movable assets of the Transferor Companies and
the assets which are otherwise capable of transfer by physical
delivery or endorsement and delivery, including cash on hand,
shall be so transferred to Transferee Company and deemed to have
been physically handed over by physical delivery or by
endorsement and delivery, as the case may be, to Transferee
Company to the end and intent that the property and benefit
therein possess to Transferee Company with effect from the

Appointed Date.

In respect of any assets of the Transferor Companies other than
those mentioned in Clause 8.3 above, including actionable claims,
sundry debtors, outstanding loans, advances recoverable in cash or
kind or for value to be received and deposits with the Government,
Semi-Government, local and other authorities and bodies and
customers, The Transferee Company may, issue notices in such
form as The Transferee Company may deem fit and proper stating
that pursuant to the NCLT having sanctioned this Scheme between
the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company under
Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the relevant debt,
loan, advance or other asset, to be or made good or held on account
of the Transferee Company, as the person entitled thereto, to the
end and intent that the right of the Transferor Companies to recover
or realise the same stands transferred to the Transferee Company
and that appropriate entries should be passed in their respective

books to record the aforesaid changes.

With effect from the Appointed Date, all debts, liabilities,
contingent liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor
Companies, as on the Appointed Date whether provided for or not
in the books of accounts of the Transferor Companies and all other
liabilities which may accrue or arise after the Appointed date but

which relates to the period on or upto the day of the Appointed
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8.6

8.7

8.8

Date shall, pursuant to the Order of the NCLT under section 230 to
232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
without any further act or deed, be transferred or deemed to be
transferred to and vested in and assumed by the Transferee
Company pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (or such other applicable provisions of
Companies Act, 2013), so as to become the liabilities of the
Transferee Company on the same terms and conditions as were

applicable to Transferor Companies.

the existing securities, mortgages, charges, encumbrances or liens,
if any, as on the Appointed Date and those created by the
Transferor Companies after the Appointed Date over the assets of
the Transferor Companies transferred to the Transferee Company
shall, after the Effective Date, continue to relate and attach to such
assets or any part thereof to which they are related or attached prior

to the Effective Date.

All the licenses, permits, entitlements, approvals, permissions,
registrations, incentives, tax deferrals, exemptions, benefits
(including Sales Tax and Service Tax), subsidies, tenancy rights,
liberties, special statues and other benefits or privileges enjoyed or
conferred upon or held or availed of by the Transferor Companies
and all rights and benefits that have accrued or which may accrue
to the Transferor Companies whether on, or before or after the
Appointed Date including income tax benefits and exemptions,
shall under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (or such other applicable provisions of Companies Act,
2013) and all other applicable provisions of applicable law, if any
without any further act, instrument or deed, cost or charge, be and

stand transferred to the Transferee Company.

Without prejudice to the provisions of the forgoing clauses and
upon the effectiveness of this scheme, the Transferor Companies
and the Transferee Company shall execute all such instruments or
documents or to do all such acts, deeds, as may be required
including filing of necessary particulars and/or modification(s) of
charge with the Registrar of Companies to give formal effect to the

above provisions, if required.
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8.9

This Scheme has been drawn up to comply with the conditions
relating to “ Amalgamation” as specified under Section 2(1B) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961. If any terms or provisions of the scheme
is/are inconsistent with the provisions of the said Section 2(1B),
such provisions of the said Section 2(1B) shall prevail and the
scheme shall stand modified to the extent necessary to comply with
the said section. Such modification will, however not affect the

other parts of the scheme.

9. CONTRACTS, DEEDS, ETC.

9.1

9.2

9.3

Upon the Coming into effect of the Scheme, all contracts, deeds,
bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements, assurances and other
instrument of whatsoever nature to which the Transferor
Companies are party or to the Benefit of which the Transferee
Company may be eligible, and which are substituting or have effect
immediately before the Effective Date, shall continue in full force
and effected by, for or against or in favour of, as the case may be,
the Transferee Company and may be enforced as fully, effectually
as if, instead of the Transferor Company had been party or

beneficiary or oblige or obligor thereto or thereunder.

Without prejudice to the provisions of this Scheme and
notwithstanding the fact the vesting of Undertaking occurs by
virtue of Scheme itself, the Transferee Company may, any time
after coming into effect of this Scheme in accordance with the
provisions hereof, if so required under any law or otherwise, take
such actions and execute such deeds (including deeds of
adherence), confirmations or other writings or arrangement to
which the Transferor Companies are the Party or any writings as
may be necessary in order to give formal effect to the provisions of
this Scheme, be deemed to be authorised to execute any of such
writings on behalf of the Transferor Company and to carry out or
perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on

the part of the Transferee Company.

For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality
of the foregoing, it is clarified that upon the coming into effect of
this Scheme, all consents, permissions, licences, certificates,
clearances, authorities, power of attorney given by, issued to or

executed in favour of the Transferor Company, shall without any
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10.

further act or deed, stand transferred to the Transferee Company,
as if the same were originally given by, issued to or executed in
favour of the Transferee Company, and the Transferee Company
shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and duties
thereunder, and the rights and benefits under the same shall be
available to the Transferee Company. The Transferee Company
shall receive relevant approvals for the concerned Government

Authorities as may be necessary in this behalf.
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On and form the Appointed Date, all suits, actions, claims and legal
proceedings by or against the Transferor Company pending
and/or arising on or before Effective Date shall be constituted
and/or enforced as desired by the Transferee Company and on or
from the Effective Date, shall be continued and/or enforced by or
against the Transferee Company as effectually and in the same
manner and to the same extent as if the same had been originally
instituted and/or pending and/ or arising by or against the
Transferee Company. On and From the Effective Date, the
Transferee Company shall have the right to initiate, defend,
compromise or otherwise deal with any legal proceedings relating
to the Undertaking, in the same manner and to same extent as
would or might have been initiated by the Transferor Company as
the case may be, had the scheme not be made; If any suit, appeal or
other proceedings relating to the Undertaking, of whatever nature
by or against the Transferor Company be pending, the same shall
not be abate or discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected
by reason of the amalgamation of the Undertaking or by anything
contained in this Scheme but the proceedings may be continued,
prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferor Company as

if the Scheme has not been made.

11. EMPLOYEES

111

All the employees of the Transferor Companies, if any, who are in
service on the date immediately preceding the Effective Date shall,
on and from the Effective Date become and be engaged as the
employees of the Transferee Company, without any break or
interruption in service as a result of the transfer and on terms and

conditions not less favourable than those on which they are
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11.2

11.3

11.4

engaged by the Transferor Companies immediately preceding the
Effective Date. Services of the Employees of the Transferor
Companies shall be taken into account from the date of their
respective appointment with the Transferor Companies for the
purposes of all retirement benefits and all other entitlements for
which they may be eligible. Transferee Company further agrees
that for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation,
if any, such past services with the Transferor Companies shall also
be taken into account.
The services of such employees shall not be treated as being
broken or interrupted for the purpose of Provident Fund or
Gratuity or Superannuation or other statutory purposes and for
all purposes will be reckoned from the date of their respective
appointments with the Transferor Companies.
It is provided that as far as the Provident Fund and pension
and/ or Superannuation Fund or any other special fund created or
existing for the benefit of the staff, workmen and other employees
of the Transferor Companies are concerned, upon the Scheme
becoming effective, Transferee Company shall stand substituted
for the Transferor Companies in respect of the employees
transferred for all purposes whatsoever relating to the
administration or operation of such Funds or Trusts or in relation
to the obligation to make contribution to the said Funds or Trust
in accordance with the provisions of such Funds or Trust as
provided in the respective Trust Deeds or other documents. It is
the aim and the intent of the Scheme that all the rights, duties,
powers and obligations of the Transferor Companies in relation to
such Funds or Trusts shall become those of the Transferee
Company. The Trustee including the Board of Directors of the
Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company or through
any Committee/person duly authorised by the Board of Directors
in this regard shall be entitled to adopt such course of action in
this regard as may be advised, provided however, that there shall
be no discontinuation or breakage in the services of employees of
the Transferor Companies.
With effect from the first of the dates of filing of this Scheme with
NCLT and up to and including the Effective Date, the Transferor

Companies shall not vary or modify the terms and conditions of
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employment of any of its employees, except with the written

consent of the Transferee Company.

12. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS UNTIL EFFECTIVE DATE

12.1

12.2

12.3

124

With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the
Effective Date:

Transferor Company shall carry on and shall be deemed to have
carried on all its business and activities as hitherto and shall hold
and stand possessed of and shall be deemed to have held and stood
possessed of the Undertaking on account of, and for the benefit of

and in trust for, the Transferee Company.

All the profits or income accruing or arising to the Transferor
Company, and all expenditure or losses arising or incurred
(including all taxes, if any, paid or accruing in respect of any profits
and income) by the Transferor Company shall, for all purposes, be
treated and be deemed to be and accrue as the profits or income or
as the case may be, expenditure or losses (including taxes) of the

Transferee Company.

Any of the rights, powers, authorities and privileges attached or
related or pertaining to and exercised by or available to the
Transferor Company shall be deemed to have been exercised by the
Transferor Company for and on behalf of and as agent for the

Transferee Company.

Similarly, any of the obligations, duties and commitments attached,
related or pertaining to the Undertaking that have been undertaken
or discharged by the Transferor Company shall be deemed to have
been undertaken or discharged for and on behalf of and as agent

for the Transferee Company.

With effect from the first of the date of filing of this Scheme with
the NCLT and up to and including the Effective Date:

The Transferor Company shall preserve and carry on its business
and activities with reasonable diligence and business prudence and
shall not undertake any additional financial commitments of any
nature whatsoever, borrow any amounts nor incur any other

liabilities or expenditure, issue any additional guarantees,

48



12.5

indemnities, letters of comfort or commitments either for itself or
on behalf of its group Company or any third party or sell, transfer,
alienate, charge, mortgage or encumber or deal with the
Undertaking or any part thereof save and except in each case in the
following circumstances:

i.  if the same is in its ordinary course of business as carried on

by it as on the date of filing this Scheme with NCLT; or

ii.  if the same is permitted by this Scheme; or

iii.  if consent of the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company

has been obtained.

The Transferor Company shall not take, enter into, perform or
undertake, as applicable (i) any material decision in relation to its
business and operations other than decisions already taken prior to
approval of the Scheme by the respective Board of Directors (ii) any
agreement or transaction; and (iii) any new business, or discontinue
any existing business or change the capacity of facilities.:(iv) such
other matters as the Transferee Company may notify from time to
time save and except in each case in the following circumstances:
a.  if the same is in its ordinary course of business as carried on
by it as on the date of filing this Scheme with NCLT; or
b.  if the same is permitted by this Scheme; or
c.  if consent of the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company

has been obtained.
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13. Treatment with Taxes

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

Tax liabilities under the Income-tax Act, 1961, Goods and Service
Tax Act 2017, Wealth Tax Act, 1957, Customs Act, 1962, Central
Excise Act, 1944, Maharashtra Value Added Tax Act, 2002, Central
Sales Tax Act, 1956, any other state Sales Tax /Value Added Tax
laws, service tax, luxury tax, stamp laws or other applicable laws/
regulations (hereinafter in this Clause referred to as “Tax Laws")
dealing with taxes/ duties/ levies allocable or related to the
business of the Transferor Company to the extent not provided for
or covered by tax provision in the accounts made as on the date
immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall be transferred to

Transferee Company.

All taxes (including income tax, Goods and Service Tax, wealth tax,
sales tax, excise duty, customs duty, service tax, luxury tax, VAT,
etc.) paid or payable by the Transferor Company in respect of the
operations and/or the profits of the business on and from the
Appointed Date, shall be on account of the Transferee Company
and, insofar as it relates to the tax payment(including without
limitation income tax, Goods and Service Tax, wealth tax, sales tax,
excise duty, customs duty, service tax, luxury tax, VAT, etc.),
whether by way of deduction at source, advance tax or otherwise
howsoever, by the Transferor Company in respect of the profits or
activities or operation of the business on and from the Appointed
Date, the same shall be deemed to be the corresponding item paid
by the Transferee Company, and shall, in all proceedings, be dealt
with accordingly.

Without prejudice to the generality of the above, all benefits
including under the income tax, Goods and Service Tax, sales tax,
excise duty, customs duty, service tax, luxury tax, VAT, etc., to
which the Transferor Company are entitled to in terms of the
applicable Tax Laws of the Union and State Governments, shall be

available to and vest in the Transferee Company.

During the Period between the Appointed Date and the Effective
Date, the Transferor Companies shall continue to do all acts,
necessary and in connection with all tax assessment proceedings/

appeals of whatsoever nature, pending and/ or arising by or against
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13.5

the transferor Companies. With Effect from the Effective Date, the
Tax proceedings shall be continued and enforced by and against the

Transferee Company in accordance with applicable law.

The Transferee Company shall be entitled to file/revise its income
tax, Goods and Service Tax, sales tax, excise duty, customs duty,
service tax, luxury tax, VAT, etc. returns if required, and shall have
right to claim refunds, Goods and Service Tax Credit, CENVAT
credit or any other credits etc. if any, as may be required,

consequent to this Scheme becoming effective.

14. SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

Subject to the terms of this Scheme, the transfer and vesting of the
Undertaking of the Transferor Company under Clause 8 of this
Scheme shall not affect any transactions or proceedings already
concluded by the Transferor Company on or before the Appointed
Date or concluded after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date,
to the end and intent that the Transferee Company accepts and
adopts all acts, deeds and things made, done and executed by the
Transferor Company as acts, deeds and things made, done and

executed by or on behalf of the Transferee Company.

PART III

15. CANCELLATION OF SHARES

15.1 The entire issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the

15.2

Transferor Company is held by the Transferee Companies along
with itsJoint Shareholders. Upon the scheme becoming effective, no
shares of the Transferee Company shall be allotted in lieu or
exchange of its holding in the Transferor Companies and the Paid

up share capital of the Transferor Companies shall stand cancelled.

The Shares or the Share Certificate of the Transferor Companies
shall, without any further application, act, instrument, or deed, be
deemed to have been automatically cancelled and be of no effect on

and from the Effective Date.
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16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

17.

PART IV

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT AND DIVIDENDS

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the
Appointed Date, for the purpose of accounting for and dealing with the
value of the assets and liabilities in the books of the Transferee
Company, all assets and liabilities recorded in the books of the
Transferor Company and transferred to and vested in the Transferee
Company pursuant to this scheme shall be recorded by the Transferee
Company as per the pooling of interest method specified in Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 103 and other applicable Indian
Accounting Standards, in terms of Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 for the purpose of accounting for amalgamation.

Subject to provisions of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall
abide by Indian Accounting Standards i.e. Ind AS 103 and others issued
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

The amalgamation of Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company in terms of this Scheme shall take place with effect from the
Appointed Date and shall be in accordance with the provisions of
Section 2(1B) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Inter Company balances shall be cancelled.

Comparative accounting period presented in the financial statements of
Transferee Company shall be restated for the accounting impact of
amalgamation, as stated above.

The identity of reserves of the Transferor Companies, if any, shall be
preserved and they shall appear in the financial statements of the
Transferee Company in the same form and manner in which they
appeared in the financial statements of the Transferor Company prior
to this Scheme becoming effective.

DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND

17.1 During the period between the Appointed Date and up to and
including the Effective Date, the Transferor Company shall not
declare any dividend without the prior written consent of the Board

of Directors of the Transferee Company.

17.2 For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby declared that nothing in the

Scheme shall prevent the Transferee Company from declaring and
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18.

19.

20.

paying dividends, whether interim or final, to its equity
shareholders as on the Record Date for the purpose of dividend and
the shareholders of the Transferor Company shall not be entitled to
dividend, if any, declared by the Transferee Company prior to the
Effective Date.

PART V

DISSOLUTION OF TRANSFEROR COMPANIES AND GENERAL
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

On the coming into effect of this Scheme, the Transferor Company shall
stand dissolved without winding-up, and the Board of Directors and any
committees thereof of the Transferor Company shall without any further

act, instrument or deed be and stand dissolved.

VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS, ETC.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the resolutions, if any,
of the Transferor Company, which are valid and subsisting on the
Effective Date, shall continue to be valid and subsisting and be
considered as resolutions of the Transferee Company and if any
such resolutions have any monetary limits approved under the
provisions of the Act, or any other applicable statutory provisions,
then the said limits shall be added to the limits, if any, under like
resolutions passed by the Transferee Company and shall constitute

the aggregate of the said limits in the Transferee Company.

MODIFICATION OF SCHEME

The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company through
their respective Boards of Directors including Committees of
Directors or other persons, duly authorised by the respective
Boards in this regard, may make, or assent to, any alteration or
modification to this Scheme or to any conditions or limitations,
which the NCLT or any other Competent Authority may deem fit
to direct, approve or impose and may give such directions
including an order of dissolution of the Transferor Company
without process of winding up as they may consider necessary, to
settle any doubt, question or difficulty, arising under the scheme or

in regard to its implementation or in any manner connected
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therewith and to do and to execute all such acts, deeds, matters and
things necessary for putting this Scheme into effect, or to review
the portion relating to the satisfaction of the conditions to this
scheme and if necessary, to waive any of those (to the extent

permitted under law) for bringing this scheme into effect.

21. FILING OF APPLICATIONS

The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall use
their best efforts to make and file all applications and petitions
under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Act, before the respective NCLT having jurisdiction for sanction of
this Scheme under the provisions of law, and shall apply for such

approvals as may be required under law.

22. APPROVALS

The Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of
the Scheme, to apply to any Governmental Authority, if required,
under any law for such consents and approvals which the
Transferee Company may require to own the Undertaking and to

carry on the business of the Transferor Company.

23. SCHEME CONDITIONAL UPON SANCTIONS, ETC.

23.1 This Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

23.2 The Scheme being agreed to by the requisite majority of the
respective classes of members and/or creditors of the Transferor
Company and of the Transferee Company as required under the Act
and the requisite orders of the Jurisdictional NCLT being obtained;

and
23.3 The certified copies of the orders of the Jurisdictional NCLT

sanctioning this Scheme being filed with the Registrar of Companies,

Maharashtra, Mumbai and the Registrar of Companies, New Delhi.
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24. COSTS, CHARGES, EXPENSES AND STAMP DUTY

All costs, charges and expenses (including any taxes and duties)
incurred or payable by the Transferor Company and Transferee
Company in relation to or in connection with this Scheme and
incidental to the completion of the amalgamation of the Transferor
Company with the Transferee Company in pursuance of this
Scheme, including stamp duty on the orders of NCLT, if any, and
to the extent applicable and payable, shall be borne and paid by the

Transferee Company.
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Chartered Accountants
- Indiabulls Finance Centre
Delo‘tte Tower 3, 27t — 32nd Floor
= Senapati Bapat Marg
Haskins & SellsLLP Elphinstone Road (West)
Mumbai - 400 013
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6185 4000
Fax: +91 22 6185 4001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of MIA Infrastructure Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of MIA Infrastructure Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows

and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and its
loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Material uncertainty related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2(b) to the Ind AS financial statements, wherein the events or conditions,
along with other matters as set forth in the said note, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, the
Ind AS financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis for the
reasons stated in the said Note.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Director’s report which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report.

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27'-32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400013, Maharashtra, India.
(LLP Identification No. AAB-8737) 74
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e Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

e If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

¢« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Ind AS financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent applicable
that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) The matter described in the Material uncertainty related to Going Concern section above, in
our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.
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f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

g) Reporting on the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls is not applicable to the company
in view of the exemption available to the company in terms of the notification no. G.S.R.
583(E) dated 13 June 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India,
read with general circular No. 08/2017 dated 25 July 2017.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company being a private company, Section 197 of the Act related to managerial
remuneration is not applicable.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii.. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

Rajesh K. Hiranandani

Partner
(Membership No. 36920)

UDIN: 20036920AAAABK1936
Mumbai, 17 June 2020
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ANNEXURE “A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section of
our report of even date)

(i) The Company does not have any fixed assets and hence reporting under clause (i) of the CARO
2016 is not applicable.

(ii) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) of the CARO
2016 is not applicable.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees and hence
reporting under clause (iv) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposit during the year as provided under Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013. There are no unclaimed deposits any time during the year.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Income-
tax, Goods & Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the
appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, Goods & Services Tax,
cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Goods & Services Tax as on 31 March 2020 on account of
disputes.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The Company
has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks and government or has
not issued any debentures. Hence reporting under clause (viii) of CARO 2016 is not applicable
to the Company.

(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the CARO
2016 Order is not applicable.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not required to have and does not have any managerial personnel and hence the reporting under
clause of the CARO 2016 Order for payment of managerial remuneration under Section 197 read
with Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable.
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(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO 2016
Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of CARO
2016 is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of
its holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Rajesh K. Hiranandani

Partner
(Membership No. 36920)
UDIN: 20036920AAAABK1936
Mumbai, 17 June 2020
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Chartered Accountants
- Indiabulls Finance Centre
Delo‘tte Tower 3, 27t — 32nd Floor
= Senapati Bapat Marg
Haskins & SellsLLP Elphinstone Road (West)
Mumbai - 400 013
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6185 4000
Fax: +91 22 6185 4001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Wellkept Facility Management Services Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Wellkept Facility Management
Services Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of

Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and its
loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Ind AS financial statements.

Material uncertainty related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2(b) to the Ind AS financial statements, wherein the events or conditions,
along with other matters as set forth in the said note, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, the
Ind AS financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis for the
reasons stated in the said Note.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Director’s report which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report.

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27'-32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400013, Maharashtra, India.
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e Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

e If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

¢« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Ind AS financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent applicable
that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) The matter described in the Material uncertainty related to Going Concern section above, in
our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.
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f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

g) Reporting on the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls is not applicable to the company
in view of the exemption available to the company in terms of the notification no. G.S.R.
583(E) dated 13 June 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India,
read with general circular No. 08/2017 dated 25 July 2017.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company being a private company, Section 197 of the Act related to managerial
remuneration is not applicable.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii.. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

Rajesh K. Hiranandani

Partner
(Membership No. 36920)
UDIN: 20036920AAAABM3474
Mumbai, 17 June 2020
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ANNEXURE “A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section of
our report of even date)

(i) The Company does not have any fixed assets and hence reporting under clause (i) of the CARO
2016 is not applicable.

(ii) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) of the CARO
2016 is not applicable.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees and hence
reporting under clause (iv) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposit during the year as provided under Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013. There are no unclaimed deposits any time during the year.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Income-
tax, Goods & Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the
appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, Goods & Services Tax,
cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Goods & Services Tax as on 31 March 2020 on account of
disputes.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The Company
has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks and government or has
not issued any debentures. Hence reporting under clause (viii) of CARO 2016 is not applicable
to the Company.

(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the CARO 2016 Order
is not applicable.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not required to have and does not have any managerial personnel and hence the reporting under
clause of the CARO 2016 Order for payment of managerial remuneration under Section 197 read
with Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable.
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(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO 2016
Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is
in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of CARO
2016 is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of
its holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Rajesh K. Hiranandani

Partner
(Membership No. 36920)

UDIN: 20036920AAAABM3474
Mumbai, 17 June 2020
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Chartered Accountants
- Indiabulls Finance Centre
Delo‘tte Tower 3, 27t — 32nd Floor
= Senapati Bapat Marg
Haskins & SellsLLP Elphinstone Road (West)
Mumbai - 400 013
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6185 4000
Fax: +91 22 6185 4001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Acme Living Solutions Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Acme Living Solutions Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows

and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and its
loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Material uncertainty related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2(b) to the Ind AS financial statements, wherein the events or conditions,
along with other matters as set forth in the said note, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, the
Ind AS financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis for the
reasons stated in the said Note.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Director’s report which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report.

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27'-32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400013, Maharashtra, India.
(LLP Identification No. AAB-8737) 149



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

e Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

e If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

¢« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Ind AS financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent applicable
that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) The matter described in the Material uncertainty related to Going Concern section above, in
our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.
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f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

g) Reporting on the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls is not applicable to the company
in view of the exemption available to the company in terms of the notification no. G.S.R.
583(E) dated 13 June 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India,
read with general circular No. 08/2017 dated 25 July 2017.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company being a private company, Section 197 of the Act related to managerial
remuneration is not applicable.

i)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii.. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

Rajesh K. Hiranandani

Partner
(Membership No. 36920)

UDIN: 20036920AAAABI5387
Mumbai, 17 June 2020
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ANNEXURE “A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section of
our report of even date)

(i) The Company does not have any property plant and equipment hence reporting under clause (i)
of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

(ii) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) of the CARO
2016 is not applicable.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees and hence
reporting under clause (iv) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposit during the year as provided under Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013. There are no unclaimed deposits any time during the year.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Income-
tax, Goods & Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the
appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, Goods & Services Tax,
cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Goods & Services Tax as on 31 March 2020 on account of
disputes.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The Company
has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks and government or has
not issued any debentures. Hence reporting under clause (viii) of CARO 2016 is not applicable
to the Company.

(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the CARO 2016 Order
is not applicable.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not required to have and does not have any managerial personnel and hence the reporting under
clause of the CARO 2016 Order for payment of managerial remuneration under Section 197 read
with Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable.

153



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO 2016
Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is
in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of CARO
2016 is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of its
holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons connected with them and hence provisions
of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi)The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Rajesh K. Hiranandani

Partner
(Membership No. 36920)

UDIN: 20036920AAAABI5387
Mumbai, 17 June 2020
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Chartered Accountants
- Indiabulls Finance Centre
Delo‘tte Tower 3, 27t — 32nd Floor
= Senapati Bapat Marg
Haskins & SellsLLP Elphinstone Road (West)
Mumbai - 400 013
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6185 4000
Fax: +91 22 6185 4001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows

and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and its
loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Material uncertainty related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2(b) to the Ind AS financial statements, wherein the events or conditions,
along with other matters as set forth in the said note, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, the
Ind AS financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis for the
reasons stated in the said Note.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Director’s report which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report.

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27'-32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400013, Maharashtra, India.
(LLP Identification No. AAB-8737) 184
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e Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

e If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

185



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

¢« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Ind AS financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent applicable
that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) The matter described in the Material uncertainty related to Going Concern section above, in
our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

186



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

g) Reporting on the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls is not applicable to the company
in view of the exemption available to the company in terms of the notification no. G.S.R.
583(E) dated 13 June 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India,
read with general circular No. 08/2017 dated 25 July 2017.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company being a private company, Section 197 of the Act related to managerial
remuneration is not applicable.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii.. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

Rajesh K. Hiranandani

Partner
(Membership No. 36920)
UDIN: 20036920AAAABL8765
Mumbai, 17 June 2020
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ANNEXURE “A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section of
our report of even date)

(i) The Company does not have any fixed assets and hence reporting under clause (i) of the CARO
2016 is not applicable.

(ii) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) of the CARO
2016 is not applicable.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees and hence
reporting under clause (iv) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposit during the year as provided under Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013. There are no unclaimed deposits any time during the year.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Income-
tax, Goods & Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the
appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, Goods & Services Tax,
cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Goods & Services Tax as on 31 March 2020 on account of
disputes.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The Company
has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks and government or has
not issued any debentures. Hence reporting under clause (viii) of CARO 2016 is not applicable
to the Company.

(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the CARO 2016 Order
is not applicable.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not required to have and does not have any managerial personnel and hence the reporting under
clause of the CARO 2016 Order for payment of managerial remuneration under Section 197 read
with Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable.
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(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO 2016
Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is
in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of CARO
2016 is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of
its holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Rajesh K. Hiranandani

Partner
(Membership No. 36920)

UDIN: 20036920AAAABL8765
Mumbai, 17 June 2020
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B"” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration Nao. 117366W/W-100018)

g ehla

Kalpesh J. Mehta
Partner
(Membership No.48791)

Mumbai: May 08, 2019
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that:

a. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

b. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

c. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the criteria for internal financial control aover
financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

L%ng@ (la

Kalpesh J. Mehta

Partner
Membership No. 48791
Mumbai: May 08, 2019
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(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of
the CARQO 2016 Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the

requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
CARO 2016 Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanation given to us, during the year the Company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of CARO 2016 is
not applicable to the Company,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or directors of its holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons connected with
them and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

& e flo-
Kalpesh J. Mehta

Partner
Membership No. 48791

Mumbai: May 08, 2019

210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LTD.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR
2018-19

296

ofe



H d
Deloitte Lotus Corporae Pk
] 1* Floor, Wing A- G
Haskins & SelisLLP CT Ho.57h oy Coxc

Qff Western Express Highway
Goregaon {East}

tdumbal - 400 063
taharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 5245 1000
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT sz: +97 22 524511001

To The Members of Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Tata
Realty and Infrastructure Limited (“the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) which includes the Group’s share
of loss in its joint ventures, which comprise the Consclidated Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2019, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Staterent of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information {hereinafter referred to as "the
consofidated Ind AS financial statements")

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, and based on the consideration of reports of the joint ventures referred to in the
Other Matters section below, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind AS") as amended (“Accounting Standards™],
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of
affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and their consolidated foss, their consolidated
tota! comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act {SAs). Our
responsibifities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility
for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements section of our report, We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidenge obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Certre, Tower 3, 27" - 32 Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Cliphinstone Road {West), tumbal - 400 013, tdeharashira, ndia,

! 8737
{LLP Identficatian No. AAB-8737] vo7



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

+« The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information, The other
information obtained at the date of this auditor’s report is included in the Directors
Report, but does not include the consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

s Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

« In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our
rasponsibility is to read the other information, compare with the financial statements
of the group and, joint ventures audited by the other auditors, to the extent it relates
to these entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors and
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consclidated
Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates
to the group and joint ventures is traced from their financial statements audited by
other auditors.

« [If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regards.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial pasition, consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and
consclidated changes in equity of the Group including its joint ventures in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective
Board of Directors of the companies inciuded in the Group and of its joint ventures are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its associates and its
jointly controlled entities/ joint ventures and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used
for the purpose of preparation of the consclidated Ind AS financial statements by the
Directors of the Parent Company, as aforesaid.

= preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the

nies included in the Group and joint ventures are responsible for assessing the
a\ﬂlt of the Group and of its joint ventures to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
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applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate or cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint
ventures are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group
and of its joint ventures.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consoiidated Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

=  QObtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3){i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Parent has adequate Internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

+« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Group and its joint ventures to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attenticn in our auditor’s report
to the related disciosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Qur conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group and its associates and joint ventures to cease to
continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consclidated Ind AS
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

%btain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
\’anches, entities or business activities within the Group and its joint ventures to

299



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements
of such branches or entities or business activities included in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other branches
or entities or business activities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, which have been audited by the branch auditors or other auditors, such
branch auditors and other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for
our audit gpinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeabte user of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements may be influenced. We consider guantitative materiality and qualitative factars
in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities
included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during ocur audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reascnably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements two subsidiaries, and whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs. 1,31,571.12 lakhs as at 31st March, 2019, total revenues of
Rs. 61,815.73 takhs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs.1,694.01 {akhs for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss of Rs. 599.14
lakhs for the year ended 315 March, 2019, as considered in the consolidated financiat
statements, in respect of two joint ventures, whose financial statements have not been
audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the conselidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclesures included
in respect of these group and joint ventures and our report in terms of subsection (3}
of Section 143 of the Act, in s0 far as it relates to the aforesaid group and joint ventures
and associates is based solely on the reports of the other auditers,

Qur opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements above and our report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above
matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of other auditors.

fgrort on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

‘ L. -'\A\;,\-required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration
Hf the reports of the branch auditors and other auditors on the separate financial
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statements/ financial information of the subsidiaries, joint ventures referred to in the
Other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and expfanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of cur audit of
the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

b) In our cpinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation
of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as
it appears from our examination of those books, returns and the reports of the
other auditors.

¢} The reports on the accounts of the branch offices of the Companies included in the
Group audited under Section 143{8) of the Act by subsidiaries and jont venture
auditors have been sent to us other auditors and have been properly dealt with by
us in preparing this report.

d) The Consclidated Balance Sheet, the Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

e) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with
the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

fy On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Parent as on 31st March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its, subsidiary companies,
and joint venture companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group companies, its associate companies and joint venture companies
incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Sectien 164 (2) of the Act,

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controis over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the
Parent, subsidiary companies, joint venture companies incorporated in India. Cur
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting of those
companies.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197[16) of the Act, as amended,
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanaticons
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Parent to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditer’s Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as

X ) mended in our opinion and to the best of our information and acceording to the
ﬂ jexplanations given to us:
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i} The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending

litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group, and joint
ventures.

i) Provision has been made in the consclidated Ind AS financial statements, as
required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
confracts,

fiiyThere were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Parent/ Hoilding Company,
and its subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled
companies/ joint venture companies incorparated in India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Charterad Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

L@Lé &l

Kalpesh J. Mehta

Partner
Membership No. 48791
Mumbai, 08 May 2019
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ANNEXURE “A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph g under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Tata
Realty and Infrastructure Limited ("the Parent”/ “the Company”) as of and for the year
ended 31 March, 2019, we have audited the internal financial ¢ontrols over financial
reporting of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated
in India, its jointly controlled companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent, its subsidiary companies and jointly
controlled companies, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal contro! over
financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the
essential compoenents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company’s policies, the safeqguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Parent, its subsidiary companies and its jointly controlled companies,
which are companies incorperated in India, based on our audit and based on the
consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate Ind AS financial statements of
the subsidiaries and joint ventures referred to below in the Other Matters paragraph. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section
143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
r\tﬁw that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
rﬁeﬁf{g ~~q effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures

e

'l
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selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by
the other auditors of subsidiary companies and jointly controlled companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the internal financial controls systemn over financial reporting of the Parent, its subsidiary
companies and its jointly controlled companies, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasconable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that;

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary £o permit
preparatien of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the interna! financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the
Other Matters paragraph below, the Parent, its subsidiary companies and jointly controlied
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 315 March, 2019,
based on the criteria for infernal financial control over financial reporting established by
the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Charfered Accountants of India.
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Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates
to two subsidiary companies and two jointly controlled companies, which are companies

incorporated in India, is based solely on the correspending reports of the auditors of such
companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
{Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

\%LCLL i lo

Kalpesh 1. Mehta

Partner

Membership No. 48791
Mumbai, 08 May 2019
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019
(Curreney: Idian rupess in kkhs]

Mote 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1 ASSETS
| Mon-eurreni asscts
(#)  Property, plant and equipment 3 3,000 1,608
(B)  Capial wark-m-pragress i 121 18
(e} Intempble assets o i 82
[d}  Invesament property 4 362,000 367,664
(e} bnvesament property under cansticiion [ 141468 112,817
i) Goodwill en consohdinen .216 21,966
(g} Intangibleassers under development under SCA 7 224,165 143,353
th)  Tntangihle assets under SCA B 45,354 17,655
(i} Finunoial pssets
1) Investments is fount Veéntures 9 73,13 63,290
(1) Other Tavestments 1o 1 25
(i) Other Finaneial assets I 1,677 1,669
) Defirred ta assets (Net) |12 6,456 7244
tk}]  Non curren| tax assets {Net) 13 10,889 9,57)
i (nher non-corrert nssels [} 26,2758 20,727
MNon=cirren! nssels D16,751 T98,789
2 Current assets
) lventiies 15 43,718 44432
th)  Finamcin) assets
(1) Trade and dther receivables 16 2,546 3787
11} Citsh and eash equvalens 17 5921 714
(i} Bank halances other than (i1} above 18 1,579 345
(v} Orher nveésimenis 19 1,383 7058
{v) Short-term lnans and wlvanves 0 1054 020
w1k Oriber Frnanoal assers 21 1,981 1,320
fc}  Other current assas 2z 5,388 7435
Current usseis 65,870 79428
TOTAL ASSETS 952,621 B78.217
IL EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
| Equity
(a1} Equity share capial 23 101,731 01,731
() Other pquay 24 (75,8361 {53.675)
Equity atiributable to awners 11,595 47,856
&) Non-controlling inierests 6,617 6826
28312 S408L
2 Non-Current Linhilivies
(9)  Fisngial liabilines
(1) Borrowings 25 544,488 580326
(1) Cther financzal babulnes 26 103,165 RO261
(h)  Long-lem provisions 27 3,260 2237
) Deferred tax habilities (Net) 28 1,584 454
idh  Otiher non-curren liabilites pric) 11 440 11,540
663,937 683824
3 Current liahilities
{a)  Financial labilities
{ ¥ Shert term borowings kil 100,574 61,296
{11) Trde and other payables 31 9468 10,722
(i) Other financid fabilines 3z 140,725 59,270
(b} Cther current labilites 33 7354 f.302
(¢}  Bhort 2Fm provisions KE| 263 14
{4} Cureent tax linhilities (Net) 35 1,788 1397
288,172 139701
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILTTIES 981,621 878,117
Significant accounting policies 2
Nates to the consalidated Ind AS financials sintements 340

The notes referved shove forman irfegral pan of these consoficated [nd AS finaneial stateronts
As per our report of even date amtacred

Fer DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP For sl on behall of the Baneed of Diveciors of
Chartered Aczonmiants Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
{Frm'sRegisrution No 1 7366WW- 10001 8) CIN No: UTC102MHZ00TPL | 68300
-
e bt -
dgure bt )l Y At

Ialpesh J. Mehia Banmalffgrawals Sanjay Dute F. N Subadar

Partner hatrman Marsaging Directar Director
j ,J TN - D01 20029 DN - 05251670 DIN - (0025428 DN « (0057133
8. Santhanakrishnan Neesa Snggi Sanjay Sharsna lina r
Director Director Chief Finaneal Oficer Comaany fecretry
IN - 00032049 DN - 00501029 Memhership Mol Ani 20
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019
{Currenent Indan rupees in lakhs)

Nere 31 Mareh 2019 31 March 2018
I Revenue ffom operalions 36 167,316 121,862
1 Other incomic A7 6,616 3,385
m Totalincomg (1 +11) 174,432 £31,257
IV Expenses
Costof fats sold 38 6,122 4,497
Cinstnucdion costs i3 33,005 57,013
Emplovee benefit expenses 1 8,259 8220
Fingnee costs 41 51055 54471
Depregiation and amortyzation expense 3448 16,458 L7604
Other expenses 42 28,555 18,650
Total expenses (EV) 194,944 170,97
v Laoss befare exceptinnal items, share of prefits (net) and tax ([ 1V} {2m512) (35,213)
Add:  Rhare of {1nss) from assotiates
Add' Share of (loss) lrom jomt ventures (633) (1,023)
YT Lass before exceptional items and tax (21,145} (40,236)
¥l Exceptonal ttems - -
VIl Loss before tax (VI-¥11) {21,145) (40,236}
IX  Tax Expenses
Cursent 1ax BE4 T
Deferred 1ux charge / {eredit) 5.506 (1,007)
Current 1ax expenses relating 1o pror years - 162
X Loss for the year (YIT-IX) 23,515} 740,290)
Less  Share in loss tansferred to non-conrolling interest (2220} {02)
X Lass (or the year sitributable to owners (23493 {40,195)
X1 Other Comprehensive Incame
A {iy Trems that will not be reclassilicd to profit or boss
Remeasurements of defined benefu lrability | asset) 55 35
Equity msmruments faw valued trough OC - -
toeome tax relating 1o nems that will not be reclassificd to profit or loss (14) [£)]
B (i) ltemss that will be reclassified to prafit or toss

Ineome tax relating to items that willbe teclassified ro profit or loss -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates, yori venires scopunted Tor using soquity method - -

X1 Total Compiehenzive Income o the year (XI1+XH} {23.652) {dik172)
{Comprisung Loss and Other Cormgrehienstve Income for the yei after non-controllmg mteres:)
X1V Earnings per equity share . {Face Yalue per share Rs 10 each)

{1} Basic & (2.33} (3.95)
(2) Dibutes) 233 (3.95)
Significpirt accounting policies 2
Noles ta the ¢ lidated Iod AS fi ials statements 3-60

The notes referied above form an integal part of these consclidated ind AS Mhiancial Siaements
As [rer our repan of even date attached

For DELOGITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP Far and oo behall of the Board of Directors of
Claricrgd Avcunmiants Tata Reuity and Infrastruciure Limited
(Firm s Registeaton Mo 1 ITI60WAY- 100018 CIN No: UT0102MHI00TPLC)E3300
weella | P
t%{LL - ’ \j i M‘ I
- ’ - . N - ’
Kalpesh J. Melita o IWHIL Sanjay Duit F.N.Subedor Rajiv >abmarwal
Partner Cratnan  Managing Thrector Director Barecton
DIN - 001 70079 DIN - 23254670 DIN - 00628423 DN - 0057333
ﬂ1 3 \pﬂrﬁ/ '
' L '
Aol .
$. Suothanakrishian Neera Saggl Saniay Sharma ..., SEoka.
Dhrector Direcior O FFngpeis! Officer + witipreny Secvetaty
DIN - 0603204 DIN - 00501029 Memberzhip Mo AG120
4
[T v M urmba
May §, 2019 May B, 201%
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Consolidated statentent of cash flows as at 31 March 2019
(Corrency. Indian rupees m lakhs)

A

Cash flows fram operabing activities :

(Lnss) before tax

Adinsted for

Depreciation and amorusalion

Excess provision wriiten back

{Gam) on sale of current (nvestments

Promasion for Major Mactenance

ark to Market Gawl on Forwsrd / Denvative Contracts
Gam on re-valuaton of lnvestments

Provision for doubtful znd bad debts

Advance wniten off

Interest meome

Finance costs (ncludmg MTM on forward contract)
Sharg of profit (loss) from jomt veninres and associates
Sundry Liabihities! Provision written off

Profit on sale of fixed assets

[mparment Yoss

Provision for Employee Benefits

Reversal of prowsion for compensated

Less on sale of propety, plan! and equpment

Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes io working capital

Deorease in Trade Receivables

Decrease m Inveniones

Decrease in Loans & Advances, Other Financial Asscts and Other Current Assels

Decrease i Trade payables

Tncrease / (decrzase} i Other financial habilities. current and won corrent lisbilnies and provision

Cash flows gencrated from operations
Taves pad {net of refimd reccived)
Net cash Mows generated from operating activities

Cash flyws from investing activities :

Payment for purchase and construgiion of property plant and equipment
Proceeds on sale of fixed assels

Purchase of investment property / tavestment property under constmiclion
Invesument in joint ventures

Proceeds from sale of mvestments in mutual funds

Tnvesiment in n mutual funds

Inv i fixed dep (et) undes lien

Acquisition of subsidiaries/! [oint ventures

Interest recerved

Net cash Aows (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing acrivitics ;

Proceeds / (Repayment) from short term borrowings {net)
Proceeds (fom long lerm borrowings

{Repayment) of long lerm borrowings

Proceeds from Minonty Interest

Finance costs paid

Nr1 cash generated from financing activities

Nel (deerease) o cash and bank balances (A+B+C)

Cash and bank balances, begnmng of the year

Ingrease i cash and cash equivalents on accouni of acqusition of subsidiary
Cash and bank balances, end of year {refer nowe 17}

308

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

{21,145) (40,236}
16,858 17,600
(177
{213} (161)
1,011 3l
(3.329) 1732
(100) {118)
2 94
4,050 16
(1,953) (1917}
52,085 54,471
633 1022
- 122
- {124}
750 5219
156 103
3 41
70,004 79,046
48,589 38,810
1315 1,004
714 8,850
17,995 2,681
(1.254) (2.066)
(2,769 8,030
6,001 18,500
54,890 57,300
(2,350) (1,808}
52,500 55 501
(83,018) (64.518)
103 304
(38,022) {25.688)
{10,470) {7.981)
152,375 35,185
(145,428) [24,256)
(1,234) (274)
- (24.127)
2,192 1,752
(123,507 1109.598)
39,278 (132,172)
125,585 412,380
(36,479) (185,575)
13 -
(58,615) (52,354
69,782 42,279
{1,220 (11,818
7,141 18.714
. 245
5921 (AL




Tata Realty and Tnfrastructure Limited

Consolidated statement of cash Mows as at 31 Mareh 2019 (Contiiad)

{Currency. Tndian rupees 1 lakhs)

Noles:
n Cash and bank balances include the following :
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash balanes
Balanee with scheduled banks-
- I current accounts
- i deposil aecoumts

Significant accounting policics
Nutes o the consolidated 1nd AS financial statemenis

The notes refevred above fom an mtegral part of thesc conselidated Ind AS &

As per our report of even date attached
Fur DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountanis
(Fimy's Registration No 11 T366WAV-L00018)
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2,009 4,034
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Tata Realty and Infrastruciure Limited

Notes to the consolidated Ind AS Tinuncial statements
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2619

{Cwrency: Indian mipees in lakls)

1B
)

{by

(c}

()

[

()

Backaraund and basis of preparation
Baclground

Tata Bealty & Infvastruciwre Limited (“TRIL" o7 *the Group' along with s subswdianies, joind ventures and associates. collectively referred 10 an the “the Coup'
15 engarred n e business of mvestient advisory services, project manngement consublaney services sod reab vstale and mivastracture developmeni The parent
company 15 @ whally cwned subsichary of Tats Sous Private Linied,

Basis of preparalipn

Statemunt of compliance

These Consodidated Tnd AS financial siaternenss dinvwe been prepared in gecordance winly Indian Accomhng Standards (lnd AS7 s per the Compamies (Indian
Actounting Standardsy Rueles. 2015 news fied under Section 133 ol the Campanies Aet, 2013 1the Act’ and oher relevant provisians of e Act.

Going Concern

As at Mareh 3. 2019, the Group 1s having .

= accunndated losses of INR 99,543 Lakhs

s current habilities excesdimg (s cment assets by [NR 104,302 Lakhs.

- repayrnent of INRL L 1R800 Lakbs pertaining 1o the current poartion of Uee long Lenn debt (8O due o next 12 mentiig
- cash lasses durmpe Mie current year il previous year

All of' the above may mdicue deubt abow the Group's abihiy © continue as & Yoing concem.
The Board of Directors of the parent company have assessed going coseern ability conmdermg e tollgwmg Factors

+ Negative working capital (s on acconm ol manageinent decision o boveow short-tem finds tirongh commercial papers considering benefits of mieres| arbitrage
under CurTent BConeinic stenano

» The pirent wompany has credit ratgs 0F Ad and A1+ from two credil tating agencics which supports rasing of leng-term fimds or refinance shor-denm loanz
on A aed basts respectively. Based on the credis rating, the paremt compiny has & long-ierm borawing liait of INK 80,000 lakhs and shor-term borrowing fimit
af 1R 00000 jakhs. The parenl company has a term sheet frgm s bank for long tenm Amding wpto DR 100,000 fakhs

« The Board of Civectors has approved nghis issue of INR 360,000 lakhs approximately tirough equity capital from she parent 1.6 Taia Rons Private Lunded.
The Board of Directors are confident st the sanie will be fullv subscaibed and thereby the Authorized Capial is realigned 10 accommodate Me sbove rights
[Ex1H

= The Koard of Directars of ihe parent company are actvely considering dispesal of certain projecis which are no sieategicidly naportant 12 e business ad vield
pastisve cashilows mthe next 12 monihs,

Henee in ihe oponicn of the Board of Threctors, the Grong s able 10 continue 25 going concem, Accordingly. the linaneial stateients ave been preparcd on g
O congenn hasis

Funclional and presentution currency

Msese Consolidated financial staremenis are presenied m Indian Rupees (INR), winglias abwe ihe Cotpany’s funcrsonal crrency. AH ihe financial mlormianion
liave been presented m indian Bupess (INRG and al! sowants have been rounded-oft o the nearest lakhs with fwo decimals, except for share dato and as otherwise
stated, Due do rounding ofl, the snnbers presented throughout the docwinient may not add wp precisely 1o the torals and perceatage may not precrsely relleel the
absolute figares.

Baszis of measurement
The Consolidated tnd AS financel stategments bave been prepared on e histoncal cost basis eveept for the following assets and linbilities which have been
ineasured al fair valug

Cerrnn financial assets and Trabiliies (ncluding denvative mastrurents)
Detined benefil plans - plan assers meastved af farr value

Critical accounting judgenents nnd key sources of estimation of uncertainity

in preparing these Consifidated Ind AS financial siaieinents, managemnent has made mdgements. estimales and asswoptions thar affect the application ol
aeoonting policies and the reported amounis of assets, liabilities. income and expenses Actual results may differ from (hese estimates
Estimates and underlying asswnptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions (o peoounting esimates are recopnised prospectively

¢iy Jutigements

Information abont pulgeinents made o applying accousung policies that have the most siamficant effiects o the anounis recopmised n the Lad A8 finanerat
statemtents is meluded m1he following notes,

’
Cnam_n " f

A i

311



Tata Realty and I[nfrastructure Limited

MNotes to the consvlidated Ind AS financial staternents
Jfor the yeor ended 3¢ March 2019

(Cwrreney Indian rapees i laklis)

[}

(g}

pRH ]
tiy

{fi} Control
e Group owns less than one-hall of tie voting power and s alde w comral the company' which mier-alia provides Lhe Geoup willi poveer Lo appoemil majority
ol the board of divectors and poswer over televant aenvities. Consequently, the Group consolidates (s investmen in i company,{ Refer Note No. 321a3)

I the Group owns mare than one-hall'of the votng power but 1 does nat have control over the Compames then the Group has joint contre) over the companies,
I otler words. dectsions aboul the retevant activittes - T those that sigmificantly atffect the rettuns of the wrangement - require the affinmative consent of the
nvestors. Consequernly. the Group has classified s interest i1 Miese compinies s jomitly conirolled eniity, {Reler Note no. 324h))

{iii} Assumptions and estimygbon unceriaintics
lnformaion abow assumpitens and estanation uncertamies that liave o sdficant sk of resuliing iy a materizl adjostnentt in the vear ended 31 March 2019 is
included in the following notes:

MNote - umpanment (g5 oF non-tin

Rl wsselst key assanpions mdetiying recovertbie omounts ncluding the recoveratility ol expenditiee o acgnred
ntangitie assets fgondwill i Uselil lifi of Propenty, plant and equepment’
Nale - recognition ol deferred 1ax am

i wvatlability of futwe tasalile probit apamst whach Ly losses carried forward can be used;
Nale -~ recopmimnon and measurement of provasions and contingencies ke assunptions abont 1he likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources

Note easurement of defined benefit oblganons key achanriab assumplrons:
Note  acquisition of subsidiary
habilittas as

wir value of the conssderation wansterved (ncluding comingent consweration) and fan vaiie of the assets acquired and
1ed, mensured on A provisional bagis. and

Mote - determimng the Faic valiee of myestments on the hasis of sigmifican ungbservable mpus,
Mote  wnpairment of fancial assels

Measurement of Mir values
The Gronp's accomwtuig pobic

s and disclogures require the measuremeny of fair values. 1o both financal and non-fuangial assets and liabitites. The CGroup has
un established contral frameswork with respect to the measurement of fur values. The finmsg tenm has overall responsibility for overseeing all sigmfieant faw
valwe measurements, mcluding Level 3 Gnr values. and veports directly 1o he U1F0

They regularly review signilicant unobservable mpws and valuation adjustinents [T third paty snformaton s used 10 measure faie values ten the linance team
assessis the evidenice obisined fram the third parties 10 support the conetusion that such valuations meet the requiremients of Tnd A3, lelnding the level 1nihe (o
witlue leravchy in wlieh such viluations should be classitied

Wihen measuriy

the fair vahse of an asset o0 a liabiline. the Company uses observabde marker duta as far as possibie. Far values are categorized o different
leweds b i faie salue hivrarchy bascd on e inputs nsed m the valvaron wehngues as ollows:

Level ! gquited prces cunid justel s ng scive markeis for mlentical assers or habilines

Level 2 it ather than quoted prices mcladed a Level b that arc abservable far ihe asset ot habiliy, vither duecdy (e a8 pr
from pricess.

cos i or mdirectly (e derived

Level 3 iputs for the agse! ar hability that are.not based on observable mathes dats (unnbservatse mpots)

I 1he mputs used 10 measure the e value of an agset or a laliliy fall o different levels ol the i value hierarchy, then the tar value measmement
categorrzed in ins entivety in the same Tevel of the Tair valoe Ineraselw as the lowest level ipa i i

nificant 10 the entire measutzment,

ligns

Foreign currency trans:
Foreign cirrenes transactions are trinslated o the functeonal curmeney using the excliange rates af the dates of Lhe icansacnons. Fareipn exchange wiing and
losses resultng from the settlement of sueh tansaciions and from the anslatan of monetasy msels and liabidmes denminmated in Jorogn cerencies at vem eind
exchiange rates are generilly tecogmsed i prodin or loss.

Non-monetary iteiis Uiat are measured at fade yvalue Ina forergn currency are wanshated nsiny the exchange rates al (e date when the fair value was deteomined,
Translaton differences on assets and Lahibises carried at fan value are reponted as part of the R value

ar e

The gain o loss znsing on franshation of son-
mionetary ttems teasured at fair valie 15 ieeated i hne with the recognition of the man or logs on the chimpe i fair value of the item (e swanstanon duferences
utn tenes whose [l value gam or s 15 tecognised i OCT oe profit or bess e also recogmsal g OCT of profitor foss, vespectively .

Basis of consolidation

Suhwieficirnes

Subsidianes are all emies pochuding stctred entiiles) over wiich te growp has control. The group contrels an entity when the group 15 exposed 1o, o has
righins to, vartable returmns From s imvolvement wath e cotiy and Yias the ability to affect those retunis through its power o diveet the relevant acinvines af the
ennity Subsadiaries are fully consolidared fram the date on wlieh controd i ransferred o the prowp, They are deconsnlidated from te date thie control conses

The proup cominnes the financral stalements of the pavent and 15 subsiianes Ime by line adding together kke nams of assets, Habilites, equsty, mecme and
expenses, Interiroup ransactions. balances and unrealised gaing on trnsactions bebween group compantes ace elinmated, Unrealised lusses are also linnated
unless the tmsaction provides evdence of anompaimment of the tanslemad isser Accounting policies of subsrdiaries Tuve been changed where necessary 1o
enstire censisteney with the policwes adopred by e |

I

Nan-centrolling wierests in the results and equity ol subsidisres ane slowa separataly 40 the sonsokidated statzment of proi and loss. waisoldated staremenl ol

changes i equy amwd bakinee sheer respecnvely

Charlgred ' ',
Accountants -

312



Tata Reatty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated Tnd AS financiat statements
for the vear encded 3 Mareh 2019

{Curtengy | Indian rupees m lakhs)

i}

iy

{ivh

.02

203

0

(i)

(i)

)

st aprahgements

Under Ind AS 111 Joinl Arrangemenits, investmenis 10 jomt arrangements are classificd as either Jownt operations of (oinl vimtures The classification depends on
the centraciual nghts and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal streeture of e joint arrangerment. The group has only joint ventures.

Jotut ventares

Jount verdures are entitics over which the group has jomt control alonp with gnother entity. laterests in jomt ventures sre accounted for using the equity method,
after tially bemg reeomused st cost in the consolidated balance sheet. The nvestment 1s wutally recognized Al cost, and the carmying ameourt is tcressed of
decreased (o vecopnize the mvestor's share of the profit or loss of the imvestee after the acquisition date

SARseciafes

Assaciates are enlities over which the group has significant miluence but not control Investrnents in associates are accounted for using the equity method of

accounting The investment s hitially resaumzad @t cost, and the camying amounl 15 mcreased or deereased tn recognize 1he vestor’s share of the profit or loss
of the imvestee after the acqusmion date

Segment repocling

Operoting segments are roponted i & manner consistent with Qie mtermal reporting provided to the chiel operatny decision maker (CODM), Chief operating
decisron maken s funclaon 15 1o allocate the resources of the entity and aceess the perfemancs ol the operatng segment of the Groug,

lie Munaging Dicector assesses the financal performance and pogivon of the Group and makes skrategac decisions and 15 idenbtied as bemg the chicf operating
decision maker for the Group. Refer note 46 for seigment informration presented

Revenue recogrition

Sale of completed preperiy
Revenue from sale of complated property (residenttal and commeraial) 5 reeognised when
1 The Company has wransferred to the buyer sigricificant nsk and rewards of ownership of the completed property,

2 The Campany retans neither contmumng managerial involvernent 1o the degree usually assocated weth the ownetshimp nor effective eontrol over the compleied
property sold;

3 The amount of revenue can be measuced rehably:
4 14 is probable that the ccomome benelit assomated with the transaction will (los 1o the Company, anid
5 Cost mewited or 10 be inewred 1n respect of the iransaction can be nteasured rehably

Service conrussion arrangements
Coneession arrangenients are recogmized in aceordince with Appendix © of lid AS 115, Service Concession Araneements 10 s applicable to concession
arrangements compnising a pubhie service obligation and salisfinmg all of the following criena

the concession gramor contiols or regulates the services to he provided by the aperator using the asset. the infrastruciure, the beneficiaries of the services and
prices applied,

the grantor controls the significant residual 1nterest In the nfrastuchere at ine e of the term of the arrangement

Pursuant to Appendix C of Ind AS 115, such mitastructures are not recogiuzed m assets of the eperalor 8s property, plant and equipment but in financial assets
("financial asset model") andfor imangible assets (" meangible asset model”) depending on the remuneration cormdmitnents given by the grantor

The imaizible asset niode] apphes where the operator 13 paid by e users or where the concession grantor as non pravided a contractunl guarantee in respeet of
the recoverable amount The mtangible asset corresponds to the nght gramted by The concession grantor o the operator o charge users of the public sence n
Ternieration Of CONCESSION SevICSs,

Intangible assets resulting (rom the applcation of Appendix C of Ind AS |15 are recorded in the fimancial statements as ntangible assete The Group

accounts for such mtangible asset (along with the present value of commirted paytients towards concession artangement to the grantor al the appointed date ag
Negatrve (rant, premium cie, ) in accordance with the provisions af Tnd A8 38 and is amoruzed based on projected traflie count or revenue, as detatled m Note
207in), takmg mro account the estimated penod of commercial operation of wirastrucure which generally comeides wath the concession period and are
amorhized. generally on a strasght-line basis, over the contract term

Under the intangible asset model, revenue mciudes

reverue recorded on 1 completien basis for agsets and infrastructure under constructon {1h accordance with YD AS 115y,

charges collected from users
Haowever, 1 ¢erlain conpession arrangements, contracts may ineluds a8 pavment commitment on the pan of the concession grantor covering only part of the
mvestment, vath the balance covered by amount charged 10 users, Where this 12 the case (he investment amount, guaranteed by the concession grantor 1s
regeghized under the financial asset model and the residual balanee s recognized under the intangible asset mode] Financial assers resulting from el we
recorded in the financial statements under e heading other finmnewd assets and recogmized at arportized cost,

Further, where infrastructure 15 partly lated gned parthy lated, the partion of mfrastructure that s physically separable and capable of beng operated
mdependenmiy and meels definition of cach generatng unit as defined under Ind AS 36 15 analysed separately o it 15 used wholly for unregulated purposes

Renering of services
Asser management fees and Progeat

geThenl liancy feas are d m aceordance with lerms of apreement with cusiomers,

lental income

Rental income from jnvestmeill property 1s Tecogrused as part of revenwe ftom operations in proft of loss on a staght-line basis aver the term of the lease except
where the rentals are stuckured 10 intrcase in Jine with expected general wiflation. Lease meentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the wtal rcnual
wneame, over e term of the lease Rendal mcoine from sub-leasing s also recognised in o simila manner and incheded under other mcome
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consodidated lad AS financial statements
for the yeor cided 1] March 2019

[Cwirency Indian rupees in lakks)

v

4

2.05

(i)

205
(i)

206

Interest sad Jividend:

A dividend 15 recogmzed as revenue when the right to recemve payment has heen established. For all deht mstumems measured enther at amortsed cost or at far
valug through other comprehensive income, nterest meome 15 recorded using the affectrve tnterest rate (FIR} EIR iz tha rate that exactly discounts the estimated
fulure cash payments or recvapts over the expected life of the financial mstrument of o shoner poriod, where apprapriate, to the gross camying amount of the
Financial asset or 1o the amortsed cost of a finangial liability.

Gaovernmenl grants

Grants from the povemment are initially recognised as deferred income st thei [air valus whete there 15 a reasonable assuranee that the grant will be received and
the group wall comply with all artached eonditions, they are then recognised in profit or loss as other income on a systematic basis over the useful Tife of the sset

Grants that compensaie the Grotp For expenses incurved soe recopmised in profit of loss en a systematie basis i the pennds m which the expenses are recogrased

Property, plaat and equipment

Recognition and measureménl

Freeheld and i camed at histoncal cost Al other ntoms of properly, plant and equipiment arc measared al cost less scoumulated deprecistron and any
aceumulated impaiyment losses

The cost of antem of praperty. plant and equipment comprises

ab a5 purchase pnice, meluding impodt duties and non-tefundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates,

Bl any costs direcily aunbesable 1o bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating i the manner mtended by
e} the mitial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the stem and restorng the site on which 1t 1s located, the obligation for which an entity wieurs
esther when the tem 15 acquared

lucome and expenses related o the meidental operations, not necessary 1o brirg the iem to the location @nd condmon necessary for i1 to be capabie of operatmg
m the manner intended by management, are recognised  profit or loss

17 sigmiicant parts of an e of property, plant and equipment have different useful Iives, then they are aceounted for as separate items (M&or components) of
property, plant and equipment Al gam or toss on disposal 0f an item of property, plant and equdpment 1s recognised  profit or loss

Subsequent expeaditare
Subsequent expenditure 13 capitalised only of it 1s probabie that the fulure economiz bepefits sssosmted with the expenditure will flow to the Grouy,

Property, plant and cquipment (Contipned}

Deprecistion

Depreciable amusunt for assets 15 the cost of an asset, or other amount substiruted for cost, less its cstimated residual value.

Depreaation 1 provided using the straight line method m the manner and #t the rates presenbed by Pan 'C'of Schedule I of the Act. Depreciation s charged ona
manthly pro-rata basis for assets parchased or sold durme the year.

In the follpwing cases, the useful 1ife 13 less than the coresponding useful Yifv preseribed m Pant 'CY of Schedule 1T of the Act, based on interna! rechmcal
evaluation, 1aking mite account the nature of the assers. the estmated usage of the assel b operaung condivons of the asset, past hstory of replacement,
anticipated technologieal chaipes ete,

Plant & Machdnery 815 years
Furninre & Fraure G100 yenrs
Office equapments 3-b years
Computers 34 years
Motor Vehweles 5-T years
Commercisl bunlding 5-12 years

Leasehold land and feasehold wmprovements are amortised over the lease period
Depreciation methods. uselul fives and residual values are reviewed at each reponting date and adyusted if appropraste,
Gams and osses on digposabs are dettimened by companng proceeds with carryng amosnt These sre meluded in profit or 1oss withun other gans! {lossos)

Iny estment property

Property that 15 held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is nat occupied by the group, 15 classified as mvestment property
investment property i5 measured ubally at its cost, meluding related transaetion costs and where applicable borrowing costs Subsequent expenditire s
capitatised o the assel’s camylng amoeurt only when 1t 1s probable that future eeonamse benefits associated with the expenditure will flow (o the groug and the
cost of the tem can be measured rehably. A1l other repairs and mamtenance cosis are expensed when incurred. When part of an irvestment roperty 15 replaced,
the carrying amournt of the replaced part 15 derecomnsed

Invesiment property uader construction
Property that is beng constructed For fulure use as svestment proparty |s accounted for a5 wvestment property under constnuttion dnhl copsthuchen oc
development i complete All costs wineh are direclly attribuiable 1o construction of the mvestment property are captalzed.
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Tata

Realty and Infrastructure Limited

MNotes to the congolidated Ind AS financial statements
Jor e poar ended 31 March 2019

{Curreney Indian rupces in lakhs)

207

@

(i)

208

2,10
(0

Intangible ssscts

Goadwin

Goodwill s acquisiions of subndiones is meluded wn miangble assets, Goodwill s ot ameniied but 1t is tested for mmpartment annoally Tt s carvied at cost less
accumutated mpaimment losses Gains and Yosses on the disposal of an entity ticlude the carrying ameunt of goodwill relating to the catity sold,

Goodwill 15 allocated 1o cash-generating unils for the purpose of impaiment testing, The allacaten i made 1o those cash-generating arts or groups of cash-
gencrating unuts that arc expected to benelit from the business combinztion i which the goodwill arese The umits or groeps of units ate identfied at the lowsst
tevel at wineh geodwill ts monitored for mternal management gurposes, which in our case soc the operating Suments.

Intanzible asscts comprise applicatton software purehased, which are not an integral part of the relaed hardwars, and are amortized on 3 writken Jown value basis
overa peried of len years, which i Management™s estimate represents the peniod dunng wieh the econoimnie benefits will be denved from ther use

Subsequent expenditisre is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific to which it relates

Intangible assets under development

Passenger rapeway facility

Intangibie assels comprise a right 1o charge users for passenger ropewsy (acility, which is curently under develop The cost af le assels moquired n
exchiinge of monetary ot non-rronetary assels 15 measured at fa vabue unless (2) the exchange transaciion lacks commereial substance or (b) the far value of
neither the asset received nor the asset given up 15 reliably measurable. If aoquired asset cannot be measured at Fair value, s cost is measured at the eamying
ataount of the asset given up. The far value of the asset 13 measured with referenca to the far value of constnaction services provited

Subsequerit expenditure 15 eapitalized only when il increases the future ceonamee Benefits embothed i the specific to which 1 relates

Toll collection right

Toll collection rights representing rght 10 reccrve feos rom users of oty are gbtzined n considerateon for rendening constction. aperanon and malenmes:
services n relatron to butiding and mantenance of the project on Build. Operate and Transfer basis. The consdersiion received in a service concession
arrangement sy measured at far value upon inal recognfion, Le. consiruction cost Subseq o mital g the intangrblc assel 15 measured at cost,
which includes capitaliscd bomawmg costs, Jess sccumulated amortiaation and accumulated tnpairment losses

Awtartization of concessinn intungible assets

Amortization of tangible asset under SCA The mtangible nights relating te mérasiruciure assets, which are recognized m the form of ught 1o charge users of the
infrastructure assel are amartized by taking proportionate of actual traffie count for the period over tetal projected traffic count from project 1o cost sfintangible
assets, 1¢ proportionate of actual traffic for the period cver total projected traffie coumt from the intangible assets expected 10 be carned over the balance
eoneessian peried as estimated by 1he management However with respect to toll road assets construcied and in operation as ay March 3i, 2016, the amortization
of such miangible rights are based on actual revenue eamed compared 1o 1otal projected revenue from the project over the balance ¢oneussion perod to cost
intangible assets, instead of traffic count Totsl projected revemue / ralfic count is reviewed ot e end of each financial year and 15 adjusted 10 rellect any changes
it she estimates whaeh lead to the setual collection at the end of te concession period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and muangible assets that have an indefinte useful life are not subject, 10 amonssation gnd are tested annusily for impamment, or more frequendy 1f
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be wmpaired Other assets are tested for inparment wheneyer evenits or changes m circumstances
widicate that the carmymg amount may not be recovershle Management periodically assesses using, external and mternal sources, whether there is an indication
that an asset may be imparred

The tecoverable amount i3 highet of the asset's net selling price or value m nse, which means the present vatue of future cash Mows expested 1o arise from the
contiing usc of the asset and its eventual disposal. An tmpaiment loss for an asset ws reversed If, and onby if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impawment (955 was recogiuized. The canrying ameuat of 4n asset is ineressed o its revised recoverable amount, provided that 1lis amoun
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of airy accumulited amortization or depreciation) had no impaimiant Toss been
recopmzed fior the 484l 1 prior years,

Borrowing cust

Gereral and specifie bormowmy cests that are Jirectly ateributable to the acquisition, construstion o1 production of a qualifying asset are capirahised during the
period of dime that 15 required 1 complete and prepare the agset for its mtended use or sale, Qualifying assets are pssels thal negcssarly take a substanual pertod
of lame to get ready Tor their intended use or sale,

Investment ncome eamed on the temporary investment of specific bormowings pending their >xpendine on qualifying assets 18 dedueed from the bormowing
<osts ehgiblte for capitalisation

Other bumowing costs are expensed in the penod in wineh they are incurred

Leases

Detgrmining whether an arrangemeat contuins o lease

An arrangement, whieh is not mn the legal form of a lease, should be accounled for as a lease, if

a)  fulfilment of the arrangement is dependeni ob the use of a speciic asset o7 asgets {the 3sset ). and

) the arrangement conveys & Nght 10 use the asset

Al meeption of an arrangement, the Group detertines whether the amangement 18 07 contains a bease.

At nception 01 G of an amang that contams a lease, the Growp separates prymenis and other consideration required by the arrangement imio
those for the lease and dhose for other clemonis

m—
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Finance lense
Agreements are clagsilied as finance leases. of substantally all the risks and rewards incidenlzl 1 ownershp of the leased asset is transferved to the lessee.

Assets given under finance leases are recogmised as a receivable al an amowdt equal to the net investment wn the lease Finance eome is pllocated over the lease
term oA & systematic and rational basis, This mcome allocation 15 based on a patter reflecting a constant pertodic retum on the niet wvestment 1 (he inances
lease,

Minumum bease payiments, for assets taken under finance Jease, are appottioncd berween the linance expense and the reduction of the outstanding habulity The
finance expense 13 allocated to each penod during (he lease term 50 a3 10 produce a constant periodie rate of meerest on the remamng balanse of the labidiy

Operating lease

Agreements which ore not classified as finance leases are considered as operatng lease

Payments made under operating leases are recogaised in profit or loss Lease meentives recerved are recogmsed as an wtepral part of the total lense expense, over
the lease term. Lease payments under an operating lense are recogrised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term unless the payiments to kessor are
structured o merease n line with expected general wilation to cempensate for the lessor’s expected inflabienary cost increases.

Payments received under opersting leases are recognased 1n profit or loss. Lease moentives revewed are recogmsad as an miegral part of the tolal lease incorme,
over the lease tetim Lease receipts under an operating lease are revogmsed a3 income on a straight line basis over the lease term uriless the recaipls from the lessec
are siructured (o wierease 1t Iine with expected general inflation 1o compensate for the Group's cxpected mflationary cost moreases

Tncome-tay

Income tay expense compises current and defemed t2x, 1t 15 recognses m profit or 1085 except Lo the exiont that 1t relstes iems cecogmsed directly 1 equity or in
o]

Current tas

Curment tax comprises the expected 1ax payable o receivable on the taxable wncaime or loss Tor the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or recoivable m
respect of previous years, 1L s measured using e rales enacted or substantvely enacted st (he reporting dime. Current tax also meludes any lax ansmg (rom
dividends Management periodically evaluales positions tzken I tax rewms wath respeet 1o sihations in which applicable tax regulation s subject
interpretation 11 establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected te bz pard 16 the tax authorities

Bnnnum Allemate Tax ('MAT') under the provisions of Ineome-1ax Act, 1961 is recognized a5 curment tax in the statemem of profit and legs MAT pad in
accordance with the tax laws, which gives [uture economic benefits m the fomm of adjustment to future incone tox hiability, is considered a3 on gsset if there 1s a
coivineing evidence that the Group wil) pay normal tax, Accordingly, MAT is recogrized as an asset m tic balance sheet when oL 1s probable thar the fulere
eeonormic benelit associnted wath i wall flow 1o the Group.

Current tax nssets and Habilities are offset only if. the Growp

a)  hasalegally enforceable right te sot off the recognised amounts, acd

by antends eher to settle on a net basis, ot to realise the asset and settic the Iability simultancausly

Deferred 1ax

Deferred tax s recogrused i respect of temporary difforences between the cammyng amounts of assets and habulites for financial reporung purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. However. deferred tax liabulities are not recognised »f they anse from the mitial recogniton of goodusll Doterred mcome tax
15 also not acconmied for of i arises from inval recognition of an asset or labibey in a ransaction other than a busmess combmation that at the tme of the
transaction aftects neither accountmg profit nos taxable profit (ux logs).

Deferred tan assets se recognised for unused 1ax losses, unused tax credits and decluctible temporary differences to the extent that t 1z probable that future
imxalde profits wilt be avatlable aganst which they can be used Deferred vax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to tho extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit wali he realised, such reductions are reversed whes the probability of future taxable profis improves. Unrecogatsed
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting dote and recognised bo the extent that 1t tas become prabable that future taxable prefits will be available
agamnst which they ean be used

Dreferred fax 15 measured at the 1ax rates that are expected to be applied 16 tempomary dilferences when they reverse, useng tax rates enacted oo substantively
crmcted at the reporting date and are expecied 1o apply when the relgted defered meorse tax 25z2t 15 realised or the defeired meome tax lrability ia setiled.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recogrised for temporary differences between the carying amount and tax bases of mvestments in subsidianes, branches and
assoctates and witerest i joint arrangements where the group 15 sbile to control the uming of e reversal of the temporany differences and 1t is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable fuilre

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the camying ameunt @nd tax bases of wvestments in subsidisties, branches and
msspeintes and mterest m joint arrangements where it 55 not probable tiat the differcnces wall reverse i the foreseeable funure and taxable profit witl not be
avadabie against which the temgorary difference can be unilsed.

Defierred tox assets and Habibites are offset only of!

4] the entity has a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax asscts apainst current tax labalsies; and

by the deferred tax assets and the deferred tox liabilines relate to income taxes levied by the same laxation authonty on the same Laxable entity.
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Business com binations

The acqusition method of aceounting is used te account for all busrness combmations. regardless of whether equity instuments or ather assels sre acquired. The
consileration transferred {or the acquisttion of a subswdiary comprizes the.

fawr values of the assets transterred;

Tialnlies incurred 1o the former owners of the scguired buswess,

equity interests issued by the group; and

Far value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent conuderation arrangement

Identifiable assets acquired and habilities and contimgent hiabilinies assumed 10 2 business combihation ave, wath Iimited exceptions, measured initially at their far
values at the gcquisivon date The group tecogmses any non-cenmolling interest 1 the acquired ety on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value o
at the non-contrafling interest's proporionats share of the acquired entity’s net wlentifiable assels. Aequisition-related costs are expensed as meurred,

The excess of the

considerauon transferred,

amount of any non-contralling wierest n the acquired entity, and

Acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity mietest w the acquired entity over the Tair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as gaodwall
If those amolnts arg less than the fawr value of the et wdentifiable assets of the busmess scquirzd, the ditference is recognised n other comprehensive income and
aceumulated in equety as capitsl reserve provided there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargam purch
In ather eases, the bargain purchase gain 15 recognised directly @ equity a5 capital reserve,

Wisere settlement of any part of cash consideration 15 deferred, the amounts payable i the future are discounted 10 their present value a5 at the dale of
exchange The diseount rate used is the ennty's ineremental borrowing rate, being Uie rate 20 winch a similar borrosing could be obtamed Trom an independent
{mnancser wider comparable terms and cooditions

Contingent congideration is classified either a5 equity or # finaneial liability. Asnounts elassified as a fnancial labdity ate subsequently remeasured te fair value
with elianges m faer value recogmised in poofit or loss

If the business combination 18 achieved w stages, the sequisstien date carrying value of the acquarer’s previously held cquity interest m the acguiree s
remeasured to fair value at the sequistion date, Any gains or 10sses arising from such remessurement are recogrmsed m profil of 1oss or other comprehensive
INCOMmE, 88 appropriate.

Cash and casl equivalents

For the pumpose of preseniation i the statement of cagh flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with finaneial mstmations.
ather short-term, highly ligud investments with origmal matuntres of three manths or kess that are veadily convertible to known amounts of cash and which arc
sulyect to an insigmificant mak of changes n value, and bank overdrafts, Bank overdrails are shown wathin borrowings i current babilies in the balance sheer,

Ipventaries

Direct expenses Itke tand cost, development nights, site labour ¢ost, maierial used for progect construgtion, cost of borrowang, project management consullancy,
costz for moving the plant and machmery to the site and general expenses mourred specifically Tor the tespective projeat like inswance, design and techrical
asdistance, snd construction everbeads ere taken as the cost of the project work in progress and cost of unzold Azats

Material at site comprise of bulding matesial, components. stores amid spares,
Inventories are valued af lower of cost or nel realizable value, cosl 1¢ determined o weighted aversie bazis. Net realizoble value 18 the ostimated selijng pnes in
the ordinary course of busmess, less estimiated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary o make the sale

Financial instrusients

A tancial wsmument 18 any contract that gives rize (o & financial asset of one entily and 2 {inancial tablity of coquity msmument af another entity  Fmnincial
mstruments also inclhude dervative contracts such g8 forvign currency foreign exchange forward conlraews, inlercst tate swips and currency apuons, and
embedided denvaives in the host eontract,

Financial assets

Chussi ficatinn

The Oroup shall elassify financial assets a5 subsequently measyred al amortised cost, fair value throngh other comprehensive meeme (FVOCH or fair value
through profit er loss (FVTPLY on the basis of ts business madel for managig the financial assels and the sonractual cash flow charactersstics of the financial
AsEeL.

Inigia) recognitioa and measurem enl

Al finmiciz] nssets ave recognised nitaily at Jair value plus, m the cass of fimancial assets not recorded at fair value theough profit or less, rransaction costs that
are attnibwtable to the acqwsition of the financial nssel Purchases or sales of fnancial assets Dt require delivery of assets within a time (rame established by
teznllation or convention in the market place {regular way wades) arc vecognised on the trade date, 1o, the date that the Greup commits to purchase or sell the
HERIE
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Debt lostruments

§ A debt mstrument’ 15 measured sl the amortised vost of both the fallowing conditions are met

a)  The asset 15 held withm a business model wliose abjective 1s 1o hold sssets for eollecting veittractual cash Nows, and

b} Coniractual tenns of the asseq give r1s¢ on specifed dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of prmcipal and mterest (SPPE) on the principal ameunt
outstanding.

§ After initial measurement, such financeal assets are subsequently measured at amottised cost using the effective imerest rate (EIR) method Amprtised cost 15
caloulated by taking wito account any discount or premaon and fees or costs that are an mtezral part of the EIR The EIR amantisstion 15 meluded m finanes
meome in the profit or loss

§ Debt mstruments mcluded watiin the far value through profis and loss (FVTPL) category arc measured ac fao value with all changes vecogmzed 10 the
statement of profi and loss

Equity instruments

¥ The group subsequently measures all equity 1nvestments 10 compames other than equity nvestments m, Jowl ventured and associates ac faw value, Where the
woup’s management bas elected to presemt far value gaans and losses on equiy investments i other prelensive income, there 15 no subsequetil
reclassification of farr value gains and dosses  profit or loss Diwdends from sueh investments are recognised in profit or loss as other meome when the group's
nghl 1o receive payments 15 sstablished

De-recognition

§ A financial asset (o1, where applicable, a part of 8 financial asset or pan of & Group of similar futaneial assels) s primanly derecoynised (ie. removed from the
troup’s Lalance sheet) when:

§ The rights to recerve cash {lows from the asset have expured, or

¢ The Group has transfermed (s rghts to receive cash flows from the gsset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows i full without matersel
delay to & third party under a “pass-through' arrangetnent; and eitier {a) the Group has transferred substantially all the nsks and sewards of the asser, or (b} the
Group has neither trinsferred nor reiatned substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, bul has transferred control of e asser

§ When the Group has wansferred 115 nghis o recerve cash flows fram an asset or hag entered into a pass-throngh amangement, it evaluates st and to whal extent
it has retamed the rigks and rewards of ownership When  has neithier wansferved nor retamed substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assel, nec
teansferred contral of the asset, the Group continues 1 recogmse the transfermed asset w the extimt of the Group's conumuing mvolvement In that case, the Group
also recognises an sssociated hatility The transferred asset and the assocsated jighibity are mzasured on 2 basis that reflests the rights and obligations. that the
Group has retaine

b Cottimeng wolventent that iakes the form of 8 guarsntee over the transferred asset 13 measured st the lower of the original carmyig amount of the asset and
the maximum amounl of eonsideration thai the Group could be required to repay.

1mpairment of finoncial assels

In avcordance with lnd-AS 169, the Group opples expetied credit loss (ECL) mede] for mzasurement and recogmition of smparment loss on the following
funancrel sssets and credit nsk exposure,

a) Financial assets thet are debt nstruments, and are measwred at amonised eost ez, oans, Jebt secerittes, depostts, and bank balance

4] Lopse tecenhles

4] Trade revewableos

The Gioup follows *suuphified approach’ for recognition of impawment bozs allowance on

¢ Trade recevnbles wincgh do not contam a sigmificant finanemg componznt

§ Alllease receivabiles resultsng from transactions

The appleston of sipluied approach does not require the Group 10 track changes in credit sk Rather, K recogmses impairment loss altowance based on
Ifetime ECLs gt cach 1eporung date, might from ils mital recognition

For vecogmuinn of imparmment loss on other finencial assets and nisk exposure, the Group detertings that whether there has been 4 significant increase in the
smice WA reeopmuion I credit rigk has not mereased sigmificantly, | 2-month ECL 15 used 10 provide for impaimment loss. However, it eredtt risk has
inereased simificantly, lifelime ECL is used. IV, in a subsequent peniod, credn quatity of the instrument mmproves such that there 15 no longer 8 significant nerease
10 eredit sk since mobal recognition, then (he entity reverts to recogrismy mmpairment (oss allowance based on 12-month ECL,

Fimancial Tnstrmnents ({0 cwntimwed)

Derteative cuniracts

Tlw wroup enters o a vanety of denvative financral instruments 16 manage (s exposwre 1o Imerest raw and foreign exchange rate risk. meluding foreign
gxchangy forward contracts, Interest rate swaps and cross curmeney swaps Derivatives are mitally recognised at (aic valuo at the date the derivative contracts are
entered mio and are subscquently remeansured to e far value at the end of escl reporting puriod The resuting gawdloss 15 recognised n profit or loss
immedeately
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Financial labilities

‘The Group classifies all financial Habilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for finaneial labiliies al faw value through prefit or loss. Sueh
liabilities, nciudimp detivatives that are liabilites, shall be subsequently smesswed at faur vatue

Tnitial recognition nod measurensent

Financial liabilities are clagsified, at iitial recognition, a8 fmancial labilities at fait value through profit or loss, loans and bomrowings, payables, ot as derivatnes
designated as hedgmg instruments s an effective hedge, as appropriate

All financial liabilities are recogmsed matially at fine vahag 2nd, 1n the eaze of loans and bomowngs and payables, net of diwectly sinbutable wansaction costs

The Group's finaneial habues nslude wade and oiher payables. loans and borrowings ineluding bank overdrafis, finaneial guarantes contraets and denvative
fimancal nstiunents

Finnncial linbilitics at fir valoe through profit or loss

Financial habilities a Far valve Uwough profit or loss include financial liabilites held for trading and fimancial Tiabilites designated upor initial recognition as at
faw value through profi or loss. Financial labalities are classified as lield for trading 1f they ae incurred for the purpose of repurchastng w the pear term This
category also ineludes denvative financial mstruments entered into by the Group that are ot dusignated as hedging msmuments in hiedge relattonships as defined
by Ind-AS 109 Separated embedded derivatives are also classiffed as held for wading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments

Gains or lesses on Drabelities held for irading ure recognised 10 the profit or ioss.

Financial biabifities designated upon watial recogniion at fair velue through profi or loss are destgnated at the 1nitl date of recognien, and only if the critera in
Ind-AS 109 are satisfied For liabilives designated as FVTPL, fair value pains/ losses auributable to changes m own gredic risk are recognized in OCT These
gawmsdoss are not subsequently transferred 10 profit and loss However, the Group may transter the cumulalive gam or foss within equity. Allother changes m fur
vabue of such liabilaty are recagrused in the statetnent of profit or loss. The Group has net desigrated any Dinancial liabihity as at faw value through profit and loss

Loans and borrewings

Alter nitiel recognition, mterest-beanng loans and borrowings are subsequently measured 2 amortised cosl using the EIR method. Gains end losses are
eeognized in profit or loss when the habilities are derscognized

Amartised cost 18 caleulated by takmg o accolnt amy discount or premjum on gequisition and fees or cests that &re an integral part of e EIR, The EIR
amortisation 15 mcluded as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss

This category eenerally applies 10 uterest-beanng loans and borrowings

Preference shares, wiuch are mandatonly redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabiliues The dividendls o these preference shares are recoghised tn
profit vc loss as finance cosls

The fair value of the liability porton of an optienally converuble bonds 3 determined using 2 market interest rate for an equivalent non-converible bonds This
amount 15 recarded as a liability on an amerised cost basis untl extinguished on conversion or redemption of the bonds. The remainder of the progeeds s
attnbutable 10 the equity portion of the compoind instament This s recognised and included n sharcholders” equity, net of income tax effects, and not
subsequently rerneasured

Where the terms of a (inanetal liabilwy are renegotiated and the enbity fssues equaty instruments 1o & areduor to extnguish all or part of the bty {deht lor
equily swapt, o gam or boss is recognised i profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the camying amount of thie financsa] habaliy and the far
value of the equity mstnoments ssued

Derecognilion

A financyal ltability 15 derecogrused when the obligation under the liability 13 discharged or cancelled or vxpires. Wihen an exisiing [inarcial liabd ity 1s 1eplaced by
anoiher from the same lender on substantialiy dulYerent terms, or the terms of an existing Labihily are substaniially modificd, such an exchange or moduficadon is
treated as the derccogniion of the origingl liatulity and the recognition af a new hability The dilference i the respective carmymg amounts is recogmscd in the
slatement of profi or loss,

Lmbedded derivatives

1F the hybrid conract contains a host that is o financial asset wathin the scope Ind-A% 119, the Group does nok separate embrdded denvatives. Rather, o applies
the classification requirements contamed in Ind AS 109 10 the entite hybnd contract Denvatives embedded m al! other host coniaets are accounted for as
separate dervatives and recorded at Far value o thew economic chatacteristies and risks are not closely relatad to those of the host contragts and the host,
eontragts are ot held for trading or designated at fair value trough profit or loss, These embedded dervatives are measured at faw value with changes in far
value Tecogrised in prafit or loss, unless designaled as efTeciive hedgmg ssmuonents. Reassessment only cecurs 1f there 1s either a change i the terms of the
comuract that sigmificanty madifiss dic cash flows

Oifseitiog of financial inscruments

Financia! assets and liabiliies ace offset and ihe et amount 13 reported 1 the balance sheet, where there 15 a legally enforceable night to offsel the recognised
amounts and there is an miention o scttde gn 2 net basis or realise the asset and settle the lability simultaneously The legally enforeeable night must not be
centingent on future events and must bo enforceable in the normal course of husiness and 10 the event of defawlt insolveney or bankruptey of the group or the
LOuUNterparty,

Derivative financial insiyumenis

The Group uses detivative financial instruments, such as foregn exchange forward contracts and ilerost rate Swaps to manage ®5 EXposure Lo Intercst rate and
foreign exchange nisks For contracts where hedye acoowting 15 net followed, such dervative financial insiruments are mitially recogrised a fajr value on the
date on whirch A dervatve eontract is entered mto and are subsequently re-measured at fair value Uwough profi o loss account Defvatives are carmed as
finanvial assets when the far vaiue i3 positive and a5 financial habilihes when the far value 15 negauve
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Ermployee benehis

Shurt-term em ployes benchits
Short-tomm employee benefits are expetsed a5 the related service 15 provided A liability 15 recogmsed lor the amopum expected to be paid of the Group has &
present legal or constructive obligation to pay 1his amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation ean be estimated reliably

Crmpensated absences

The lizkelines for camed leave and sick leave are nol expecled (@ be seitled wholly within 12 months afier Use end of the period m which the emplovess render the
related service They are therefore measured as the present value of expected fuiture payments 1o be made m respect of services provided by employees up (o0 the
end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yizlds at the snd of the reporting period thal have
lerms approximating to the terms of the relaled oblisation, Re-measurements us a resuit of experience adjustments and changes m actuanal assumplions are
recognised m profit or logs

Delined contribution plans
Obligatinns for contributions 1o defined contnibution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. Prepard contribations are recognised a5 an assel to the
extent that a cash refund ot a reductton in future payanents s available

Defined benefit plans

The Group’s net obligaton m respect of defined benefit plans 15 calculated separately for cach plan by estmating the amount af future benefu that employees
fave eamed n the ewrrent and prioc periods, discounting thag amount and deducting the far value of any plan assets

The calculation of detined benefit obligations = performed annually by 5 quaiified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the caleulaton resulis in
a potential asset for the Grotp, the recoprsed asset is Hmned to the present value of economic benefits gvailable in the form of any fiture refunds from the plan
or reductions s flture contributions to the plan, To caleulate the present value of eeonomic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable muimum funding
requireients.

Re-mezsurement of the net defined benefit liabiity, which compnse sctuarial gains and losses, the returm on plan assets (exchudmg interest) and the effect of the
asset ceilmy (of any, escluding intereat), are recogmsed immediately in other eomprehensive income {QCT) Net nerest expense (income) on fhe net dehined
fiability (assets) 15 computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined labuliey (asser). Lo the nev defined lability (asset) 2t the stan of the
fmancial vear after taking mto account any changes as a result of contrdution and benefit payments during the year. Nek inlerest expense and other expenses
relgted (o defined benefit plans are recogrused m prefit or foss

When the benefits of 2 plan are changed or when a plan 15 curtaled, the resulting change in benefit that relates 1o past service or the gam or loss on curtatlment 1s
recaymized iamedialely n profit ot loss, The Group reoognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when tha scitlement acowrs.

Ciler lgng-term cmpleyee benefits

The Croup’s net oblizgenon in tespoct of long-term employee bemefits 18 the amount of funure benefit that employees have eamed w rolum for their service i the
current and priar periods That berefit 15 discounted (o determue ns preserd vabue. Re-measwrement are recognised 0 profit or loss 1 the period n winch they
arise

Fravisions

Leng-tenm provisions are determuned by discounting the expected future cash lows speeific o the lsbility, The vnwinding of the dscount s recognised s
fnance cost.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estinste of tlie expenditure required (o settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
peniod. The discount te used 1o determine the present value 1s a pre-tax rate that reflects cwrent market assessments of the 1ime value of money and the risks
specific to 1he bability. The merease in the provision due to the passage of me 15 recognised as interest expenge.

Onergus conlracls
A provision for onevous contracts is measured al the present value of the lower of the expected cost of termimabing the contract and the expected nel cost of
contimang with the contrass Bofore a provision is sstablished, the Group recognises any impainment less on the assels assoetated with 1hat comtract

Earnings per share

Basic camimgs per share is computed by dividimg the profit 7 (loss) afier tax by e weighted average tumber of equity shares outstanding durng the year, The
welghted average number of equity shares aulstanding during the vear is adjusied for the events for bonus 1ssue, bonus element i & nghts 1ssue 10 existng
shareholdets, share sple and reverse share sphi {consolidation of shares),

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / {loss} after tax as adjusted for disidend, mterest and other charges 1o expense or income (nat of any
altributable taxes) relatmg o the difuiive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares conmdered for deriving basle eamings per share
and the weighted average nurmber of equity shares which could have been issued on converzion of all dilutive potential equity shares
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Naotes to the consolidated Ind AS financiat statements
for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Currency Indizn rupecs ml2khs)

219

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affats {"MCAY), throvgh Companies (Indian Accourdmg Standardsh Amendment Rules, 2019 and Comp {Iindian A
Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified the followang new 2nd amendments 2o Inil ASs which the Group has not applied as they are effective from
Apnl 1, 2018,

End AS- 116

Ind A5 116 wall replace the existing leases standard, Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 scis out the prmeeples for the recogmtion, measurement, prescntation and
disclosun: of leases for both lessees and lessors. It mtroduces a single, on-bafance: sheet lessee recountng model for Jessers A lesses recogmses rght-of-use asset
representing 1ts right bo use the underlying asset and a lease lisbihty representing its obhgation 10 make lease payments The sandard alse containg enhanced
diselosure requirements for lessees, Ind AS 116 substantially camies forward the lessor accouning requirements i Ind AS ¥7 The Group will adapt Ind AS i6,
elfeenve annual reporting penod begmning Apnl 1, 2009

Ind AS 12 lncome taxes (amendments relating 1o income Lix consequences of dividend and uncertainiy over incom e tax tréacm enls)

The amendment relating 10 ncome tax consequences of dvidend clarify that an entity shall recognise the tncame tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss,
other comnprehensive income o1 equity according to where the entsty onginally recognised those past transazhons or cvents The Company does not gxpect any
impact from s proneumeement,

[nd A5 109 = Frepayment Features with Negative Com pensation

The amendmenms rolate 1o the existing requirements th Ind AS 109 regarding termanabion nghts 1n order 1o allow measurement 2l amortsed cost {or, depending on
the business model, ot farr value through other comprehensive income) even m the case of negetive The Compensation payments, The Graup does not expect ths
amendment 1 have any impact on s inancial statements

Tnd AS 19 = Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments clanty that of a plan amendment, curtailinent or settlement, oe¢urs, it 15 mandatory that the ewTenl senvige cost and Lhe net enterest for the penod
afier the re-measurement are determined ung the assumptions used for the re-measueement. In addwion, amendments have been ineluded Lo clarify the effect of a
plan amendment curtailment or settlement on the requirsments regarding the nsset coling The Group dess not expeet ihis amendment to have any significant
impact an its Fsancial statements

Ind AS 23 = Barrowing Costs

The amendments clanily that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding alter the related assel 1§ 1exdy for its itended vse or sale, 1hal borrowing becomes part
of the funds thet an entity borrows generally when caleulating the capitalisation rate on generzt borrowings. The Group does not expect any mmpact from this
armersliment
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Tata Realiy and Infrastructure Limited
Noies 1o the Consolidated (inzncial statements

o the Jear ended 3 Morck 26049

(urmemay Indian mepecs i bikdhs)

Dvole 4
Investment Property

Farticolies Freciald Tand Lease beld land | Buildings | Compmters|  Famiture Ofivee Electrical Plant & Toial
wind Hizivres | equipents fittings Machinery

Cost
A3 Murch 2007 20688 1412TY 233386 law I 91 11775 LA 443,532
Addinnns - - 1034 - u 249 110 477 2,721
Disposals . - - - - - - {674y M)
At M Mareh 2018 M GRR 41 279 135,311 1 440 133 L1203 3450 445,649
Addition on Asaslgamauon ! merger B . - . . . - - -
Additions - - TE28 - s 9 i7 1.623 2434
Dispasals - - - P - {3 1) () {6T3)
Al M March 2019 INGRE id1 279 242940 120 515 126k 11,562 35618 454411
Depreciation | smordsation mmd impaireent .
A3 Mlarch 2017 30 12318 RIS i 366 R2 2.033 LigE:3] 53,534
dmpas rement Joss {Rofer Mo nelow) 447 - - - - - - - 467
Clarge for the sear - LAl RAGS 1 R 70 1104 3304 14,373
Reversal of impaimmend loss (Refer Note below) - - - . - - . (389) _{359)
At 31 Mareh 2015 AL 13,733 40410 120 anz (E)4 4061 12.94%6 17,985
Imparement lass (Refir Mote hebpw) - - - - - - - & -
Change for the year * - 1417 *A71 L] A3 127 LT ENFY 15,005
Dsposals - - - - - [ed) [(J] {607} &0
AL M March 201% [N Rd] [E Rk 44,58 128 40 277 5,198 15,316 111
Met Block as ak 31 Mucch 2018 14427 121,526 194,001 2 138 1021 T34 11,668 367664
Mot Black ag a1 31 March 2039 | 14,497 126093 123,363 1 185 i) 5,364 20,103 _361.0dH

~ Depreesanen capualised 1w Investoment Peaperny wider Construction Rs 85 kaklis {Previous wear Re. Nil)

1 Awmounis mcoguised in profit & loss for Invastmen properey

Particolars 31 Margh 3 March
FU1R Mg
Runtal fncog 53431 4811
DhrecL pperalife sspenses from propetty that generated sental wncome 35228 23.067
Dhrect operating expenses from property that did not penerte rental income 343 1.472

i) Leasing arrangemends
The Group lias leased poop undes mon

leiges in the capaeity of o lossoc Refor Notg 7 fv fuwane sanimum lease pavments w rospeet of these propenes Bl e vpiny of lock in

Wi} Vrgsrment loss

Dunng tie yeir Rs Nil (previous vesr Rs 467 Lakbs) of impaiment loss was recogrused during the yeat Based on the perfonnance of the propeet dunsg the curment vear and future projuctions, an
impirment anglveis hod been carned out duwiing e vear and such amparrmwent [958 was necogmeed dunng the year.

i) Measurensem of Lalr values

The far value ofin cE prope et ane d i afler id virluation by an andepe pdent valsur who holds a o §and relgvant pref: I geal: Ton and in respect ofthe
Investrment propery being valued
T fair vabue forall of the in properiv has been eategonsed as 2 buvel T Gor valoe hased on the swpuits to *he valuntion techmigu. gsed

i) Valuation technique:

4, Valuation af same subyset property has been done by Sales Companson Method wnder Market Approach. A comparison 1s riade for the pumoase of valusiton with similar propesties that have rocently
breen sold in the market and thus have a transacton price The sales companszon ap h 13 the prefirred approacl when sates data ane available. Comparable propeeies ane sclected for similarits 1o the
subiicet propeny censidenng annbutes like age. size, shape. quality of eonstruction. butlding features, condition. design, gentry, wte, Thine salo press an: then adjusted for theur difizrence from the subject
propery. Finaliy i markes value for the subject property is estinuted from the adjusted sales priee of the gomparable preperties.,

by, The Group alsa has followed discounted cash flows techinique for some property which considens the present value af net eash flows 1o be generated from the propery. wsiag Mskeadpusied discoum mics,

tn cs0 of a valuatior of o large Yand parcel liks e subject propern. where the development potential 15 pealssed over 2 penod of tne (e Bme value of mony comes ik the prund and olso whens theee
ane noar few immediate simitar propertivs (i e sompamble) avsilahle for comparsan, BEF methed considermy relevan pewabal developments af the propect is uscd,

Tnvestmenl propeny compases i himber of commereial proporties that e
with the lessee or as per tho lenas af britial agreement sne auiomatically e

ol 10 lhird partics. Fach of the leases enlered are mammally for 2 perod of 5 to B0 vears. Subseq T 13 A nug
o Mo contingent roats oee clianged.

reonciliaf valug

Thz Company cvaluntes i for | prapesty aml | property wider €onstruction altogether 15 both relate to same projict. The following is the reconcillativn in the fair
values a5 of Moargh 3E, L018and Mareh 31, 2009

Particulars . Amount

Orpenip balenge as of April 4, 2017 444 261
Addar 2,79t
Faur vaiue diffenosee 5, 264
Closinp budnnce w5 of Alareh 31, 2008 SH332
il ione 9,434

Eeur value diffeines
Clusing balance az uf March 31, 2019
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes Lo the consolidated [nd AS fnancial statements {Conliowed)

{Currency- [ndian rupees n lakhs)

Note 5

Capital work-in-progress

Land demarcation and refaresiation
Project consullancy and technical charyes
Tzl Capilal Work in Progress

MNote &

Investment propeely sader cnosiruction
Land
Direet expenses and oiher adjustments

Less  Iepairmem Loss *

31 March 31 March

3 53

[13 63

1zl 114

24,522 24,932
117,576 §3.925
142,448 L13,247
(1,050) {1,030)
141,468 LILEIT

* Based on the performance of the project and flture propeciions, an impairment analysis had been ¢amied out ang suel impairment loss

was recoprised in past years

Nole 7
I ible zssels nnder develoy uniler SCA

Projeci Dovelepment Expenses

Professtanal Fess

Projeet hanagemen Fees

Finance Costs (Including unwinding of interast)

Canstruetion Cost to Coniractor

Financsal liability for premium payable recognised al fair value

{hher Expense

324

62,308 25300
1,368 1,138
5100 1934

15917 G405

T4.996 45,139

62,154 51,442
2,301 1815

224,165 143,253




Tata Realty and Tnfrastructure Limited

Nates to 1the Consolidated financial statements
e the o ended 31 March 201

(Curmency  lodian rupces i Jakhs)

Note &
Onher intangible assets
grh]e Asi:t

Particolars Soliwares Sewntrr Tetal of | gibl

Arrgngements # Ass2iz
Can
At M March 2017 387 - 387
On aceours Acquisuon of Subsidiaries - ab07e 41,079
Additons 23 . 3
Insposals 2y - i12)
At 3 Mareh 2018 398 2,078 41477
On accowm Acquisiion of Subadwiny . - -
Additions (L] 22171 9.24)
[nsposals - - -
At 31 March 2019 40§ 0,350 50,7158
Depreaiation ! amortisalion and imparment
At 31 March 2007 pLE] - 235
On acconnt Acquisiton of Subsiduariss - 1.271 1171
Chatge for the yoar® 42 2183 1,195
Dispasals T 3 (1)
Ar ) Mareh 2018 kAT 3424 3,740
On aceounl Acgquisitan af Subsidmncs - - -
Charge for the veas il (¥ F) 1,593
Dusposals - - -
A13] March 200% 3T 4,90 5333
Nel Block 85 11,31 March 2018 7] 37,655 37,737
Nel Bloth as at 3 March 2019 k| A%,354 _ 45425

Paasenger Ropeway Facilily

The Group has meeived the nght (o shange users a fate for the passenger opeway facility which the Group will calleetand retam The Growp has 2 discretnonto decide the user fare to be eharged Menes the

p bed far service A undet hied AS )15 Comstruction Contracls 1s not fulBiled henee SCA accounting is not spplied The Group shall pay 1o the Authonty cvery vear jonce
SONSLELGH 18 complels), 4 concersion fig, & Minmmun Cruaraniced Amount (MGA) of INR 100 lakhs for Dharamshala & ™R 150 lkhs for Manali which shall be incicased by 5% and 10% respecthvely
every yeas over the previgus year's anmual fee The C shall transfet the prajuct assets inclodiog iand armanged by the concessionai te Concessioning Authonty (CAY o5 its designated
apt hanty after the expar f Concession Period at Nil Value 1e without any costs obligation to CA - Al the e of Lansier of the projectprogect faeility, the CA shall confirm that (a) All
prajeet assets meluding Ropeway. Parking structure. eguipment cig shall have been fered in good condition with 21} spuc d 25, Wrile ups ol

# Acquisition of subsoiany }
During the previous year Grolgp acqmired | 00% siake in ane of the gubsudiary company The excess of the

congideration wansfered.

Acquisiteon-date book value of any provious equity imterest m the asqumed enlity over the beok valuc af the net idertifisble asseis aciuired is recorded s goodwlll The pondwillof Re 14.256.2% |akhs has
been allocated iowards Inangible Asset (Read Asset SCA) beimg e faw valse mircase on the date of aquisition

Bervice coneession agresment

Hama ol entity Description of the srrangement Sipnifizani terms of the arrangement
Intematisnal Infrabwld Puy Lig As per the Concession Agreement (CA) the Compeny is required tf Period of concessiot 33 yrs

buold and operate Mults Level Car Parkong and callect Parking fees| lovesir ent grmni frofm coneession granior - Nil

from Vemalesand User fees for Public Conveotencs Facililies The|lnvesur enl and rencwal obligaions N:l

CA 250 specifics that the Company w5 reqwred 1o buill and operate| Basis ujpon which re-prating of /e ] 1 Infiauco
of the ot arsz of eommencal infrastructure and an area of 5% Le|Premium payable 1o grantor Yes

46k sg.m shall be seserved for Auto ShovereanyAuto Workshop

Haraga Expressways Privale Limied Dezign, Buwld, Finance, Operate and Transfes (DBFOT) basis.|Penod of concessian 2046 - 204
augmentabion of the existing read from km 299 00 to km <11 75| Remiuration - Tell
(approsumately 120 18 km) on the Hospet=Ci d sectaon nIJII grant from grentor Ml
National Highway No 13 (Now Nationa) Highwey No.50) f and rengwal obli Nil

Bans upon which te-pricing ar 15
Preratais payable to grantor Yes

Dharamshals Ropeway Lmited [The Company has cnlered agreement with The Deparonenl of|Peried of concession: 40 Years
Tourtsm & Cral Aviation, Himachal Pradesh (*Authority'} or the|Remuncration Rs ! Cr Plus §% Incrcase
cemstruciion of Passenger Ropeway  beoween  Backs: of| grant fipm o grantor  NIL
Dharamehals Bostand wplo Dalah Lama Temple, lood il and rengwal ablig: Non Renewal

untier DBFOT Madel (Despn, Build, Fitatce, Operate aud Basis upon which re-preing or re-negobauan 15 delermned  Design
Transfier Model), reforred te as "Passenger Ropeway Facility” The| Build Finance Operate & Transfer

Passcnger Ropeway facility 18 ander corstruction as on date  The|Premivmn payable 1o grantos Rs | Cr

Civil & Land Siie Devlopmemswarks have becn staned during thel
veas Under the tzrms af the agrecment. the Company will aperate)
ard make the Passenger ropeway Eachhiny avaslable 1o the public)
once conglruchion it esmnpleie
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Nates 1o the Consolidated Nnancial stslemenis
Jar e year endeof 31 Ak 2070

[Cowmerwy Dwdian rupees i Jakhsy

Nute §
Driher intangilde asscls

Monall Rapownys Provace Liwied

The Company Led crcierd o b Concesaon Agreemenl on daled)
21 Cxaoher 013 | with The Deparement of Towiym & Civl)
Avaaton, Himaghal Prodesh | Antoriy 1 foc the consimaction o
Prssenger Ropoway babwen Palchan and Rohieng ot Monals sitder
BOT Madel (Built, Operate and Transler Model) The constrisxtion|
has ned started as on daie and the sompany 15 m precess of oaining]
various por t
ropeway Undes the seras of the agrsvnksn. e Company will
operaie and mabe e pacsenpor ropeway facilin avalalde o Lhe)
publi gnee constrachion 15 complele.

Tor ¢

Petiod ol contession. 40 Years

Remunecation * s, 5,30 Cr Plus 1P Increase

| Invesiment prant from concession grantor - ML
|Tnvestment and ronewal obligations - Non fentwal

| Basis upots whaeh re-pricing or se-negoliaion is detertined
Built\Jperute and Transies

e consimection of|Preménm payable to grantar R 6.%0 Cr

Llchil Exprassway Privacs Lid,

Sin Lavmg of Chittocgarh-Udaspar Seclion af NH-T6 from Desipm
Chamage B 214870 1o Km 308370 in the Siate of Rapsthan
(Lenggh 93 500 Kenp on DEFOT (Telll Mede urdor NHDE Blace W
(Package -lil)

Fenwod of concession. 29 Yers

Remmneration = NIL

Envestment grans from cancession grantar . KL

Envestanent and renewal obligtions - NIL

Hasis upen which re-pricing o¢ re-neyotation is determyned - MA
Preméum pavable to prontor : ML

Drarg Sl Rogincgsmuys Frvane Limrsd

Thie company 15 eagazed i the busincss of woll collecuons from the)
ugers and aperation and maimenance of iotal streich of 15,5 kms al
NH-6, Durg Bypass os agread bemwoen the Company and Mational
Highways Authoriy of Ieda (MHAD en Buld Ohpersie 2wl
Transfer |[BOT] basis

1 Feriod of Concession 32 Years and & mens (Concession poood
cnds oy MRS M3

2y Remureration: Toll Fee Collaction fram Reae Uscrs tappros. 63010
B growth i sear on veark

F1 lnsgstmen Grast from Concession Gramor (NHAD - NIL

4 Basie upsn wltich re-pricing ar re-nepofigtion 2 determised — Toll
Taodl will be revised E51Apnl of every year congidermg WPL

A1 Promuun pay able vo Grantor = MiL

Mallwaran fogavns #rivals Linuted

The Commparny 35 dtvelopihg 4 Ropowsy project i Matheaw
Moheeashira of appres, 43080 Meters connectng Bhukali Villape!
1o Madbovii Pomt ot Matheran, oo Dosign, Boild, Fmance, Operatel
and Transler (DEEQT) bazis. The Project would have 2ll elonents
of sustamaiility and would be nolse froe. clostnciey driven. Eco-
friendly and son-potlating, 1 is sstimated that e Projes would
v ~ 100 donne of corbon diexde emistions

The Campaay s signed an Agreanent with Tle Maheran Guisthan
Nagar Panshod, Matheran an 20th hay 2003 lor a penod of 949 years.
The Company ikas agreed 1o pay composation equal to 5% of is nel

wrofits of each year Lo Matheran Giristhan Nagar Parishad. Matheran,

The Hopeway will be diaded into 2 sections. Length of Sectom | s
npprax LT kim with menecable detachable pondola system. Lengih of
Secnon 2 is pppros b 7Skm with treable jighack system,

Dutang U FY 2047 - 1R, company has achieved Ebviromtmeano b
clearanee feam MOEF and made significant advansement in Stage 11
Forest Clearance. The company i planning 1o comnwncs the
construction work in October 201 8 and connsercinl operations by
Degowndber 2000,

Puue Solapur Expressvoy Pyt Lud

the Company [concessionane| entered into o service concession
apreemen with o WHAT (The Maoral Highway s Authogsy 1o Fadia
also the ‘gramter’) fo congiruct 3 Lol highway between Pune ond
Solapur The construguon of the 101] ropd stasted thareafior pnd it
was parsially compleled en 3 Febroary 2003 and was [ully
comploted ond pyvailahla For use on 31 Janvary 200 3

Period of concession, 20 Yeans

Rcoy meratson | NIL

[nves meal prang from concession granter - ML

[nves ment and renewat oblgations @ ML

Basis wpod whish 1¢-pricing of re-segolE0oD 15 determuncd | M4
Bremoum payable to prantor © NIL
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the ¢consalidated Tnd AS §i izl slatenronts (Conilnued)
(Cusrency Indian rupees w lakhe)

31 warch 2019 31 March 2008

Note 9

Carrying Cust ol investoient in joint ventures:

Ungtioted equity shares, fully paid-up

2386711 (2018, Z386711) cquity shares of Pune Solapur 2,170 2970
Expressways Private Limued, s jomt venture, of Rs.10 each fully pmd
up

TH0,000 (2018 740,060) cquity shares of INR 10 gach in TRIL IT4 - -
Private Lumited (Formerly known as Albrechi Builder Prwvare
Lismuned) 4

10,000 (2018 10,0000 equity shares uf A & T Road Construction - -

Management and Operation Prvate Limited, a jomt venture, of Rz 10
each fully pad up w

2997 (2018 2.997) equity shares of INR 1D each in Industmal 21,90 21,921
Minerals and Chemicals Company Private Eimied

Unguoted equity shares, fully paid-up

16,989,290 {2018 15,939,290) equity shares of TNR 10 each i I04¥6 10,459
Mikado Realtors Pyt Lid

53516 55,150
Invesiment in debenlures of jsint venture
214 (2018 814) Rated Listed Redesinable Non-convertible 8,140 B, 140
Debentuses of INR 10 Lacs cach in TRIL 1T4 Private Limited
10,473,960 (2018: NIL-} Computsanty Convertible Debentures of 10,474 -
INE 100 each In Industrial Minerals ond Chemicals Company Private
Limed
18,614 B340
73,30 63,290
#1 Unrecognised share of Losses in Joint Venture
TRIL IT4 Pvivite Lamited (15,815) (12,5500
A & T Read Construcuen Management and Operabion Privale
Limmed ) )
Note 10
luvestment in other emnpanics fair value through profit and loss
Unquoted equity instiruments, fully paid-op
Others.
16,300 (2018, 16, 500) equity shares of QPG Power Generation - 3
Privote Lamited
11760012018 117600) equity shares of Vagarm Windizms Lmied 12 12
T2 W8T (208 189,187} eausty shares of Echanda Une Brivate u 11
Lamited
F) 15
Mate (1
Oiher nen-current fisuncial assets
Ulnisecrredd, catidered gond
Fined deposat having maturily inore than 12 months under lien 500 375
Lease rental recevable 123 94
Interest pecived on bank deposis - 3
Recoverable from Punjab Urban Development Authonty { Refer foor
noie below) 517 -
Seeurty Doposits AG7 1,195
1,677 1669

Foot Nots!

The tespective group company has won the matler under Iitigation with Pumab & Haryana tgh Cow single beneh for recovery of
extension fee amounbng to INR 372 77 lakhis alongwith mierest from Punjab Urban Development Anthonty (PUDA) in March 2016,
PUDA filed an appeal with Pumyab & Haryanz High Count m August, 200 7 with double bench agamst the judeement of sitgie bench
of Pumpaly & Haryana High Count The matter ¢ pending with honourable High caurt far hearng end the next hieanng date for the
same ks May 16, 2019
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes (0 the lidated (nd AS Ginancial stat 18 (Continned})
{Cureney: Indizn nipees in lakhs)

Note 12
Deferreil tux nssets

= INVESIMENtS 1N associates and]o:nl YOTAUrEs

- Impact of Effective Interest rate on Bomowings

- other finuncial asseds at fawr vatue brough profit and loss

= Unused Tax losses carred forveard

= Un other provistons (ineluding provasion for employves benefits and
other amounts allowabie on a payvment basis)

- on gecoutt of PPE and Intangibles

= derivaivies (meluding call put aptions)

Nate 13

Mon Currenl tax wssels (Nel)
Advance tax
Less: Provision for Lax

Note 14
Cther noan-carrent agsets
Unsecured. considered gond

Capial advances

Balance with Government Authorities
Prepatd expenses

Leasc cqualisalion reserve

Cther non-cumen assels

Note 15

Inventories

frarluied ol cost ar et reahselle vahoe whichever is fess)
Constryciion raterials

Consumables stores and spares

Work-n-progress

Finished goods

Note 16

Trade and other receivablos
Secured, constdered good
Ungecured, conssdercd good
Unsecured, conssdered doubtful
Allowance for daubiful debis

MNaie 17
Cash und cash equivalenly
Cash on hand
Balancs with banks
-0 CLIresth aceinniy
- 1 deposit aceounts

Note 18
Banl: balsnces other thun cash snd cash equivalents

Term deposit with onginal matanty ess than twelve months wider
lren

328

31 March 2019

31 Mapch 2018

1,487 214
. 173}
1,340 -
- 1%
238 298
91 2365
1,599 2481
6,456 7,244
15,448 14,591
{4,956) {5,020}
10,889 3,571
16,676 22,075
112 42
8 19
9310 7,4%
169 -
16,275 79,727
52 238
77 3
15,341 13,592
23,248 30,501
13,718 33,131
21,061 2029
785 2,858
275 393
(275) {393)
2,546 5,787
23 72
2,099 404
3,729 3,035
5,921 7,141
1,579 345
1,579 345




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
INotes to Ihe consolidated Tnd AS financial siatements (Continmied)
{Currency Tndian rupees in lakhs)

Nole 19

Investonend in mniual funds:

Fair valned through Profic and Loss:

Lnits Held 10576.43 (2015 2,534,398 32) of Face value of Rs §.000
(NAY - Rs 2 5944 44) each in TATA money market fund - Chrect Flan -
Growth

2583167 units [2018 28.831.67] of Face value of Re |000 {(NAV .
Rs 2.788.16) each mn Frenkln India Treasury Management Account -
Super Institutional Plan - Growth

10,19, 407 7% umies [2018: 10,19 467 79] of Face value of Ks 10 {(NAV
- Rz 20.27) each in Franklin India Ulua Shon Bond - Super
Institutional Plan - Growth

Nuote 20

Shori-ierm loans nnd advanges
Elvecnred, considered gnad

Advamnces given

Seeunty deposits

Advances recoverable from Related Parties
Other loans and advances

Sucinred consrdercel good
(iher advances

Note 21

Quleer cureent financial nssels

insecred, considered pond

Interest accrued on deposils

Claims Receivable from NHAL (utdmy shifting}
Recoverable frem Punjab Lirban Develapment Authornty
Unbulled revenus

Foreign Exchange Forward Conlract Reeevalle
Securtly deposils

Dithers eurrent fainancral asset

Noic 22

Qiler current assels

Unsecired, congidgred good

Advance 1a vendors

Belances with Government and other authontes
Prepaid expenses

Lease equalisation reserve

Claim Recervable frem NHAL {Refer foci note below)
Cthers

Foo1 Note:

3 March 11 March
I §.566
304 747
168 245

1,383 7958
2000 .
EH] -
[0:1] -
333 HT0
3.054 Lel)]
B 4,050
3,054 2,000
L15 35
L2 223
- 517
537 192
. i1
263 5
392 [
1,951 1,330
681 3,070
1463 Bk
805 B2
1,360 2236
1,048 -
3 35
5388 TS

Claim Receivable from NHAY pertans 1a claims towards chanwe in law as per elavse 41 1 of Service Concession Agreement entered with

NHAD by the cespective group company.
Noie 23

Share capiinl

Equity share capual

329

101,731

104,731

101,731

101,731




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements
as at 31 Mavch 2010
{Curreney Indian rupees in lakhs)

Note 23
Equity share eapital
Authgrised share capital

Equity shire capital
Authorised share capita)

3.00.00,00,000 (2018: 2,00,00,00,000) equity shares of INR 10 cach

1.90,00,00.000 3% Non cumulative convertible prelzrence shares of Rs 10 each,

Issued, suhseribed and paid-up
1087307692 (2018 1.01,73,07,692) equily shares of INR 10 each

Reconciliation of the shares outstaading at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity shares

At beginning of the ygar
Issued during the year
Qutstanding at the end of the year

Terms and rights attached to the cquity share

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

300,040 200,000

- 100,000

101,731 101.731

101,731 101,731

31 March 2019 31 Mavch 2018
Number of shares Amount Number of shures Amount

1,017.307,692 101,731 1.017,307,692 101,731
1,0§7,307,692 101,731 1.017,307,692 101,731

The Company has only one class of equity shares baving par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares 1s entited to one vote par share, The
Company declares and pays dividends 1o Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Beard of Directors 15 subject 10 the approval of shareholders in the
enzining Annual General Meeting. In the event of Liquidation of the Company, the olders of the equity shares will be entitled w receive remaining assets
of the Company, afier distnbution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be it propertion 1o the number of equity shares held by (he

shareholders

Shares of the company held by the Holding company

Tata Sons Private Limited and its nominee
Equity shares of INR 10 cach, fully paid-up

Details of sharcholdiag more than 5% in the company

Equity shares of INR 10 gach, fully pad-up
Tata Sens Private Linited

31 Mareh 2019

30 March 2018

Mumber of shares

Amount

Number of shares

Amounl

1,017,307,692

101,731

1.017,307.692

161,731

3% March 2019

31 March 2018

MNumber of shares

o Holding

Number of shares

% Holding

1,017,307,092

100%

1,017,307.692

100%
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes o the consolidaled Ingd AS finaneial statomenis {Cantinucd)
(Curengy Indian rupees m takls)

MNote 2d
Qther eguity

Reserves and surplus
Securiies premium

Capual reserve

Retained earnings

Gther compreheastve income
Pefined benefit plan adpusiment
FYOC - equity mstrurents

Seeurilies promivm reserve
Opening balance

Copital reserve
Openiye balange
Additien dunng the vens
Deletion during the year

Retained earnings

Cpening balance

Met loss for the year annbutable 1o owners
Consolidation adjustment

Transition adjustment due to applcation of IND A5 115
{Refer Note 51 (a))

Transferred from FYQC]

Other comprehensive inconee

Opening halance

Remensyretents of defined benefit ability [asset)

Income tax relating to ilems that will sot be reclassified 1o profit or
loss

Equity Instruments through Qber Comprehensive Income
resene

Opening balance

Translerted 10 rewined eamings

Nature and purpnse of (he reserve
Securitics preminm

Sgounties prefivm reserve is used 1o record the prémiunt on 13sue of shares.

Capital reserve

31 March 20192

31 March 2013

15.76% 15,769
491 491
1949,343) {74,541

7 ()
(78.8536) {53,875)
15,765 15,969
15,769 15,769
201 6,487

- (1,576)
4911 4,511
(74,541) {35,158)
(23,693) {40,198)
(5) ¢
(1.304) -
. 806
(99.543) [74,541)
(14 {40)
55 s
[(C]] &)
2¥ {14)
- 806
- (806)

Capital resenve ts used 1 récord excess of nel asseis baken over pursuant to scheme of merger saneuoned by High Court

Convertible preference shares clossified as equity

The growp has elassified compulsenly converilble preference convertible mto fixed number of equity shares as part of other couny

FVQTT « equity instruments

The group has clected to recognise changes in the fair value of cemtain mvestments N equity securities i other comprehensive
neome, These ¢lnges are accumulated within the FYOC] equity Unvestnients reserve within equaty
The wrowp translees smounts (rom this reserve 1o retamed earnmgs when the velevant cquity securitees are derecoginsed,

Note 25

Long-term hurrowings

Seewred

From Banks aud Fanandtal lngunstions
From Cihees

Unsecwrcd

Non converible debentures
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404,785 145,606
24,210 3,281
114,792 231,439
544,483 580,326
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Wotes (o the congolidated [nd AS fingnelal statemenis (Continued )
(Curvency Indian rupees tn lakhs)

31 March 2019 31 March 2008
Mote 26
Other financdal liabilities
Finanea! lisbalay for premwm payment ai far value 69,110 55368
Interest- free seounity deposiis o customers 13,210 12.073
Interest accruerd but not due on porrow s 11,139 4,945
Dervatives not desipnated ag hedges
= Forwards 425 3128
= Pul option 1,813 1,498
Liabality towards purchase of shares 649 $85
Retention money pavable 1,44 752
Secunity deposits 25 66
Froject development fees pavable 45 45
103,165 59,161
Note 27
Long-terra provisions
Provision for employee benelic
Gratuity 430 302
Leave encast and comp d absence 1] 826
Provision for Maor Mamizience of Roed # 2216 I.1G3
3260 2,237

& As per the best estinate of the management, provision s been made, towards cost of major mamtamence of the roads. Such major
mainiainence 5 to be executed in the Fuancial Year 200920 1n tenns of the agreement entercd mio with Nauonal Highways
Auhonity of India

Particutars | 315t March, 2019 31st March, 2018
On Acquisition of Subsldiary 1,10% 157
[Add: Pravision for \he year 1,011 233
Add: Unwinding of discounts on provisian s 19
Less' Utilisation / Settlemant - .
Clasing balance 2,216 1,104
Note 28

Delerred sax liabilitles

- o aceoum of PPE and Tnkangibles 1,117 454

- other financial assets s Mo value through profit and loss A67 -

1,584 454

MNote 22

Otber non-curreal Rabilities

Advance recewved T.050 1050
Advanee rent recerved 4,390 4,456

11,450 J L1546

Maote 30

Short-term borrowings

Secured

- From Bank 5189 1,5m
Unsecured

Cotmersal papet

- From Mutual fends # 6567 32,695
Bank Overdraft 4118 -
Inter Corporate Deposits Ttom Related Parties 14,008 .
T.oone {ram Others * L0 [{1s]

100,574 £1.296

Details of security and repaymend berms:

i Tl sand borrowing represcrts Commeraal paper issued to mutual funds st a discount rate ranging from 7 2004 - 9.10% per annum
{2018 7 05% - 7.50 % per annum, and the same are repavable within one year at the agreed upon full face value

* Borrowings outstandsmg as on March 2019 and March 2018 15 towards mterest frge, unsteured loan which shall be due and
repayabic ufter satisfaction of ranche | condstons m Matherun Ropeways Pyt Lid
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Nates o the cansolidated lod AS financial statersents (Cootinned)
{Curreney indian rupess in lzkhs)

Note 3§
Trade nud aillior payables

(e to kicro, Small and Medium Entarpriges (Refer Note 48)
e to others

Note 52
Current - Other lmancial linbilities
Current Maturrty of Long Term Borrowings
Non-convertible debentures
From banks
Interest- free security deposits from customers
Cupuald creduors
Interest accrued but aot due on borrowangs
Interest geeryed but dus on borrawings
Rutentian money payable
Denvitive Liakility on put oplion
Fmnangral habifity for premium payinent at fair value
Other financial labilicees

Note 33

Gther curceal liakilitles

Advances from costomers

Siatutory ducs

Corpus Fund collecion

Advance Mantenance Charges
Compensation on delayed possession payable
Uneamed rent

SBecurity Deposit from Customers

Other cuerent habilittes

Note 34
Shurt-lerm proy isions

Provision for emplovee benofile
Gratuity

Leave W aind comy led oih
MNole 35

Currem tax linbiidoy (Net)
Prevvsion for Tax
Advanee Tax and Tax Deducted at Saurce

337

31 darch 31 March
£3 42
415 SOLE80
0,468 10,722
118,794 -
U485 1,071
3341 S ¥24
12,408 15,158
8,079 7,959
153 -
34 256
15477 16,425
1,650 1,500
324 27
16H 715 59,220
3.984 3058
1,143 1.318
676 623
a5 343
11 54
1332 Gt
(2] 64
4% 5
7354 B AEL
82 2
13! 92
1683 114
2,149 9,540
{1,361} {7.543)
1,788 1,997




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Cosfinued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

Note 36
Revenue from operations

(A) Sales of products
Sale of residentia) flais (refer fool nole below}

(B) Sale of services

Construction revenue

Toll revenue {includes demonatisation claim receipt of Rs. §19.07 Lakhs)
Lease rentals income

Mainlenance and other receipts

Utility income

Parking fees income

Proiect management consueltancy fees

Assel Managemenl Charges Income

Revenue from other services

Faot Nofe:

Effective 1 April 2018, the Group has transited to Ind AS 115 and has availed exemption from retrospective restatement
of revenue by adopting the modified approach as permissible under the transition pravisions of the standard, The effect of
initially applying this standard is recognised al the date of initial application (i.c. 1 April 2018). The standard is applied
tetrospectively only to contracts that are noi completed as al the dale of initisl application and the comparative

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

9,463 7,081
88,760 §57.934
12,819 11.321
41,870 37,425

5,953 5,434

6,243 5,726

1,251 836

1,123 1.574

148 171
i86 360
167316 127,862

information in the stalement of profit and loss is net restated (also refer Note 51 (a) ).

Note 37
Qther income

Interest income (including unwinding ol inlerest)
nteresi on income-tax refund

ProM on sale of investments

Gaig on re-valuation of Invesiments

Prefit on sale of Property Plant and equipment
Foreign exchange (Forward Contracl Gain MTM)
Gain on fair valve of financia) liabitities

Other income from residential projects

Fair value gain on derivatives (net)

Forfeiture of security deposits

Excess provision writlen back

Miscellancons income

338

1,953 2,036
74 336
273 161
100 54
- 124
- 114
- 65
162 84

3,329 .

4 22
177 -
544 399

6,616 3,395




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {Continited)

{Currency: Indian ropees in lakhs)

Note 38

Cost of materizls consumed
Opening balance

Add' Purchase of materials
Less: Closing inventones

Expenditnre incarred during the pear:
Opening work in progress

Consiruction cost

Approval and permission expenses
Prufessional fees and technical fees
Other expenses

Less: Closing Stock of Inventorics
Add: Transition adjustment pertaining to IND AS 115 application

Cost of Nats sold

Naote 39
Construction cost

Note 40
Em ployee beuefit expenses

Satartes, wages and bonus

Contributions 10 : Provident and pension funds

Staft welfare

(iraluny expenses

Compensated absences
Less: capitalised (o investnent property under construction
Less. capitahised to intangible asscts under development
Less, capitalised to Inventories

MNate 41

Finance cosis

Interest costs.

- on lenu leans and NCD's

- om cush eredul and overdrafis

- on commercial paper

MTM on forward contract

Finance charges

Unwindng of inlerest expense

tess: capitalised to invesiment property under construction
less, capitaiised to intangible assels under development

339

A+B

31 March 2019

3F March 2018

256 394
{52) (256)
204 138
41,485 43,268
3319 2,459
70 28
47 40
86 49
15,007 45,844
45,211 45,082
40959 41,485
1.870 -
6.122 4,497
83,095 P
7,787 7,725
267 268
341 476
29 27
126 49
217 (194)
74) {(zn
- ()
B.25% 8,229
50,752 48,558
33 1,518
6,140 5,508
605 -
449 553
3,756 1.568
(3.900) (3.131)
(5.770) {400}
52,055 54,471




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
(Currency. Indian rupees in lakhs)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

MNote 42
Other expenses
Power and fuel 7218 6,34}
Imparrment loss (Reter Note 50) 730 3219
Repairs and maintenance
- Building 74 159
- Planl & Machinery 89 87
- Provision for Major Maintenance {Refer Note 30) 1,011 533
- Others 1,121 357
Operating and maintenance charges for infrastructure facilities 5973 5,714
Fair value loss on denvatives - 1,846
Advertisement and business promolion cxpenses 1,229 1,473
Legal and professional fess 2,257 1,536
Rates and 1axes 5129 1.122
Rent (Refer Note 47) B5% %63
Traveiling and conveyanes 387 453
Bank charges 314 210
Telephone and communication expenses 187 149
Business development expenses 56 135
Training and recrintment expenses 127 122
Provisions and writeofTs:
Excess service tax credit wrirten off - 122
Pravision for doubiful debls 390 49
Bad debis 22 43
Advance written off 4,050 16
Auditor's remuneralion 90 82
Brokerage 1M 83
Insurance charges 101 78
Fees to WHAI 108 -
Printing, cobrier and siationery 40 63
Directors sitting Fees 48 45
Loss on sale of property. plant and equipment 3l 4]
Expenditure on Corporale Social Responsibiliry 177 449
Tender expenses 3 26
bembership fees 16 9
Compensation paid to customers 588 7
Miscellaneous expenses 138 225
28,555 28,650
-
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes 1o the consolidated financial statements (Condinues)
Jor the year ended 31 Mareh 2015

(Cwreney Indian rupees in lakhs)

Note 43
Ezrnings per share
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Basic earnings per sharce
Logs after tax antnibutable 1o cquity sharehelders A (13,653} (A0, 198
Number of equety shares custandng at the begiuing of the year 1,017,307 ,692 1.0%7 307 692
Equity shares tsseed dunng the year - -
MNumber of equity shares oulstanding st the end of the year 1,017,307 692 1,017,30% 692
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding durmg the year (based on date B 1,017,307,692 1.087,307,653
of 153ue of shares)
Basic camings per sharc of face value of Rs 10 cach jC = A/B) (2.3 {3 95)
Difuted earnings per share
Duluted eamwngs per sharc of {ace veluc of INR 10 each (133 {395)
MNote 44
Conti. fes zad itments
(1) Contingeni Lizbilities {Refer fainme 1)
Clulmz againgt the Company nol acknowliodged as debis 1} March 2019 31 March 2018
- Ingome TAX domands contested by the Group 2,567 3,707
- Indirect TAX demands contested by the Group A&7 467
- Claims made by contactors i,17% 1104

Foot Noles

1 The Group does not exptel any outflow of economie resewrces in respect of the above and therefore no proviseon € made 10 respett thereaf
{ii}) Lefier of comiort and going concem

{a) The Parenl Company has issuad letler of comiort 1o banks n respect of Joans avalsd by & few of it subwdianes

Namc of Subsidiaries Nature of Comfort given

§| Mikzdo Realtors Put. Ltd Shartfall undenaking o meet any shortfall d.ring the 1enueg of faciily

i Intemationgl Infrabuild Private Limited To ensyre payment lo debenturé nolders in the evenl of ermination of ihe
COncession ‘agreement

ii| TRIF Real Estate Development Limited | Undortake lo mesl cost overrun to the extent of 10% of project Cost.

{&} The Parent GCompany has issued Fnancia) support letter to follawing subsidiaries and joinl ventures on the basks of which the separmale
fnanclals statements have been prepared on going concen basls

b Acme Living Seluiions Privats Limied
I M tnfragtructure Private Linled
i Wellkept Facility Mangement Servioes Privale Limiled (Previously known as TRIL Hospiality Privata Limited)
v TRIF Gurgaon Fousing Projesis Privale Limlled
¥ TR{L Amntsar Projects Limited (formerly known as TRIF Ammsar Prorects Limied)
¥ TRPL Roadways Privale Limled
v Gurgaon Construciwell Private Limited
vl HY Farms Privare Limited

341




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
MNotes (0 1he consolidated financial statements (Cantinued)
Soor dhe vear ended 310 Sorch 2019

{Currency Indian rupees m iakhs)

Nole 45
Capital and oilier comminmnents

Particalars 31 March 2019 31 March M8

Extimated amount of eontmets remainimg 10 Be execited on capual accaunt and not provided For (no of G0 175282
advancesh

Dihers - .

Male 46
Seament reporting

A, Busis for segmieniation
The Group bas three reporiahie sepmems, as described below, which are the Group's stratepic business vaits These busicess unils oiTer dulferent
producss and services, and are managed separakely because they require different technology and marketing stralegies
The follawing summasy describes the opernnons @ each of the Group's repartable segments
Reporiable sepment
~ Develspment of Residental property for owiright sale
- Real Estate
- Infrastructure
E. Informajion aboul reportabie semnents

Tnformation regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below Performance is measwed based om segment profit {before tax), as
neluded in he internal managenient reports that are reviewed by the Group's CODM, Segment profii 15 Jsed to neasure performance as managemant
believes that sach isfarmanon 18 the mast relevant an evaluating the results of cenain sepmients relative W other entities that operate within these
industries Prter-segment pricing is determned an an arny's leaygth basis,

Reder Annesuare A

. [nfermation alouwl major customers
Thete are no eustomers from whom Gopup ecognises revonue more than 1% of tigl revenue of the Gioup
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial stacemenls (Coniinued)
fur the vear cagded 31 Moreh 2079
(Crency Indian rapees in lakhs)

al
By

9]

{il

i)

Note 47

Loage areangements

Operating lewses - as a lessee

The Company bas taken varous premises under cancellable operating leases,

The Company lias also taken a commercial property and ceram residential premises on non-cancellehe operanng leases  The future nutiowm lease

paymients in respect of these propertzes as on 31 March 2019 is as follows

31 March 2G)8

Lease Pavients 31 March 2019
Not 1ates than one yeas 424
Laser than one yem bt aol [ater than live years 791

Later than five vears -

Pavinenis of lease rentsls during the year Qincludes recorded vnder porsonnel costs [NR 29,16 lgki 416
{2018, 47,88 lakh)

128
243

434

There are no exceplimal/restinctive covenanls im Uie lease apreements

As a lessor;

Qperating Lense

The Company has leazed some investment properties As on 31 March 2019, the fiwre minimum kase payents in respea ol these propetes nll the

wxpiy of lock i period 15 a5 follows,

31 March 2019 31 March 2013
ot lata than vrie year 33,891 31352
Later thaw one year but not later than five years 140,618 74,208
Later tian five years 42,081 22,954
114,5%0 128,412
Leage Rental Income for the year R340 48,214

Finance leases - Fit-oul and interler work

Tie Company s leasing arangement wepresents the fit-out of mlenior work: completed for the castomers which have been classified uader Ind AS 17 on
Luases a8 Finance lease The lease terms are for the penods of five to seven years where substaniially 21l the nisks and rewards of ownership ase
tranglerted to the lessee The Company records disposal of the property concened and recopnizes the subsequent inlerest i the finance lease No

contingent rent is receivable in tnis repard

Finance leages are recetvable as followa:

Gross investment in tease 31 vlarch 2019 3 March 2018
Receivable within one year 166 166
Receivable between one and five years 152 318
Recervable after live vears - -
38 454
Present value of minimom lease payments 31 March 2019 31 March 2013
wot {ater than ane vear 14 O
Later Ut one wear but not ater thaw 3 years 123 219
Later than 5 vears - -
239 334
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes 10 the ¢ lidated financiul (Cuntinued)
Sfor ihe vear vnded 31 Marck 200y

{Cunency Incian rupess in lakhs)

Note 48

Blicro, Small and Medivm Enler prises

Under the Micro, Small and dMedium Enerprises Development Act, 2006, {MSMED) which came into forée from 2 Crotaber 2008, cortam disclosures
are required o be made relzoing 1o Mhero Small and Medium enterpnses On the basis of the infoimation and records avatlable with the Management,
there are ng aulstandme dues to the Micre. Smatl and Medium enterprises as defined in the MSMED as set oui in fetlowing disclosure

31 darch 2019 31 March H1E
Princymal amount tenamiog ukpaid 1o any supplier a5 at Lhe year end (o5 for less han 53 42
30 days)
Iriesest due thereon - -
The amount of ntetest paid by the huyer a5 per the Migre Smadl and dedmum - -
Enierprises Devilopment Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2000}
The antounts af the payments made to sueeo and small suppliers beyend e appointed - -
day durng ench sccounting year
The amount of interem due and payable for the pernod of delay in making payniens . -
{which have heen paid but bevond the appointed day duning the year) but witham
adding the wterest specified under MEMED Act, 2004
The amount of interest seerued and remalaing unpasd af the end of each accounting -
year
The amount of further tnlerest remaieing due and payable even in the succeeding vears, - -
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise
Ameunt of interest accrued and remaining unpaic at the end of the secounting year - -
Nole 49
Exponditure ba forefgn earvency (vn aocenal bavis) 31 dFarch 2018 31 March 2018
Profiessianal fees 15 24
Trrimny and conferencs expensas [ o2
Travelling expenses 4 7
Sales and Marketing expenses - -
Note 5l

Impairment Loss

The group has tested the kmpaitment of goadwill ansing on account of consalidaton / merger. Based on the performance of Le project dunng the
curtent veae and Tubure projections, an impaioment anslyie hed been cganed out duning the year apd impairment loss recagnised duning the vear of
s 750 Lakhs (2097 Rs, 5.219 Lakhs)

Mole &1

a)  Diselosure with respect (o transition adjustment of Tl AS 115

Particulars Arnount
Gpening Retarned Earmngs (before Ind AS 115} {74,541
Reversal of revenue (3,174,
Treversal of Cost of sale 1,870
Opening Reinined Enrniog (Alicr lud A5 115} (75,848}
lucrenss in Inveniory 1870
Decrease n Trade Recervable (Qiher (an rilaied Farty) {3 07d )

bj Dlsclosure In respect of Constructlon Contracls

Faor the Year For the Year
Partlculars ended March 31, | endad March
2019 1, 2078

88760 47,924

Contract revanue recognized A& revenue
curing the year

Ae =t Margh 31, Az at March

Particulars 2019 31, 2016
Currulztive revenue regognlzed 170878 92,213
Currllathve casts Ingurred 163942 30,847
Cumulzireg marging aoepanizd 7037 1,371
Advances pad 11,807 16,754
Ratontion monay payable - -
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Tata Realty and Infrastruciure Limited

Nules to the consolidated Muareial stalem ents (Confined)
o the yune eoded 35 Mareh 7019

{Curreney. Indian rupes in Lakhs)

Mole 52
Interests io other entidies
{a} Subsidiaviey
The company’'s subsidianes st ) March 2019 are sot o badow

Place of %a ol ovnership iotcecs!
Name of entity buisiness 3 March 20012 31 Daech 2018

Acme Living Salutions Private Limited Tndia 100.00% 109,003
Amow Infreestale Pnyvate Limited India 100 00%% 100, 00%
Guegson Constrctvel]l Prvate Linnted Indiz 100 0% 100 0%
Gurgaon Realrech Limited Indiz 100 0% 1D O
TRIL Roads Piveate Lemised India 100,00 140 054G
TRIF Gurgaon Housimg Projects Pesvate Lamited Trdia 108 00% §0dr, Qs
TRIL Urban Transport Private Liumited India 106 9% 1 e
TRIL Hesmtality Provate Livled Tndia 100.00% P00 000
TRIL Constauctions Limited india 67.50% BT 50%
TRIL. Infipardk Tinuted (refer opde no (i) & (ui) Tndia 100 0% [EHEAIE Y
FRIL Amwisar Projects Lunneed Tncha 100,00 HHEDDY
Hampr Expressway Prvate Linned india 1000.00%% 10 00
TRIF Reat Estate Development Lumited Inndva 100 00%; 100,005
HV Farms Privare Limitad Indis 1003 00% 100 00%,
Internavonal Tefrabusld Private Lunated {I2PL) India 2600 26.00%
Dharamshaly Ropeway Lymuted {adis T4 0 Ta.00%
Manall Repeway Poivate Linuzd Tndia T2 00 72,00%
Lhehit Exprissways Private Linuted Tndia L00 00%% 100 00%
TRPL Besshways Private Linuicd India L00 90% P00 0%
Matheran Ropeways Frvate Laniited India T Tt
Durg Shiveath Expresswavs Private Limited [k 100% 1000
WA Infrastructure Prite Linmted India 100% [EEFE

Sigmificant jndzement: consolidation of entities with Jess than 30%% voting inferest
i) Althaugh the Group owns less than one-half of the vatng pewer of Intemnational Infrabuld Private Limited, it 15 able 10 control the company by virmue of an ygreement with the other mvesiors of Intematenal Infrsbuitd

Pavale Lumited which mter-alia prowides the Group with powes to appoisit maonty of the board of diueaars of International Infiabuld Private Limied and power over relevant acinaties. Consequently, the Group
eansalidates (ks inveshitent s the carmpany

0} The Parenl company has entered 1t ¢all apuon vl one of the s!mmholda of TRIL Infopark Ltd cxpuing an 1 July 2021 whergin the Parent Company holds the call opliens, Company has pad full conaderalion
ol R 74 10 Lakhs 25 opton deposit. Rence Pareat prany 1S lidabo hiptding 1 TRIL Tntopark Lid of the sad sharcholder as stebe hebd by it

i) Sy, the Parent Compuny has entered into put opfion wiih ancther sharehalder of TRIL Infopark Lid expiring on 9th Marcl 2019 Based on Lhe put oplion candinets Parent Company [1as provided full lizkility
undler other currens financial hablives, smce the put options nghts are avarlable wath the other shaseholders, Hence, Parent Company is consalidaung TRIL Infopark Lid as 100% subsidiary,

113} Now-conirolling Interests (NC1)
Selout belsw 5 summansad finameal siformanoen 100 each subsidiary that has aon-contralling imterests 1o the group The disclosed for each subsidiary are before 1nler-company elinunations

Summarised baliwice sheet

Dhramshal: Ropewny Limited  TRIL Constructions Limited  Manal Ropewnys Privale 1rFL Matleran Rape- Way
Litited Frivate Linited
2 March 3 March 31 ATech 31 March 3 Maech 31 March
M Warch 2019 M March 20§85 A Mareh 219 1018 31 March 2019 1018 1019 2018 w19 1018
Mon-curranl assels T16R S4R2 21.6% 11487 314464 5,749 13,645 12,937 1,387 1,387
Current wigels 08 275 2698 2657 470 1 605 87 G5l 954
Man-current hakiliges 156413 (4,077) (2415)  (7.050) {4,934,02) (5.510% {6.474) (10,549} . R
Current liabaliies {1.132) (651) {287 {1,148) (2.18) (28) (9.701) {2383 {101y {120
Mat assels g .00 1543 15,946 206 212 ﬂ_.?ls) {13y 1436 2411
Het assets altnibutablg 1o NCT - w4 2 6.4 0.470 . 27 - (79 iny 201
Daaranehals Rapeway Limitedd  TRLL Constructions Limlied  Manall Zopeways Private 1FL Matheran Rape- Way
Linuiled Privale Limiied
31 dlarch 31 March 3 March 3 March 30 March 31 March
31 March 203% 31 March 2013 3 March 2019 2018 31 March 2019 018 2009 1013 18 1018
Supmnarised stateinent of profic and loss
Boevenuee 211 e - - - - 136 5511 55 T
{1 it (A ?7 512) (28} (3% {1 0912 {95} 25 0}
(] - - - - -
Tatxl enmprehensive income (643) 17 (512} (26) (55) (119) (1912} {85) 25 it
Loss sllacated 1o MNCI {169} n (166) @) ] (338 (1415} (70} T3k {0 06)
OCI allocatcd e NCT - . - - - .
Toiztl comprehensive income allocaied 1o NCT 169 0 {186) (%) (15 {333 11.41%5) (el I (0 05
Logs to NCI Hesivicted {169} 20 [166) (i) n (i3 " {70} T {0y
Siwmarised cash fyws
Caslu flows liom spnny acnvines {17y (21 (723 (238) (10} 23) (147) 1783 1603 3%}
Casi o o mseshing activimies (14200 (2385 {204} {3431 {3} (138) (1.420) (6.860) 54 (742)
Cazle lows Fom Beanang diviles o3l 16l 495 28 4% V75 | 50 7258 - 1715
Met incredse (de Taneasds aml cash egrlenis 4239 (2.55) {32.65) 47,70 408 (1.38) 42337 17.85 {6.08) 23531
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Tata Realty and Infrastructnre Limited
Notes ta the Consolidated financial sty "

fore B pear gednd 38 Mol 2000

{{ urrency Indian rupees i lakhsh

Wate 53 (continged)

Jdquidity rixh

Liquidity rish 15 the nsk i the Group will mot e abie wmes ns fnaneal eldiganhons o8 ey eaome due The Group coanages 115 hguickty 12k by ensuring, as
far us poszible that 1t will always hove sufficient hqudity to meet s habnlmies when dug usder ot pormal and streseed condimans. waiihout ncurrmy
imasceptable losses af nsk o the Group' s repulitian

The Group bes obrnned fund and non-futd based warking capikal lines from vanous banks. Furthermore, e Giroup has access to funds fram compulsary
convertivbie wnd non-converible delrentaies Srans ol oo and ofer Toncal ventutan. The Gréup el constantby woninng funding aphens svailable in
the debt and capiial markets wah wooes 2 mantanime Gnancial Oexibabe

Exposire o figeiddiey risk
The tahle tebinw ana

czes the proup's finoacial habuhies mie relevant madunhy Lroupinas based on (ko coniraciual walurbes o
iy herreative fnandial labilities
* et and pross setiled denvanve fimanonl mstments 4o efuach he conlioctual aunbe ane csgeniiel e e wnekeesianding ab the g of Hie cash flows

31 Mareh 2HS

Neederivanyve lnairial Rakiliies Covtruetnasl ¢ush Dpwsy

Charrying anisng 1 year we less 1-2 years 28 weans More ihp £ years
Non camvortible debentures 133 580 VIR Ry 4,000 A%, 5 2650
Inter Cerporate Deposns from Related Paries (R L [EREVH - -

Furtilviad Batuliy b premium poynem

N ] Lite 17 b [RFEY 12ao
Pruject developaent fees puvable 15 J5 . .
Bank Overdrafl 4118 . R _
Interest- free secunly depnsats from custamers 3041 5054 14,773 4.7
Commerceal paper 1ssued o mulual fued T ST 77,500 R ; R
“Urade and other pavaliles AR 9_dnk -
Secured loan anel workine capital Baeiliny flan
Banks and Financial Insutunions 443 24 13 36¢ i, 122 3% 2Ba 04
Diher Ongwoal labilines 36303 RER-URY . 114349 -
YN G 200,838 534554 206,591 hdz a4l
Verivalive fnaneal hablides
- Purcplion 17 744 15477 - L5 .
- Forwards 43 - : 12 -
17700 15477 - 2243 -
31 ¥larch 2iNE
Mun=derivaimve financial Babikities Contractual eash Miws
Caprying anMaing | year o less 1-2 years 2-5 yrary tlave ihan 3 yeus
Mo conventile delentares 241. 6, 0ebh 131,240 1515 (E AT
Fioznesal habaliy for pretmoan payvnsat B Mk | B5S b TEO AN 3 150,048
Project development fees ayable 4% 18 = R
Interest- free securiey deposits Gom cusioimers FRRLE 21Hm 1745 11 45 2,670
Conwnerciat paper issued to nwtual fund Sl el ik, STy - - -
Trade wnil other payvables 14,722 Lz - - -
Seaured loan and workmg capiial fiedity from
Rank 13,33 TR E33.754 152407
ke dinzencisl labedines I 548 2T 61T - 493 z
778,778 T2 175,694 291,780 434364
Devivative loancial
- Put spion 1TulR 16,425 - - | 448
- Fenwancls s 3128 -
.51 415 3018 1AYS

* Fouweaed confract enleesd with the banks vt respect 1 the i camnutment of sapply ol asserssenaces entevd with the Tareign sanirpctar Lo e cansirucled
and nstelled an the project site. Mosonal amount of tareiem currency Eurs 349 A0 kakhs and novanal IR 114 35 Takhs
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consclidated financial statements

foi the vear ended 31 March 2019

{Currency: Indian rupees n lakhs)

Note 53 (vontinued)
Credit Risk

Credit nisk 13 the risk of financial loss 190 the Group {I" 8 custeiner or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 1 et s
contractual oblganons, and anses principally from the Group's receivables from custotners. Credit nisk 15 managed through
credit approvals, estabhishing credit limits and continuously monmtering the credinworthiness of customers 1o wlich the Group
grants credit terms in the normal course of buginess The Group exlablishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment
that represents its estunate of incurred 1osses in respect of trade and other regeivables.loans and advances and nvestments.

Trade and other receivables

The Greup's exposure (o credit risk is influenced mamnly by the individual characterisiics of each customer. The
demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the custemer operates, also has
an influence on crodit risk assessment. Credu risk is managed through credit approvals. establishing credic limits and

continuousty monitoring the creditwaorthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of
buginess

Credit rish for receivables pertaining to residential business
The risk lor trade recievables pertatning to residential business 1s considered ml as the posseession of the residential property
is iransferred only after the receipt of payment from the customer

Summary of the Group's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers s as follows:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
MNeither past due nor impaired 1571 1,341
Past duc but not impaired
Past due 1=90 days 500 33
Pagt due 91180 days 293 1,340
Past due 181270 days 155 1,459
Past due 271-365 days - 303
Past duc more than 365 days 6 312

2.846 5,787
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MNote 33 (continued)

(ii} Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk 1§ the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a Hnancial instrument will flucluate because of
changes i markel interest rates The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes v interest rates relales borrowings
from financial inatnutions.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Group's imerest-beacing financial instruments s as follows:

Parlicufars 31 March 2019 31 Mareh 20118
Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets 4220 3411
Financial l1abiiities *80,277 369,310

Variable-rate instruments
Tinancial liabilities 454,304 354,178

Interesi rale sensitiviry - (ived rate insiruments
The Group does not account for any fixed-rate financial assels or Hinaneial labilities at Fair value through profit or
Yoss, and the Group does not have any designate financial habilities.

Interest rate sensitivicy - variable rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in inlerest rates ai the reporting date would have mcreased /
degreased equity and profit or loss by amounts shown below, This analyscs assumes that all other variables, in
particular, foreign currency cxchange rates. remain constant. This caleulation also assumes that the change occurs at
(he balance sheel date and has been caleulated based on nsk exposures oulstanding as al that date. The period end
balances are not necessarily represcolative of the average debt outstanding duning the period.

1) bp increase 100 bp decrease
As at '3l vareh 2919
Varrable-rate insiruments 4,043 {4.043)
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 4043 (4,043}
100 bp incriease t00 bp decrease
As at 31 March 2013
Variable-rate instrumenis 3,542 (3,542
Cash flow sensitivity (nef) 3,542 (3,542)

(Mote The impact is indicated on the profitloss and equity before tax basis)
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Noic 54
Capital Management

The Group’s policy 15 to mamtun a strong capiial basc $o as to maintain investar, creduor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business (L sets the ammount of capital required on the bosis of annuat busimess and long-terny operating plans which
include capital and eiher sitmegre investments.

The funding requirement of the Group are met from fund and non-fund based workng capital lines from vanous banks, Furthermore, the
Group has access 1o funds from compulsory converivble and nen-convertible debentures from holding Group and other fnanciat
nstilution The Giroup's policy is to use short-term and long-ternt borrawings 10 mueet anticipaied funding requirements.

The Growp moniors capital using a ratio of “adjusted net debt’ to “adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as 1otal
labilities. comprising interest-bearing loans and bomrowings and obligations under finance: leases, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
equity comprises all components of equity other than amounts accumulaled in the hedging reserve,

As 203 March  As ar 2 March

1019 2018
Total borrowings 773,320 648,693
Less . Cash and cash equivaleal 5921 7141
Adjusted net debt TO7.400 G43,552
Adjusted equity 29,512 54,682

Adyusted net debt to adjusted equry mho 26 12

-
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Nute 55
Fax expense
{a} Awwunts recognised in proft and less

3L March 2019

3 March X013

Current income 13%

Curvent Tax Expense
Qoiginal and reversal of temperory diffrence
Enceease i tax mce
Recogmuon of praviously unrecognised tax losses
Chuoge m cecognised deductible temporary differences
Tolal deferred tax expense/(heaelil)

Tax expense [or the vear

() Amonnis recopnised in other comprehensive income

B4

1,906

1806
768

55
62

(1.00T)

{1,067
[

For the year

For the year

Hefore fax Tax {expense) Met of tax Belore (ax Tax (£%pense) MNet of 1ax
benefit benelil
NR R LNE. INE INR INR

[erns thal will uot be ceclassilied 10 profil or Inss
Chonges in revaluztion surplos - - - -
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 55 t14) N 35 e )
Equiey Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - - -
ftems that will be reclassified 10 profil or boss - N
Shaze of Other Commrchensive Income in Associates aod Jeint - -
Venrures, 1o the vient bo e ¢lassified imto profitor toss

85 14 41 A5 9y ki

iort of ¢MTeptive Lax rale

31 darch 2019

31 March 1018

Profit before 1ax
Tax using the Company”s Jonezhi b ke
{Current year 34 944% or 2688 Proviows year 30 90% o1 25 75%))

Tav effect of

Dhulterences i L mites

[wems nog kaahle) cansulered seperately

Tmputeron gocpent of Tnd As adjustments

Curiene-yen lusses for which no deferred tax asset 1s recognised

Effect of deduction clarmed under chapter IV V1A of ineame 1
avt [961

Linutinsed MAT Credit

(hers

Twzl
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(2L145) {40,235)
(4,787) (3419)
99 455
(688} (1647
7,363 7404
(1841 (1.12)
838 779
068 193
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MNpte 56
Disclosure pursvant 16 lod AS 19 on “Employee Benefits”

(i} The Group has adopted Ind AS 19 on “Employes Benefus™ as prescribed by the Companies (Accounung Standards) Rules, 2006 issued
by the Central Govermment, winch is deemcd 10 be applicabic under the provisions of Sechon 133 of the Companies Acl, 2013

(i) Contributien to Provideni fund
31 March 2019 3§ March 2018

Contribunion lo provident lund recognised as an expense wader "Employee benefits”, 136 120
{iiit Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuily

The Group has « defined benent grawity plun, Every emplover who bas compleled five years or more of service pets a gratuity on death
or resignation or retirement calculated as per the Payment ol Grataity Aci, 1972 with no cziling,

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

[ Change in the defined benefit obligatian

Liability at the beginning ot the vear 454 393
Liability an acquistuon ol sabsiciaries durmg the vear - -
Iniegrest Cost 35 29
Current Service Cost 86 87
Past Service Cost { Vested Benefu) - -
Benelit Taid (9 ()
Actuariul Loss on oblipations {60 {34)
Liability acquired on acquisition ¢ (seitled on Divestire) - -
Liability at the end of the yvear 421 454

11 Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Liability at the end of the year 424 454

Fair Value ot Plun Assets at (e end of the year - 4

[ fMerence 321 451

Ameunt recognised in the Balanee Sheel 421 d5]

[ . )
Il Expenses Recognised in the statement of profit xnd loss

Currenl Service Lot 86 %7

Interest Cosl 35 Al
Expecied Return on Plan Assels - (25
Net Actuarial Loss 1o Be Recogmised (B} -

Addition on acquisition - -
Expense Recognised in statement of profit and tags G 95

IV Balance Sheet Reconciliation

Opening nel hability 454 393
Liahility on acquisivon of subsidiary - -
Expensc as above 6l §2
Employers contribution (pud) {94) {21)
Pre acquisition Hability of subsidiary - -
Amaunt recognised in Balance Sheet 421 454
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{iv}) Defined Benefit Plans (Continaed)

Gratuity (Continaed) 31 March 2019 3t March 2018
Voo Actuarial Assumptions :
Disconnt Rate 7.05% 7.85%
Sulary escatation 7.00% 7.00%

Artrition Rate: Dircetors - Nil, Age 21-30 vears - 5%, Age 31-40 yenrs - 3%, Age 41-59 years -2%

Estumates of lufure salary increases, considercd w actuanal valuation, lake account of 1t lation. seniority. promolion and other relevant
factors. such as supply and demand i the cployment market

The Group’s liability ot aceount of gratuny s not funded and hence. the disclosures relatng to the planned assets are not applicable.

2019 wig

VI Experience Adjustmenis:
Nefined benefit obligaton 368 408
Plan assets - -
{Deficii) {368) (408)

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities - -
Experience adjustment on plan assels - -

Sensitivity analvsis

Reayonably possible changes at the reporting date 1o one of the relevant actuarial asswmpiions. holding ther assumpuions constant,
would have affecied the defined benefit obligalion by the amowns shown below,

31 Mareh 2019 35 Muarch 2018
Inereise Jecrense Increase Decrease
Discount rate § % movement) {2.80) 270 0.45 -
Salary escalation (% movement) 2.70 {2.60) - 1.00

Other long term employvment benefits
Compensated absences

[he iability towards compensated abscnces for the year ended 31 March 2019 recognised i the Bakmee Shedt based on aciuanal
valuation using the projected unit credii method amounted to INR 795 /- (2018 INR 542/ and the charge to the Statement of profit and
loss armounted to INR 1264 12018 INR 235
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Nate 57
Related Party Disclosures

Holding company:
Tata Sens Private Limied

Joint Yenture

TRIL [T4 Private Limited

MIA Initastructure Private Limited

Mikado Realtors Private Limited

Industrial Mineral and Chemicals Campany Limued

Johm Venture of a Subsidiary

Pune Sofapur Expressways Private Limited (2 1V of TRIL Roads Privale Limined)
A & T Read Constructon Manajement and Operation Private Luniled

Pune IT Citv Merro Rail Limited {(wefl March 13, 2019)

Qther retated poriies with whan irensactions fave falien place during the years;
Feltow Subsidivries:

Ewart investments Limited

Taia Consuliancy Services Limited

Tawa AlG General Insurance Company Linuted
Tala AlA Life Insurance Company Limited
TC Travel and Senvices Lamited

Tata Capial Financial Services Limined
Infimity Retaol Litd

Tata Asset Management Limited

Tata Housing Development Company Limited
One Colembo Froject {Private) Limited

Tata Elxst Ltd

Tata Tcleservices Limited

Tata Cansulting Engincers Led

Kep Management Personnel

Saupay Duit Managmyg Director & CEQ - w v L Ist April 2018
Samjay Ubale Managing Director - upto 315t March 2018

Sanjay Sharta Clitel Fiuaneral Ofhcer - woe £ 10th Seplembot 2018
Arvind Chokhany Chief Financial Officer - upto 281k February 2019
Vinay (achar Company Secretary
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Retated party disclosures (Continced)

Summary of celated party tr

o

358

Transactions Halding Fellow Joint Veniture Key Management Total
company subsidiaries Personnel

I Unsecured lnan taken
31 Muareh 2019 14,000 - - 14,000
31 March 2018 - - - -
Tata Housing Development Company Eimined
31 March 2019 14000 14,000
31 March 2018 - - - .

2 Inigrest expenses on enscgured Ipans
31 March 2019 21 - 21
3! March 2018 . - -
Tata Housing Development Company Limited
31 Marcl 2019 21 - 21
31 March 2018 . -
Purchase of fixed assets
31 March 2019 . - -
31 March 2018 r - 7
Infinity Retail Limited
31 March 2019 - - -
31 March 2013 7 ?
Purchase of Investraents
31 March 2019 - 103 - 105
31 March 2018 - 1,744 - 1744
Industrial Minerals and Chemicals Private Limited
3| March 2019 - 105 - 105
31 March 2018 - 1,744 1,744
Asset Management Consuliancy fees
31 March 2019 - 143 - 148
31 March 2018 - 143 - 143
TR IT4 Privalc Limited
31 March 2009 - 148 - 11%
31 March 2018 - 143 - 143
Project Management Consultancy ltes
31 March 2019 - 1LIL8 - 1,118
31 March 2018 251 1,314 - 1,565
Mikado Realtors Private Limited
31 March 2019 1,118 - 1L1Ig
31 March 2018 - 1,314 . 1,314
Tata Consultancy Scrvigos 1imited
31 March 2019 . - -
31 morch 2018 151 - 251
Interest locome
31 March 2019 - 1,465 - 1,465
31 March 2018 - 1465 - 1,465
TRIL IT4 Private Limited
31 March 2019 - 1,465 - 1,465
31 March 2018 - 1,465 - 1,465
Remt Income
3) March 2019 5.315 - - 5,315
31 March 2018 5,092 - - 3,092
Tata Consultancy Services Limited
31 March 2019 4,629 - 4,629
31 March 2012 4,481 - 4,481
Tata AIG Generai Inswranee Co L.
31 March 2019 ods - 686
31 March 2018 6l - 611
Marnagerial remuncration -
31 *“arch 2019 - 1,008 1,008

s +
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for the year ended 3} March 2019

{Currency: lndwn tupees in lakhs)

party disci

<s (Continned)

Summary of related party transactions

‘Transactions Helding Fellow Joint Yeotere Key Managemens Total
COM pAnY subsidiaries Personnel
3! March 2018 - - - 755 755
Reimbursgment ol exponses {receivable)
31 vlarch 2019 3 605 - - 612
31 March 2018 33 - - - 35
Others
31 March 2019 4 6035 - - 612
31 March 2018 55 - 35
Servicos Received
31 March 2019 5 Tz - - HY
31 March 2018 21 503 - - 525
Tatz At General Insurance Limilad
31 March 2019 - 275 - - 273
31 March 2018 - 249 - - 249
Tala AlA Life Insurance Limilea
31 March 2019 % - - 8
31 March 2018 9 - g
Tala Soos Private Limated
31 March 2019 5 - - - 5
31 March 2018 21 - - - 1|
Ewart lnvestment Limiled
21 March 2019 - 208 - - 208
31 March 2018 - 238 - 238
Tata Consulting Engineers Lid
A1 March 2019 - 158 - - 158
31 March 2018 - - - -
Tata Elxsi Lid.
31 hlarch 2019 - 3 - - g
31 March 2018 - - - - -
Tala Telesernices Ltd -
31 March 2019 - 20 - - 20
31 March 2008 - 8 - - 3
Tala Housing Developmens Company Limuted - !
3t March 2010 - 35 - 33
3) March 2018 - - - - -
Trovellug
37 March 2019 - - - - -
31 March 2015 - 166 - - 166
TG Travel and Services Limited
31 March 2019 - - - .
31 March 2018 166 - - 166
Sale Of Fixed Asscls
31 March 2019 28 2 - - 3t
31 March 2018 - - - -
Tata Sons Private Limited
31 March 2019 22 - - - 28
31 March 2018 - - - - -
Ewart Investments Limited
31 March 2019 - 2 - 2
31 March 2018 - - -
Deposit Refund Received
3 March 2019 130 450 - - &00
_3] Margh 2018 - - - - -
s
e
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el

d party discl es (Continned)

Swmnmary of related party transactions

Transachons Holding Fellow Joinc Venture Key Management Tatal
COM pAnY subsidiaries Personnel
Tata Sons Private Lunited
31 March 2019 150 - - 150
31 March 2018 . -
Ewart [nvestments Limaled
31 March 2019 450 - - 450
3] March 2018 . - - .
Employee Bunefit Transfer
Tata Sons Private Lanited
31 March 2019 56 - . - 36
31 darch 2018 - - . .
Balances receivable at the vear-end
rowards interest and debil notcs and advances
31 March 2019 - 648 79 - 767
31 March 2018 - - B 863
Pune Solapur
31 March 2019 - - 10 - 10
31 March 2018 - - 10 - ]
TRAL IT4 Privaie Limuted
31 March 2019 - - 69 - o9
31 March 2018 - - 66 - 66
Mikado Realtors Privale Limited
3% March 2019 - - 73 - 73
31 March 2018 - - 789 - 89
Tata Consunting Enmneers Lid
31 March 2018 - 35 35
31 March 2018 - -
Taiad Housing Development Company Limited
31 March 2019 - 653 - - 653
3] March 2018 - -
Depoesits placed
31 March 2019 - 240 - - 240
31 March 2018 150 300 - - 450
Ewart Invesiments Limiied
31 &larch 2019 - 240 - 240
31 March 2018 300 - - 300
Tata Sons Py Limated
31 March 2019 - - - -
31 Mareh 2018 150 - - - 150
Trade recetvables
31 March 20192 - 793 13 308
31 March 201§ i 743 15 763
Tata Consultancy Services Limited
31 March 2019 - 752 - 152
31 March 2015 - 22 - . 2
TRIL IT4 Private Limited
31 March 2019 - - 15 - 15
31 March 2018 - - 15 - 13
g
<
o ™~
e
-~ \\ \
w
- —
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Related pariy disclosures (Continued}

Sumniary of related party transactions

Transactions

Holding
compagy

Fellow
surbsidizries

Joint Yenture

Key Mapagemenc
Persgnnel

Tetal

Tara Sens Private Limited
31 Mareh 2019
31 Magch 2018

Tata AlG General Insurnce Company Lid
31 March 2019
31 March 2018

Balances payable at the year-end
lowards advances ffom custemers
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

41
31

2912
2,876

4
k]|

2922
2,876

Taiz Consultancy Services Limuted
31 March 2019
31 March 2018

Tata AlG General Insurance Company Lid.
31 Mareh 2019

3i March 2018

towards cxpensgs

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

1,583
2,583

339
293

25

2,583
2,583

KX
293

13

Tata Consultansy Services Lunited

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Taia Housing Development Company Limited
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

<
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Nole 58
Adduional srformanon parsuant 1o paragraph 2 of Division 11 of Schedule B 4o the Comparies Acl 20} 3. *Generzl
mseuctions ¥or the preparatton of consolidated fi J " of Dvwrsion 11 of Schedule 117

PartA
Tanch 2019
et Assets Share in profit or los, Share In pther comprehensive | Share in toto! cornprehensive ncome
[Tatal Assets - Tobal Liabilibes) intome
Hame of the antity Asa %ot Ambunt Asa%of Amaunt As d %ol Ameunt As p % of total Amaunt
conselidated consolidated consalideted other comprehensive
net asgels profit or loss coemprehenslve ncemg
inramy
Parent
Tata Reaity and infresiruciure Vmites S54ET0 195 ,GEE B2 72% 18 E27} BB.53% 28,871 ED.OTH 10,244
Subsidiairies
Ihdinn
Acme Lwing Salutiens Provete Limned % 18} o 11y o - -£.01% 1)
Arrew Infra Extates Private Limred 0.22% BOE 002% 7 e - D.05% (7
Gurpacn Constructwell Private Limited D0.76% 2,760 D533 {158) 413 - -1.25% [158)
Gurgasn Realtech Limited 0405 1437 0.32% (58} 1574 - -0 765 {96
TR Roads Private Urmlled ¥ 69% 27,947 -2.274 675 15.35% 10,680 £9.75% 11,355
TRIF Gurgaen Housing Projects Private Limited Q.03% {3) 0.00% [1) [0 - -n.01% (3
TRIL Urban Transport Private Limited 1374 4,870 3.15% {9a8) 1% 270 =5.385% (678)
Wellkept Facliity bManagement Services Privale Limitee 0.00% 1) 0.00% [1) 17 - -D.01% [§4]
TRIL Constructions Limited 4.25% 15,434 1724 {513] [ - -4.05% [512)
TRIL Infopark Limited 10.43% 37911 4,745 1 1,408) G {2 13 14% {1,410}
TRIL Amnelisar Prajects Limited D 759 2,889 51 1,520} £ 1 ~12.01% {2,519}
Hampl Expressway Private Limited 537% 1558 -1.54% 457 0% - 3.61% 457
TRIF Real Estate Developmant Limitea 1.49% 5,433 0.50% [147) 0% 1 -1.15% {145}
HY Farmas Private Limited 0.32% 1,148 0.00% {1} 0% - 001% (21
Intarnational infrabuild Private Limiec -0.53% [1.925) 5.86% AL 0% - -13 FE% 11,761
Dharamshala Ropeway Umited 0 14% 504 221% [{353) 0% - -5.18% 1655}
Wianali Ropeway Private Limites 0.05% 206 C.24% 171h 0% - 0568 [?4)
Uchly Exprasswaye Private Lim|tad 341% 11,286 -10.63% 2,978 [+ [} EERT 2,578
TRPL roadways 3.66% 13,312 431% 1,280) 547% 2,305 8.10% 1,025
Durg Shivnaih Expressways Pvi Lid 2.62% 9,307 -0 550 ] 1~] 4.65% 590
Matheran Repeway Put Lid 0 a7% 2436 011% i3 0% - 0.26% EE]
RALA n frastructurs Private Limited 0% [an 0.09% {264 133 - -0.20% 125
Mon-c! ling In all sub (-1 1834 6,517 07a% (222} 2] - o -
Joint (i as per equity hod)
Indlan
Pune Solapur Expressways Privale Limited 12005 4.344 4,03% [1,198] L 2 -9.45% 11,196}
AR T Roa Ty i A and Op lan Prvate Lemitee 0.00%% [H] o iv) [+ - 000 L]
TRIL T4 Private Limited <B.25% [22,722] 19.41% [5,763) o - 45 554 [5.763)
Mikedo Reaitars PVt Lid =L 4453 0.11% 132) o% - 0.25% 32
Industrfal ddinerals and Chemigals Company Private Limitag 4545 16493 0.05% {15} 0% - 0 12% [15)
Total 100% 363,406 1005 (19,699} 1005 62,159 100% 12,652
Consabidation Adjustment (233,804) B,0DE 142,087 [36,304)
Toral Net Assets 29,51 {23.69 41 (23,653
\ C . /
&
f
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Tata Realty and infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements (Continued)
Sor the year ended 31 Moreh 2009
(Cumrency: Indian rupees in 1akhs)

Note 39
Evenis alter the balance sheet date

There are no significam subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial siatements as on the balance sheet date.

Note 60
Previous Year's Figures
Provious vear figures have been reprouped / reclasailfied 10 conform Lo current year presentation, wherever considered necessary,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Gl Mo: UF0102MH2007PLC 188300
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. . B
Lanmah Agra Sanjay Dett F. N. Subedar Hajiv Sabharwal
Chairman Managing Director Director Director
N - 00120029 DIN - 03251670 DN - 00028428 DIN - 00057333
o
Q\Q&"W .
. 1
8. Sant'ﬂ%’sﬁﬁm Neera Sagai anjay Sharma Tnay
Director Directir Ciuel Financial Ofitcer Company Sceretary
DIN - 0003204% DIN - 00301029 tcmbership Mo: A6120
e
' Mumbai
Miay 3, 2019

Certified True Copy

Tata Relaty and Infrastructure Limited

Company Secretary
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